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Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited is a leading construction and engineering
group headquartered in Hong Kong, offering comprehensive and integrated
project management and delivery services and facilities management services
in Hong Kong, Mainland China, Macau and Southeast Asia.

For over 75 years, Paul Y. Engineering has been at the heart of some of the
most challenging and impressive construction and engineering projects that
have shaped the iconic skylines of Hong Kong and many other cities.
Through growth in recent decades, Paul Y. Engineering has developed and
become one of Hong Kong's largest contracting businesses. Our portfolio of
projects includes commercial and residential buildings, heritage conservation,
institutional facilities, hospitals/healthcare facilities and infrastructure
projects, including highways, district cooling systems, airport runways, mass
transit railways, tunnels, port works, energy supply/power plants and water
and sewage treatment facilities.

We aim to satisfy the needs and expectations of our valuable clientele by
providing integrated project delivery solutions through all stages of projects.
At the same time, we are committed to our role as a responsible corporate
citizen by the implementation of sustainable practices in our businesses and
good corporate governance to build harmonious relationships with our
people, clients, business partners and the communities in which we operate.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

B RE

Percentage
2023 2022 change
—E-= = BNXREE
Revenue (HK$'million) WA (BE8BT) 9,477.9 12,554.5 -25%
Earnings before interest and tax AREFE R B AT &R
(HK$'million) (ag#BT) 85.4 77.3 +10%
Profit for the year attributable A% 3R 4G 2 5 A
to shareholders (HK$'million) (BBET) 21.8 36.1 -40%
Shares outstanding (million) BIIRMD (BER) 3,957 2,441 +62%
Net asset value per share BREEFE
(HK cents) (AL 43.8 51.1 -14%
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic (HK cents) — FHAR (B 0.6 1.5 -60%
Total assets BEEE
(HK$'million) (B8AT) 9,301.2 8,229.9 +13%
Net current assets MEEEFE
(HK$ million) (B8AT) 1,338.9 1,058.7 +26%
Equity attributable to AR 3R G R =
shareholders (HK$'million) (B8AIT) 1,732.3 1,247.8 +39%
Current ratio mE =R 1.18 1.15 +3%
Gearing ratio BEREELX 0.90 0.91 -1%

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA



Revenue (HKS$'million)
WA (BEET)
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Profit (loss) for the year attributable
to shareholders (HK$'million)

BRREMFEERR (EB) (5E&Ex)
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Net asset value per share (HK cents)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

Revenue by location (%)

WARMEE D (%)

Southeast Asia

RE®
Hong Kong 0.7%

Ak
98.0%

—— Macau
SRPT

/ 3%

2023

9,477.9
HK$' million
AEET

Contracts on hand by location (%)
FHEENRBEE D (%)

Hong Kong

BE
98.0% Macau

=P
2.0%

2023

45,466.9
HK$ million
BEBT

Remaining works by location (%)

BRINIERRMESD (%)

Hong Kong

BE
99.5%\
Macau
JRFT
0.5%
24,968.2
HK$’ million
BEET
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
BRREFAKGES

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting
of Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (the “Company”) will be
held at 11th Floor, Two Sky Parc, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong on Friday, 27 October 2023 at 9:00 a.m.
for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements and
the reports of the directors and auditor for the year ended
31 March 2023.

2.  To re-elect retiring directors and to fix the directors’
remuneration.

3. To re-appoint auditor and to authorise the board of directors
to fix their remuneration.

4. To transact any other ordinary business of the Company.

By Order of the Board of
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
Wu Shek Chun, Wilfred
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 8 August 2023

Principal Place of Business:
11th Floor, Two Sky Parc
51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Registered Office:

Vistra Corporate Services Centre
Wickhams Cay Il

Road Town, Tortola, VG1110

Hong Kong British Virgin Islands
Notes:
1. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a meeting

of the Company shall be entitled to appoint another person as his proxy
to attend and vote instead of him. A member who is the holder of two
or more shares may appoint more than one proxy to represent him and
vote on his behalf at a general meeting of the Company or at a class
meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. A form of proxy for the meeting is enclosed. The instrument appointing
a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under
which it is signed, or a certified copy of such power or authority, shall
be deposited at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at 11th Floor, Two Sky Parc, 51 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed
for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting at which the person
named in the instrument proposes to vote.

As at the date of this notice, directors of the Company are:

Mr Chan Fut Yan : Chairman (Executive Director)
Mr Lee Hang Wing, James : Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)
Mr Wong Kin Kay : Chief Operating Officer (Executive Director)

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED REZZ£EBBRA A
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Academic # &

1

Capital Development Complex at the Pokfield Road
Site for The University of Hong Kong
ERRNBHEREREEREE

Proposed Student Activity Centre for Hong Kong
International School Association Limited at R.B.L.
1199 Tai Tam Reservoir Road, Tai Tam, Hong Kong
BRERNEKEERBEEERFE 1R BET AR
RERBLEH T L

2023 PROJECT OV

—_—

Jockey Club I-Village, The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology at Clear Water Bay, Hong
Kong

BERBRKETERMEARKBESE I-Village

1224-Place Student Residence at Police School
Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong for The
University of Hong Kong (MiC Project)
BEAREBEMRERBES4ATESIER (MICER)
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OJECT OVERVIEW
FERBEHRE

Community Facilities and Hospitals B 3% is &% B B

5 Redevelopment of Queen Mary Hospital, Phase 1,

Hong Kong
ERBEBRE-HEZER

6  The Management Contract for 5AKN 3.0-1 at No.5
A Kung Ngam Village Road, Hong Kong
BB R ENBS5R5AKN 3.0-1 AEEEIEH

7 Joint-user Government Office Building in Area 67,
Tseung Kwan O, Hong Kong
BB KEIRECTE BT BIAKIE

6 PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBAR AT

.
.

Residential (Private) (£ (FAA)

8

10

Residential Redevelopment of 8 Castle Road, Mid-
Levels West, Hong Kong
EREBFILERBSHRIETERIER

Mount Anderson, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong

FEBELE

The Henley, Kai Tak, Hong Kong
& B RU{EThe Henley



Residential (Public) ¥ (A #)

1

12

13

Dedicated Rehousing Estate at Hung Shui Kiu -
Phase Il, Hong Kong
ERMKBERLEREWIER F2H

Subsidised Sale Flats Development at Anderson
Road Quarry Site R2-3, Hong Kong
EALEERBAESBR-3FULBREHHEREES

Dedicated Rehousing Estate for Mixed Housing
Development at Pak Wo Road, Fanling, Hong Kong
EEMEBRENRESFEEREAERETLR

14

15

16

2023 PROJECT OVERVIEW
TECFEKEE

Dedicated Rehousing Estate at Hung Shui Kiu -
Phase 1B, Hong Kong
ERMKBERLEREWIER F1BH

Construction of Public Housing Development at
Chiu Shun Road, Tseung Kwan O, Hong Kong
BEEBERBERAREERRIEAR

Senior Citizen Residences Development at 8 Lee
Kung Street, Hung Hom, Hong Kong (Blissful
Place)

FREAWMANTEHSEREEEHRER (BEE)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &k




2023 PROJECT OVERVIEW
—E=FEEHE

Rendering X R B

19

Airport Works #3518 B

17

18

Hong Kong International Airport Design and Build
Contract for Automated Car Park A at Hong Kong
Boundary Crossing Facilities (HKBCF) Phase 1
(Contract C21W02)
BEERESERRRBEENRERIFES AR
B (£#C21wW02)

Hong Kong International Airport Contract C21W21
— Automated Car Park B at Hong Kong-Zhuhai-
Macao Bridge (HZMB) Hong Kong Port (Phase 1)
EEBERESERRABEEQR (—H) B
Bi5 BEA (AHC21W21)

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

19

20

Hong Kong International Airport Multipurpose
Building in Remaining Midfield Area, Hong Kong
(Contract C19WO05)
EREERBESTSTERRESZARAE (5D
C19W05)

Three-runway System Project — Fire Training Facility
at Hong Kong International Airport, Hong Kong
(Contract 3307)

ERBEBRIS =B RKIER — BhHIREE (&
#)3307)

20



Infrastructure EB ZE R

21 Central Kowloon Route — Kai Tak East, Hong Kong

FEBNLBERER — RE

22 Fanling North New Development Area, Phase 1 —
Fanling Bypass Eastern Section, Hong Kong

EEMELMERES BER —HERERR

23 Siu Ho Wan Depot Property Development (MTRC
Contract 1732) — Cable Bridges and Associated
Civil Works for Cable Diversion, Tung Chung, Hong
Kong
BHEANERER1732 — BB R B/ EEERERE
BESBEMEELIATE

24

2023 PROJECT OV

—_—

22
T

23-

North East New Territories Landfill Extension, Hong
Kong (Contract No.: EP/SP/77/15)
BEENMARIHEEEBERTEIRE CGRREAANR
5%: EP/SP/77/15)

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 &k 9
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OJECT OVERVIEW
FERBEHRE

Green and Sustainability & & & A5 &E 5

25

26

27

Design, Build & Operate Contract for the
Additional District Cooling System at the Kai Tak
Development, Hong Kong
EREREEREMEEEM L ERRT BERE
BEa

Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site —
Construction of Grey Water Treatment Plant, Hong
Kong
EARARERBOBBSAMER — RKEEREE
T

Yuen Long Effluent Polishing Plant — Main Works
for Stage 1, Hong Kong
BBETEAF KR — FE—BREBIRE

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBAR AT

28

26.
2'-

Lamma Power Station Extension — Civil Works for
No.5 Intake and Cable Bridge

MY RERBEISS — SHEBKRARENEER
TARTE

Civil Works for Re-provision of Open Cycle Gas
Turbine at Lamma Power Station

BYREREFRANAERARBHRALATRE
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Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Annual Report of Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company was
about HK$22 million (2022: HK$36 million). Our shareholders’
fund at the year end was approximately HK$1,732 million or
about HK$0.44 per share. Cash, bank balances and deposits
stood at about HK$1,238 million. Revenue for this year was
about HK$9,478 million (2022: HK$12,554 million), a decrease
of about 25% compared with that of last year. The board of
directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend.

During the year, the Group secured new contracts with a total
value of about HK$7,481 million (2022: HK$8,609 million),
a decrease of approximately 13% from last year. As at year
end, the value of contracts on hand was about HK$45,467
million, down by approximately 14% as compared with the
corresponding amount as at 31 March 2022. Subsequent to the
year end, the Group further secured new contracts with a total
value of approximately HK$9,838 million.

The Group has for some time actively participated in the
development and the application of innovation technologies
to keep in step with the digitalisation of the construction
industry, including the use of Modular Integrated Construction
(MiC) and Building Information Modelling (BIM). Our Group is
proud to be the first class of graduates completing the globally
recognised “BSI BIM Professional Training in Project Information
and Asset Information” this year. The Group is committed to
explore sustainable growth of our business through adoption of
innovative technologies.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERWE

BEURR:

RARAR BTREREZXEEAR
RA([RRAEREMBRR[A
SEDEBEE-_T-_=F=A=+—H1I
FREZFRe

RARHE ABGFERFLAF2,2008
BIL(ZEZ—F:3,6008F7L) - NF
EHOBREESHBITINEBTHER
#0448 LB RITEBRTEROAE
12.38B B - WAL F R D H25% F 4
94.78BB L (ZF = —F : 125.5418 %
L) BEEZE ([EFg ) TEHRE KRN

I+

=

n
X /& ©

C

FERN AEEESHEENTASIEET
WA (ZT =5 :86.098%7T) -
BRERMPH13% - RFEHER FHANE
B#A454.67BBIL BT -_—F=4
=+ BREFTHKN14% - FAERR
REEE — FERISH98.38EATTZH A
#o

RNEE—FHAKREGR S HEA KM A
FAEBEMER ZEMEEFHBELND
K ERREERAIAREEK]BER
(MIOTMBEERFEEREBIM) - KNEEH
REENSFRAERTHREBERT
[BSI BIM Professional Training in Project
Information and Asset Information ] #J
BEA - SEBBAE R R AR
REBHAFEER-
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERW|E

2023 marked the end of the COVID-19 pandemic in Hong Kong
and the reopening of Hong Kong's border with China which
was a welcomed event for the construction industry and it
brought with it the easing of the tight supply of construction
materials. The Group is optimistic for its business with the HKSAR
Government’s continued focus on increasing availability of land
for housing, which has seen the introduction of the light public
housing scheme, the planning of large-scale infrastructure,
including the Northern Metropolis and Kau Yi Chau Artificial
Islands, and the labour importation scheme. These are all stimuli
for stable growth in the construction market in the long run.

As a people business a healthy and safe workplace for our
employees is imperative. During the year, the Group was proud
to receive a number of industry awards for our good safety
performance in occupational health and safety on a number
of projects, including “Innovation Awards for Safety and
Environmental Excellence (IASEE) — Silver Award” and “Public
Works — New Works — Merit Award” at the 28th Considerate
Contractors Site Award Scheme (CCSAS) jointly organised by
Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council for the
Design and Construction of Redevelopment of Queen Mary
Hospital (Phase 1) — Main Works. Paul Y. Construction Company,
Limited, Paul Y. Foundation Limited and Paul Y. Construction &
Engineering Co. Limited, our subsidiaries, were recognised with
the “Hong Kong Construction Association (HKCA) Proactive
Safety Contractor Award” at the HKCA Construction Safety
Awards 2022.

I would like to take this opportunity express my thanks to
the Board, management team and all our staff for their
dedication and perseverance in the recent challenging market
conditions. Despite the difficult global economic environment,
we will continue to explore and pursue the available business
opportunities for sustainable growth to create greater benefits
for our clients and stakeholders.

Chan Fut Yan
Chairman (Executive Director)
Hong Kong, 8 August 2023

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED REZZ£EBBRA A
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

O
I

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to report the annual results of Paul Y. Engineering
Group Limited (the “Company” and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”)) for the year ended 31 March 2023, together with
comparative figures for the corresponding period in 2022. The
consolidated statements of profit or loss, profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, financial position, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Group, all of which are audited, together with
explanatory notes, are set out on pages 69 to 198 of this report.

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND
POSITIONS

During the year under review, the management contracting
business of the Group has slightly dropped in terms of order book
value and client base. At the year end, the value of contracts on
hand was approximately HK$45,467 million, with the addition
of newly awarded contracts with a value of approximately
HK$7,481 million. We are pleased to be selected on a solo basis
and in joint venture for diverse projects in different sectors
from housing to infrastructure, including Construction of Public
Housing Development at Tung Chung Area 103, Civil Works for
Re-provision of Open Cycle Gas Turbine at Lamma Power Station,
North Lantau Transfer Station and Outlying Islands Transfer
Facilities Second Follow-On Contract and Tung Chung East
Station and Associated Enabling Works for Track Diversions, and
to be able to contribute to providing homes for the people of
Hong Kong and to its sustainable evolution as a modern day city.

We are pleased to see that Hong Kong has returned to normalcy
after the end of the COVID-19. However, the conflict in Ukraine
lingers and continues to have an adverse impact of the world
economy. We have all been through a very difficult few years
and challenging market conditions. The Group will continue
to focus on optimising our portfolio and operational efficiency
by diversified and flexible business strategies balanced with
prudent risk management in view of the challenging business
environment.

TTHRHRE

BEURR:

KAMRAR BETERREZEEERS
BRAR ([AAR)] REWBAR ([AE
B )BE-—ZEZ-_=f=A=+—H1
FEZEFEFE URZZE-_FRHEN
IERBF AEEZHGEEBEER HFRE1E
m=REMEEmREER SEFBRRIE .
REEREHR URGERERER"
VI W EH A 2K FIHR A
REFEIBEE198E °

B35 R B KR B R

REBFERN AEBFREEEHNT
BANERTPETMEA TE - RELH
H- FHEEORELNIS4.67(EET BN
K7TABVEABTTHFHAKN AEBEREKE
NBINARGERARGHFEESEZ
HESTEAH BRERBICEAER
EERRE BV EERELFARAER
MRmEAT AT LRI EYEE
NS ENEEREE _HTESL
RRACARBRBEETIRRIER
BOHBEBE LIRS BRERK/BFEM
RIEEHLZE M T REBES—ERK
WA HERRELER -

2019 BB B H R BT 1K - AP
LABZEHBRE - BEARNBESHRE
B U RABRBKENFA —ENAER
BoF B EEHRELEKBE
MTEIRL BH SR AREe%
BEBRZTERBEANEHRE KEE
EWRERER W AEEEBHES EX
P EERBERIETT -
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
THRRKRE

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue of approximately HK$9,478 million (2022:
HK$12,554 million), representing a decrease of approximately
25% from that of the last year as a result of the decrease in
the contracts awarded last year and the effect of the fifth wave
of COVID-19 on the progress of the projects at the beginning
of this financial year. Accordingly, the gross profit decreased
by approximately 6% to approximately HK$403 million (2022:
HK$429 million) despite the gross margin was improved slightly
to about 4.2% (2022: 3.4%). Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$22 million (2022:
HK$36 million).

The Group has maintained a strong financial position with total
assets of approximately HK$9,301 million. Current assets were
approximately HK$8,888 million, representing approximately 1.2
times the current liabilities. The equity attributable to owners of
the Company stood at approximately HK$1,732 million. Net cash
used in operating activities was about HK$810 million and net
cash from investing and financing activities was approximately
HK$1,104 million, resulting in a net increase in cash and cash
equivalents of about HK$294 million for the year.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Management Contracting division remained the core business
and the major contributor of revenue this year. Revenue of
this division amounted to approximately HK$9,448 million
(2022: HK$12,529 million), down by about 25%. It reported
an operating profit of approximately HK$204 million (2022:
HK$251 million). As at 31 March 2023, the value of contracts on
hand was approximately HK$44,804 million, while the value of
remaining works had stood at approximately HK$24,364 million.

During the year under review, the Management Contracting
division secured new construction contracts with an aggregate
value of approximately HK$7,187 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 14% as compared to the amount of
approximately HK$8,328 million for last year. Subsequent to the
year end, the division secured further contracts of approximately
HK$9,838 million. Set out below are some of the new contracts
secured during the year and up to the date of this report:

o Construction of Public Housing Development at Tung Chung
Area 103

o Main Contract for dedicated Rehousing Estate at Hung Shui
Kiu Phase I

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED REZZ£EBBRA A

B2 - =F=-A=+—HIEFE &K
EEEBHEARALYMTSEE L (ZE
T ZF 1255418 L) BREFRIL
25% YRR EFEER ZHEHRL &
2019F A BMRASEREARRBELE
HERAF BBV ZEEMS AL E
TR L 46%EH4.03EB L (T ==
F42B8BL) BEENERAEES
EHA2% (ZB - —F :3.4%) c AT
wWE ABEFEEFEL A2,2008 8 T
(ZE-—%:3,6008/87T) °

AEEGTBARRIELRE  EEBLEL93.01
BB T REEE 4 £88.88E % 7t » 1
ERRBABI2E - AAREA AR
HEDRNI7RER T - ARELEERZ
ReFHAAESI10EBL MREKER
REEH RS FENBI.0MES T
WERZzRe AR EEIERHEFYH
294187 T 2 FILIE o

EHomE

EEEEBAMARAEBR 2 T BEK -
MERFE 2 FZWRARR  ZEPFIHA
#)3ELA8B B T (ZE Z =4 :125.29
BATT) M HI25% o ZEBPIEREBEE
K B2.04ERB T (ZFEZF:2.51
BAET) R-_TE-_=¢6=A=+—8"
HFBEANEELL448.0418H8 T MEET
TiREBERERFL243.6428 7T

CIEASE E N - FEE B APIRES 2 FEEE
IRANBEHNRNSIEETL BEF
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o Management Contract for No.5 A Kung Ngam Village Road
5AKN3.0-1

o Demolition, Hoarding and Site Investigation Work for Zung
Fu Industrial Building, Quarry Bay

o Main Contract for Subsidised Sale Flats Development at
Anderson Road Quarry Site

o Civil Works for Re-provision of Open Cycle Gas Turbine at
Lamma Power Station

o Main Contract Works for Capital Development Complex at
Pokfield Road for The University of Hong Kong

o Design and Build Contract for Automated Car Park B at
HZMB HKP (Phase 1)

o Main Contract Works for Proposed Composite Building at
Ap Lei Chau I.L. 46

Revenue of the Property Development Management division
amounted to approximately HK$30 million (2022: HK$20
million) for the year under review. The value of contracts on
hand for the division at the year end was approximately HK$663
million. During the year under review, the Property Development
Management division secured new contracts of approximately
HK$294 million.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Under its prudent funding and treasury policies, the Group
maintains a variety of credit facilities to meet requirements for
working capital. As at 31 March 2023, cash, bank balances and
deposits stood at approximately HK$1,238 million, of which
approximately HK$1,184 million, HK$31 million, HK$20 million,
HK$1 million and HK$2 million were denominated in Hong
Kong Dollars, Macau Patacas, Renminbi, Singapore Dollars and
Malaysian Ringgit respectively.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had total bank borrowings of
approximately HK$1,560 million which are repayable within one
year. All of the Group's bank borrowings bore interest at floating
rates and were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group's
gearing ratio, based on total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$1,560 million and equity attributable to owners of the
Company of around HK$1,732 million, was about 0.9 as at 31
March 2023.
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TBRRBE

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 2,029 full-time employees, excluding contracted
casual labour in Macau, as at 31 March 2023. The Group
offers competitive remuneration package that is based on
overall market rates and employee performance, as well as the
performance of the Group. Remuneration package is comprised
of salary, a performance-based bonus, and other benefits
including training, provident funds and medical coverage.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group pledged bank deposits and cash
of approximately HK$59 million and charged over the Group's
leasehold land and building in Hong Kong and benefits from
certain construction contracts to secure the general facilities
granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had contingent liabilities in respect of indemnities
of approximately HK$79 million issued to financial institutions
for bonds on construction contracts of joint operations as at 31
March 2023.

COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no significant capital
commitment in respect of acquisition of property, plant and
equipment.

SECURITIES IN ISSUE

During the year under review, an aggregate of 1,516,147,126
shares were issued by way of rights issue.

As at 31 March 2023, there were 3,957,055,118 shares in issue.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company has
resolved not to recommend a final dividend for the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: Nil).

At a meeting held on 3 April 2023, the Board proposed a special
dividend by way of distribution in specie of the entire interest
in financial assets measured at FVOCI of 28 unlisted shares in
Octagoonies Limited to shareholders on the basis of 1 share
in Octagoonies Limited for every 141,315,897 shares in the
Company held as at 3 April 2023.

OUTLOOK

Our community is returning to normalcy as the COVID-19
pandemic finally comes to an end. Although the unexpected
fifth-wave outbreak dealt a severe blow to the economy, we are
pleased to see the number of opportunities for new projects
has been on the rise since the cessation of all restrictions. Last
year, Hong Kong had a record high unemployment rate, but the
situation this year has turned around drastically as there is now a
labour shortage across most industries, which an indication that
the economy is on the road to recovery.

The HKSAR Government has recently introduced a number of
policies to support housing development in the city. In addition
to the Northern Metropolis Development Strategies mentioned
last year, the HKSAR Government has also implemented the Light
Public Housing policy with emphasis on the adoption of MiC to
expedite the delivery of homes to end users.

To achieve sustainable growth, the Group will continue to explore
the adoption of new innovative technologies to enhance our
business operations in terms of safety, efficiency and quality.
We will keep a close eye on market trends to keep apace with
the digitalisation of the construction industry and the ensuing
requirements in terms of qualifications and competencies.

We will continue to attract, nurture and retain young talents
to the industry with our dedicated platforms PYLOT and Paul
Y. Campus. These platforms play a significant role in providing
young talent with professional training and opportunities to
experience corporate life from top to bottom. We understand
that the industry needs to be revitalised to be sustainable and this
is dependent on new blood joining and staying in the industry.
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As always the health and safety of our people is imperative and
to this end we must ensure a safe working environment for
everyone. With climate change affecting the Earth and posing a
hazard to the health and safety to those working in construction,
the focus is on the implementation of Heat Stress Relief Measures
to protect our people during extreme hot weather conditions.
The safeguarding of the health and wellbeing of everyone is
paramount.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank
our Board members, management team and employees for their
commitment and hard work during the past year. | am grateful to
all our employees for their concerted efforts to ensure business
continuity during some challenging times. The Group will
continue to pursue sustainable construction solutions and growth
to create lasting benefits and value for our shareholders and
stakeholders.

Lee Hang Wing, James
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)
Hong Kong, 8 August 2023
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
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AN ADAPTABLE BUSINESS STRATEGY TO
CORPORATE SUSTAINABILITY

Paul Y. Engineering Group (“the Group”), a reputable
engineering and property service provider in Hong Kong,
recognises the importance of sustainability for long-term growth.
Sustainability entails being fully conscious of our responsibilities
for taking care of our people, the environment and the local
community. As a responsible corporate citizen, we are constantly
working to research, develop and adopt innovative technology
and methodology in our business activities and to practice sound
corporate governance to reduce the environmental impact of our
growing operations on the communities in which we work.

In order to provide environmental, social and economic benefits
to the community and our stakeholders, the Group firmly
upholds industry best practices and international standards.
Environmental, social and governance considerations are key to
our business with operational practices, quality management,
employee development, community investment, health and safety
and environmental protection high on our agenda. Additionally,
we continue to keep apace with the development and the
application of construction innovations and technologies to
improve business efficiency, site safety and quality.

This annual Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Report describes

the CSR initiatives and activities of the Group and respective
progress during the financial year of 2023.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED REZEEBER QA
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group’s ability to operate sustainably is based on our
commitment to sound and effective corporate governance.
In order to protect the needs and interests of the Group and
its stakeholders, the Group upholds the highest standard of
corporate governance practices, business ethics and integrity in
full compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and industry
standards of the jurisdictions in which we operate. We implement
operational policies and procedures and an effective system
of internal control procedures, including taxation, regulatory,
financial and organisational checks and balances over our
taxation, accounting and record keeping practices and other
business processes. The Group implements a Code of Conduct to
provide guiding principles for all employees to do what is right
and to adopt good practices for conducting business in an ethical
way with the highest integrity and fairness. A whistleblowing
mechanism is in place for employees and the Group’s business
contacts to report to the Group in respect of any improprieties
that may exist in the Group’s business operation.

SUSTAINABILITY GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The long-standing CSR Committee of the Group, which includes
a number of management staff from various departments and
disciplines, is committed to assuring the effectiveness and
relevancy of our CSR policies and strategies. Moreover, specific
committees, including Quality Management Committee and
Safety & Environmental Committee, are led by the Group’s
top management to supervise and ensure compliance with
all guidelines and principles to promote a safe and healthy
workplace as well as environmental protection.

QUALITY MANAGEMENT

The Group's quality management system (“QMS") emphasises
the importance of “control” and “delivery”. In terms of
“control”, which means advance planning, guided execution,
structured quality control (“QC") inspections, regular
management reviews, and continual improvement using the
Plan-Do-Check-Act cycle, for timely deliveries of quality buildings
and services to our clients.
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OPERATIONAL PRACTICES
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The respective project teams with quality assurance (“QA") and
quality control ("QC") services are set up under the Quality
Management — Control and Delivery Department (“QMCDD").
QA services focus on the QMS planning, establishment,
operation, and audit, whilst QC services aim at the providing
independent inspections on completed building construction
works at different stages and locations of the projects. Besides,
QMCDD manages defect rectification works during a project
defect liability period, so that key problems could be figured out,
and their respective root causes could be identified for corrective
actions.

To strengthen the effectiveness of QC services, QMCDD analyses
the findings noted from the inspections, in order to identify the
gaps for continual improvement.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Our approach to supply chain management is underpinned by our
values to ensure the delivery of high-quality products and services
through the engagement of business partners from a pool of
approved suppliers and sub-contractors. We are committed
to maintaining an ethical, responsible and sustainable supply
chain in collaboration with our business partners — suppliers,
sub-contractors and service providers to ensure synergy in our
partnerships and sustainability value. Our senior management
closely monitors the selection and appraisal process of our
business partners, regularly assesses and records relevant
performances to ensure service quality and stability of deliveries,
of which safety, environmental and quality performance are top
priorities for such assessment. Potential business partners are
invited to submit tenders based on the specifications of relevant
projects and to make submissions for the Quality, Health and
Safety Questionnaires assessment. Regular reviews are conducted
to ensure that our business partners continue to have the
capability and capacity to provide stable and reliable services
and products and sufficient knowledge of our core values and
comply with our policies and systems, such as ISO 9001 Quality
Management System, Code of Conduct, etc.

DATA PROTECTION, PRIVACY, AND INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY RIGHTS

The Group protects commercially sensitive information and
confidential data of our stakeholders by strengthening its
information security controls. Non-disclosure agreements are
required from our supply chain and other business partners
before information relating to tenders, contracts and other
transactions are released to prevent the unauthorised disclosure
of confidential and commercially sensitive information. In
compliance with data privacy laws and regulations, the Group
adopts a data collection system to equip our business with the
most pertinent and timely data collection for optimisation of
our operations. Information and data about our clients are well
protected by our internal administration system.
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The Group is committed to protecting the privacy of our
employees, subcontractors, and clients in accordance with our
Code of Conduct and applicable regulations, including but
not limited to the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486
of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group also formulates and
establishes procedures to protect intellectual property rights,
such as trademark registration, and to comply with related legal
requirements.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Building and ensuring a culture of integrity and acceptable
behaviour for doing business has long been a major component
in the Group’s corporate governance practices. All directors,
officers and employees of the Group must comply with the
Group's Code of Conduct, which captures the way the Group
sets out the principles for acceptable behaviour for doing
business and the way the Group expresses its values and beliefs
regarding operating ethics and employee conduct. The Code
covers issues in relation to the Competition Ordinance, bribery
and corrupt practices, and conflicts of interest. Any breaches
of the Code shall be handled in strict accordance with internal
disciplinary procedures.

The Group provides regular anti-corruption training to all newly
joined employees at all levels. We have invited Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC") speaker to deliver
training via online and in-person mode to enhance the awareness
of anti-corruption practices and acceptable standards of ethical
conduct in carrying out the business in accordance with our
Code of Conduct. During the year, there was no report on any
suspected case of impropriety, corruption or violation by any of
our staff of any of the relevant laws.

The Group is a participant in the Construction Integrity Charter
2.0, which was jointly launched by the Development Bureau,
the Independent Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) and the
Construction Industry Council, to promote integrity management
through implementation of integrity policy and integrity training.
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The Group is a participant in the Integrity Charter 2.0, which was
jointly launched by the Development Bureau, the Independent
Commission Against Corruption and the Construction Industry
Council, to promote integrity management through
implementation of integrity policy and integrity training.
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The MARS Centre is a comprehensive industrial building designed specifically for
the local medical industry, especially to support the fight against pandemic
diseases. The facility boasts impressive features such as certified ISO-8 clean
rooms, compressed air supply, 24-hour AC chilled water supply, industrial 3-phase
power supply, and an epoxy floor that can accommodate floor loading of up to
7.5 kPa for industrial equipment. It was designed to meet the client’s needs while
adhering to the strict regulatory requirements of the Buildings Department (BD)
system.

Despite the project's complexity and tight time frame, Paul Y. was able to
successfully transform an old factory building into a modern medical equipment
manufacturing centre in less than a year, thanks to meticulous planning,
adherence to regulatory requirements, and a strong commitment to quality and
efficiency. The project involved repair and retrofitting works, such as demolition,
partitioning, structural strengthening, clean room construction, and fitting out.
Additionally, a five-story annex building was constructed with piling within the site
boundary. To meet the tight time frame requirement, Paul Y. utilised the BD minor
work system, which classified the A&A works into 13 types with specific criteria
and limitations that must be followed. It was crucial to plan ahead and have all
these clearly defined to ensure first-time-right project execution.

To ensure stringent quality standards were met, the Quality Management —
Control and Delivery Department (QMCDD) provided comprehensive training to the
construction team on the BD minor work system. The Minor Work Authorized
Signatory (AS) conducted training classes and monitored submissions to ensure
they adhered to the guidelines. This ensured that all work records were prepared
along with the A&A process and achieved quality and timely delivery, meeting
QMCDD's core philosophy of Control and Delivery.

To further optimise project’s efficiency, Paul Y. adopted 3D scanning to produce
accurate as-built 3D models of the entire building services system. LIDAR sensors
were used to collect point data by spraying light beams on all objects within the
field of view, resulting in a point cloud with XYZ measurements on every point.
This data was then reconciled with digital photos to create a precise 3D model of
the site, allowing for a safer, faster, and more efficient documentation of structure
or environment data. In addition, off-site prefabricated items were utilised to
further optimise the project’s efficiency and reduce construction waste.

The flexible implementation of the BD system, off-site prefabrication, and 3D
scanning helped to shorten the overall construction time and cost, ensuring that
the project was completed to the highest possible standards. The resulting MARS
Centre, with its impressive features and adherence to regulatory requirements, is a
remarkable testament to Paul Y.’s commitment to quality and efficiency in the
construction industry.
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Employee development
ET%R

A FRIENDLY, FAIR AND INCLUSIVE WORKPLACE

Since people are the most valuable asset of a business, creating
a joyful and harmonious work atmosphere is essential for the
wellbeing of every employee. We strive to inspire our staff to
give their best efforts in order to provide high-quality work and
services.

The Group adheres to all employment laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the Employment Ordinance (Cap.
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Cap. 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong), and
the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Cap. 608 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), placing great emphasis on the protection of the legitimate
rights and interests of all employees. Regardless of race, religion,
gender, sexual orientation, marital status, family status, or
disability, we follow internal guidelines that state our policies
on recruitment, training and promoting people based on their
qualifications, experience, skills, potential and performance.
As an equal opportunities employer, we support inclusion and
diversity in the workplace and do not tolerate discrimination
in any form. Our business operations strictly forbid the use of
child labour or forced labour of any kind. To guarantee that
all employees are treated fairly and with respect, we have
established policies and procedures. The Group had 2,029
full-time employees at its highest point during the year, and our
attrition rate was on average of 23.37%.

The Group offers competitive remuneration and benefits and
implements a series of individual and family-friendly policies
and practices, including additional leave to annual and other
statutory leave such as compensation, marriage, compassionate
and family care leave to help employees balance their work and
personal lives. The Group has optimised a series of employee
benefits, including annual leave, minimal Saturday working,
overtime compensation, etc. In addition, the Group strives to
create a harmonious working environment for employees through
organisation of various activities such as festive and social
functions, volunteer work and team sports events for staff and
their families.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
ETHE

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

We respect our employees and are dedicated to promoting
their well-being and growth through our people development
strategies. The Group is fully committed to people development
and fostering a culture of continuous learning and personal
development. We provided training in virtual and hybrid modes
and offered 18,519 training hours in 2022-2023. Paul Y. Campus
approved 10 applications for education subsidies for bachelor’s
degrees or master’'s degrees to support staff's continuous
learning and development. We offered different training courses,
such as BIM, BEAM Pro and NEC accreditation, to ensure our
staff have the essentials skills and knowledge required by the
construction industry.

PYLOT was invited to a secondary school share the
recent trends in the construction industry.

long-term contributions.
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Our group organised the Long-Service Award
Presentation Ceremony to recognise employees’
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The Group signed the Racial Diversity and Inclusion
Charter for Employers of the Equal Opportunities
Commission as part of our commitment to foster
an inclusive and fair workplace.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
ETHE

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING STATISTICS
ERREIFHE

Geographical Distribution of Employees (%) Employment Type (%)
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT
ETHE

Training Hours of Different Employee

18 8 38 5 &35 3 i

2

Middle Management
HREERAE

@ Average Training Hours Note:
I I BB R

M5 -
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Categories

Executive Management
EREEAE

General Staff
—MRET

The total number of employees’ training hours is 18,519. The graphics
indicate the average training hours (including in-house training courses
and external training courses arranged by the Training Department) of each
employee category.
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m SPOTLIGHT
QN & EERRBREAS

People are the key to business success. Hence, the Group is committed to engaging
with and cultivating young talents through different approaches and strategies.
The Group also strives to help all employees to grow and achieve their career
goals.

BEST HR Awards 2022

The Best HR Awards, organised by CTgoodjobs with 33 award categories, aims to
recognise outstanding talent acquisition and development, encouraging innovation
and excellence among enterprises. The Group was delighted to be awarded the
Grand Prize of “Best Graduate and Management Trainee Programme Award” and
“Best Talent Management Strategy Award”, which acknowledged the success of
our training programme and talent management strategies.

PYLOT

Since its establishment last year, PYLOT has focused on work-life balance and
wellbeing of our younger employees by organising a variety of recreational
activities such as yoga classes, coffee tasting workshop, hiking and Touch Rugby
workshop, to keep them motivated and energised. The Group will also organise
technical sharing and preparation workshops for their future professional
development.

BSI BIM Professional

Paul Y. is aware of the growing significance of smart construction. We work to
integrate BIM throughout the entire construction process, and we support our
employees in developing their professional knowledge by encouraging continuous
learning. Our CEO Mr James Lee and 23 coworkers are the first group of graduates
to complete the BSI accredited training and earned the BIM Asset Professional
accreditation.

E&M Conference

Engineering staff must possess all-round knowledge and code of conduct. To
address this, 65 engineers and project managers from E&M Department attended a
one-day conference with a sharing session by Raymond Chu, Director — Contract
Services from BK SURCO, on the integrated project management techniques and
contractual awareness, alongside with an integrity seminar and a sharing on safety
measures when working at different conditions.
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EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

ETHE

NURTURING AND RETAINING TALENT
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
BEZERER

Occupational health
and safety

BREZENEE

SAFETY EDUCATION AND PROMOTION

The Group places the health and safety of its employees as
a top priority. The Group has implemented a comprehensive
safety management system, supported by the “Safety, Health,
Environmental and Quality Policy,” which sets out the latest
legal and contractual requirements to ensure that employees are
familiar with and strictly adhere to relevant health and safety
measures. The Group adheres to ISO 45001 certification, and
our management system ensure a safe and healthy working
environment by adopting the highest level of occupational safety
and health standards in all planning, design, and construction
processes. In addition, The Group has established a safety
and environmental committee led by senior management with
regular meetings to oversee occupational safety and health
affairs, and to monitor the safety performance. In 2022, The
Group subsequently launched multiple measures to conduct
safety audits and make improvement suggestions after a
serious site safety incident, including conducting quarterly
senior management safety inspections and safety management
workshops for middle-level and frontline staff.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

SITE SAFETY MEASURES

The Group strives to promote a safety culture through regular
training and publicity activities. To ensure a safe working
environment, the Group has taken corresponding safety measures
based on different site conditions and activity risks, we also
conduct weekly safety inspections and monitoring to assess,
control, reduce, and eliminate engineering risks and safety
hazards. Regular safety workshops, seminars, and publicity
activities are aimed at raising employees’ safety awareness,
ensuring that employees have a full understanding of safety
guidelines and procedures, and improving the work behaviour.
Last year, we also participated in safety promotion activities
organised by the industry to learn about the latest trends and
improve our safety management methods.

SMART SITE SAFETY SYSTEM

The Group has introduced a Smart Site Safety System in addition
to the aforementioned construction site safety measures. The
system allows the engineering team to understand the overall
situation of the site by collecting real-time data which is
transmitted to the site via a one-stop management platform. It
will also alert employees when any safety risk or danger detected.
In addition, it will collate all pertinent information and conduct
an analysis of the safety performance in the site giving a better
understanding of the overall site conditions and the ability to
modify site safety measures to mitigate or eliminate risks.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY
BEZ2RREE

WORK INJURY STATISTICS I {E#& it &=

Type of Work Injuries
IEER

Fatal

B

Non-fatal

FEH A

Type of Work Injuries
IHEER

Average lost days per case due to work injuries

SBEIGERNTFHERTERER

Number of Work Injuries

BR&E
1

78

Number of Days
A#

170

SAY NO TO HEAT STROKE DURING HOT SUMMER

|[.]I SPOTLIGHT 1 SAY S
- R RRXEB OFBHRT

In response to the "Guidance Notes on Prevention of Heat Stroke at Work”
issued by the Labour Department, our management team immediately established
the Heat Stress Management Committee (HSMC) and formulated a heat stress
management system (HSMS) including a Heat Stress Management Plan (HSMP) to
ensure the safety and well-being of site personnel are well managed.

The HSMP implemented a series of effective heat stroke preventive measures across
all of our construction sites: including provision of portable shading equipment
and shaded rest area for workers, additional rest period during the day, allocation
of additional mobile water stations within 500m, provision of shower facilities
along with waist fans, ice pads, helmet shades for cooling purposes, additional
blowers, solar fans, and evaporative air coolers added to increase ventilation across
sites. Additional training and promotions such as ice cream truck, watermelon and
electrolyte drinks distribution were arranged on site to promote awareness and
understanding of heat stress and its related risks to all site personnel.

A comprehensive emergency response procedure was also put in place to ensure
our frontline supervisors, foremen, and subcontractor’s representatives are trained
to recognise the signs and symptoms of heat stress and immediate assistance could
be provided.

The HSMS incorporates checks and balances to ensure the well-being of our site
personnel and the community remains our top priority in creating efficient and
productive site progress achieve a win-win goal.
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

Iﬁ. SPOTLIGHT 2 -
- RE 2 [ — THERZE12023

The “Life First” campaign was first introduced by the Construction Industry
Council in 2020 with this year’s theme being “Life First — Walk the Talk”. It aims to
enhance safety awareness in the construction industry and raise safety standards
on sites. As a major player in the construction industry, the Group fully supports
and actively participates in the activities of this campaign including the kick-off
of the “Life First” campaign being led by the top management of each project
site, review of recent serious accidents in the industry, site safety inspections and
safety training for high-risk activities, to demonstrate the leadership spirit of “Walk
the Talk”. Safety is a personal commitment and everyone, including the client,
project management team and frontline staff and workers are and must be actively
involved in compliance, improving the safety culture and uplifting the safety
standard on site.

BEZE2REE

“LIFE FIRST - WALK THE TALK" 2023
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Environmental Protection
IRIERE

As a service provider and corporate citizen in one of the major
industries in Hong Kong, the Group recognises that it has an
important role to play in environmental protection and it is a key
factor to achieving corporate and social sustainability. The Group
proactively incorporates sustainable initiatives and practices into
our business operations. We have embarked upon a sustainability
journey with the engagement of different stakeholders and have
come up with various holistic approaches.

To ensure a good environmental performance and the
sustainability of our operations, the Group places great emphasis
on green procurement and resources management, energy
conservation, waste reduction and recycling and has adopted,
and strictly complied with, international standards for
environmental and energy management systems, including the
ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 standards.

The Group has issued an Energy Policy Statement to ensure that
employees at all levels effectively implement prescribed energy
management measures and take responsibility for their respective
performance.

We purchase products that cause minimal adverse environmental
impacts, including the selection of Grade 1 energy efficiency
label air-conditioners with environmental-friendly refrigerants and
the usage of solar mosquito-trapping devices to maximise the
utilisation of renewable energy.

To reduce resource consumption and carbon emissions, the
Group gives preference to the use of electrical equipment with
Grade 1 energy efficiency labels on its construction sites to avoid
wastage of electricity. Besides, the Group adopts B5 diesel and
deploys Enertainer, an advanced energy storage system (smart
battery) which provides diesel-free power on construction sites,
to reduce diesel consumption.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED REZEEBER QA
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To enhance water efficiency, we use recycled wastewater for dust
suppression and wheel washing systems on site and as
consequence water consumption has been significantly reduced.

The Group prioritises the use of high-quality equipment certified
by the Environmental Protection Department and monitors
exhaust emissions on a regular basis.

With the aim of achieving digitalisation of workflow and to
ultimately go paperless, cloud-based real-time drawing
management systems for construction sites have been adopted
and Project Management Information System (PMIS)
implemented to store and manage drawings and documentation
electronically. In addition, we also ensure that stringent waste
management systems are in place throughout the project life
cycle.

The Group aims to drive sustainable construction by the adoption
of advanced construction technologies. We have constantly been
devoting resources to Building Information Modelling (BIM)
development in terms of capability, accreditation and application.
We have been certified as BIM Level 2 compliant and awarded
the 1SO 19650 Certificate by the British Standards Institution
(BSI). In addition, we have adopted the use of modular
integrated construction (MiC) to reduce waste on site and for
efficiency.

One of our Group-wide environmentally friendly and sustainable
measures was the roll out on our projects of a sustainable
construction scheme called “InTech Workplace”. This involves the
use of renewable energy sources to reduce carbon emission and
the enhancement of site office environment and facilities to help
improve productivity, efficiency and quality. Also, training is
provided to staff and workers to enhance their environmental
awareness. The technologies adopted include Energy
Benchmarking Platform and NCCO Air Purification.

Our Additional District Cooling System at the Kai Tak
Development project has implemented MIMEP construction
method for installing large water pipe modules and large-scale
travelling band screens to save energy and carbon emission.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
RIBIRE

GREEN PROJECT

In recent years, the Group has undertaken several conservation
projects, including Jessville and The Mills, to contribute to the
preservation of heritage buildings with historical value in the
community. In addition, we are undertaking various green
infrastructure projects, including Additional District Cooling
System at the Kai Tak Development, Yuen Long Effluent Polishing
Plant and Construction of Grey Water Treatment Plant for
Anderson Road Quarry Development. These public works projects
adopt innovative technologies to develop greener and more
cost-effective facilities, which actively contribute to reducing
Hong Kong's carbon footprint.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

IRIBIRE
RESPONSE TO CLIMATE CHANGE FE ¥ R R B 1L
Extreme heat and typhoons are two of the risks associated with FRRALBEREDBEMERZE RS

climate change that are addressed in our Safety Management
Plan and Environmental Management Plan, which involves
training, regular health checks, the distribution of heat
stress-related materials, the use of renewable energy and

emergency drills, among other things.

The Group’s site offices are
constructed using the Modular
Integrated Construction (MiC)
method, which can be reused for
other projects and reduce waste in
landfills.
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7m SPOTLIGHT 1
Igl R

The Group constantly promotes innovative construction techniques and introduces
advanced technologies to enhance environmental efficiencies. In our joint venture
project, the Additional District Cooling System at the Kai Tak Development, a
number of environmental measures are actively implemented to reduce the
environmental impact.

For instance, we have installed 158 m? PV panels at the roof top of our MiC site
office to generate electricity. PV panels were successfully approved under the
Feed-in Tariff (FiT) scheme of CLP in March 2023.

In addition, loT smart energy control for lighting and air conditioning were also
installed in the MiC site office to reduce energy consumption.

FIRREEF S R E M IEERIRE
LR ER - BB 88 RIEI - £
FEmE REHABR ERAABERE

The MiC site office for Additional
District Cooling System at the Kai
Tak Development receives the
Good Class of the Indoor Air
Quality Certificate.
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The Group has selected 11 of our projects as pilot projects to participate in Hong
Kong Construction Association (HKCA) ESG Recognition Scheme.

With an aim to support and encourage positive initiatives in the areas of ESG, we
have implemented the Scheme on our selected project sites, which includes:-

(i) ESG Data Platform, a data entry platform for construction projects to keep
track of their ESG performance;

(ii) ESG Build Fun App, which motivates site staff and frontline workers to
participate in ESG activities to earn virtual ESG coins for redeeming gifts;
and

(iii) Innovation Incentive, financial incentive from HKCA to promote the use of

innovative measures on construction site to enhance ESG performance.

The Scheme has generated a positive response from staff and workers and has
successfully increased their environmental awareness.

AEECHENERBEARMEBER2BEER
e EERETTE

o

REXFRFBHRE e RERTENEEERE
HMEEMMEER T ERZE - 245

(i) RE HENERBIETYE RELERH
BRAFTE AREBHMERE HaRkER
xR

(ii) ESGEAFUNZRE AppEi B A2 B T R AT T
ASBRRE e REREE BRIURER -
HERERSBARIBR &

(iif) TR ERE S AR R R A
SCENFE R EL T 3 {0 PRI BT B - e e IR
BHERERRRA-

SHBEEEIRTARERRE FRHRAHS
SEEETE

Colleagues receive gifts for taking part in HKCA ESG Build Fun App

BESEFEEZEMERBFUNEE Applf EERE @

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED REZEEBER QA
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
IRIEIREE

ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE ERFRRE

Carbon Emissions Intensity
B HE BR & RE
(Tonnes CO,e) Tonnes (Tonnes per HK$ million project revenue)

(A -—E{tHER) AL (oW SEEBBTEBENKRA)
Scope 1 5,855.62 1.07
& —
Scope 2 4,073.87 0.74
s —
Scope 3 75.2 0.01
k=

Note: The figures indicate total carbon emissions and their intensities for the Group’s projects in Hong Kong, except sites without separate metering due to project
nature.
Scope 1 includes energy direct emissions;
Scope 2 includes energy indirect emissions; and
Scope 3 includes electricity used for fresh water and sewage processing.
fizE: NEBFRREEEEENTRABNARIRERETE EPTREERTIRAEMEMIAB Y REEERKENRE T -
s —RERRERIN
WIS —BERREEER: &
HE=BDERKEERITKEEZNAE -

Intensity
RE
Kg (Kg per Vehicle)
Fx= (FR/SH=E)
Sulphur Oxides Emissions from Vehicles 4.80 0.043
BROHSHRPERE
Intensity
BE
Tonnes (Tonnes per HK$ million project reve-nue)
AW (AW, SEBBTEBARA)
Non-hazardous Waste 262,476.52 47.98
BEENE
Intensity
RE
kWh (kWh per HK$ million project revenue)
T E B (TRE /SEEBTEBEKRA)
Electricity Consumption 8,435,712 1,541.87
5
Intensity
HE
Litre (Litre per HKS$ million project revenue)
F (ft/SEEBTEAKRA)
Diesel Energy Consumption 1,985,553 362.92
LmiEE
Petrol Energy Consumption 242,530 44.33
FUMFEE
Intensity
BE
m3 (m? per HK$ million project revenue)
3 T3 K (AAKR/SEEHBTEBKRA)
Water Consumption 117,871 21.54
AKE

Note: The figures indicate total sulphur oxide emissions of private vehicles (including Company owned private cars, staff owned private cars and goods vehicles), total
non-hazardous waste, total electricity consumption, total diesel energy consumption, total petrol energy consumption of private vehicles and total water
consumption and their intensities for the Group’s projects in Hong Kong, except sites without separate metering due to project nature.

Mt UNESFRREEEEANTIREENLREASHBERE (AEARE ETEHLESR) BEEYEE BURASE QLEMEE LREMBTHRES
BRKEURHEEE EPTREERTIREAMEMTEBURESEEENRE T M-
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
ElEEttE

Community Investment
Cl g+t S

CARING FOR SOCIETY

The Group believes in giving back to the communities where
we operate and places a high value on community services.
The Group is committed to corporate social responsibility, with
a focus on community volunteering services and educational
support through charitable donations and sponsorships.

COMMUNITY SERVICES

With an in-house volunteering team, the Group has collaborated
with non-profit organisations to organise different types of
volunteering activities.

As for previous years, we have received the Caring Company logo
from the Council of Social Services, Merit Award of Construction
Industry Sports & Volunteering Programme (CISVP) Construction
Corporate Award for Activeness and Merit Award of 2022
Outstanding Social Welfare Organisation Cooperation organised
by CISVP.

EDUCATION SUPPORT

The Group recognises our responsibility to nurture the
next generation, and therefore actively supports education
programmes of tertiary institutions. During the year, the Group
provided funding support for the setting up of an academic prize
for the MSc (IPD) Programme of The University of Hong Kong.

We also sponsored the 20th Anniversary Conference of the
Centre for Innovation in Construction and Infrastructure
Development (CICID) of The University of Hong Kong, to support
continuous improvements and excellence in the industry, and
infrastructure development through innovative strategies and
techniques.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED REZEEBER QA

AELE
KERERERERBGHAE 2 AE B
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B BH2EMABRETREREBES
BRINEB BB R -

#H &R
SEARKLT —XETHM - EIELFH
HBAIFEBSBERTAS-

BEEF WMESEELERGH SR
ZH  mARBE] SR [BEXEPR
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R — BELERERIEERE] -
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TR 20 NG - 36 A H RS N i
MEETEREZRRFELEMS B
=



CHARITY

The Group has supported many charitable activities, including
making a donation to the Construction Charity Fund Integrated
Service Centre. We also participated in different volunteering
activities, including HKCA Construction Industry Lo Pan Rice
Campaign and visits to elderly.

During the year, our charitable and other donations in support
of community welfare, environmental protection and promotion
of health amounted to around HK$360,000.

Corporate Social Responsibility Report 124 & HF#R &

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
CltE+E

IH
Bk

A
BXRHZREAEEY BREAREXMH
BESEA RGP OIELER RN
MTREXRRNZEEE BHREIFERE
ERERERBUMRTE] MRERD -

\
5

~

i

FAHPARELREN  REMME
ERFEEMNBERALEMBRA K
#9/3360,000/%& 7T °

The Group encouraged our staff to participate in industry tournaments, including Construction Industry Council
(CIC) Basketball Competition 2022, CIC Table Tennis Competition 2022 and CIC Football League 2022

SESBEISNTERE BREEEXZSEREFE2022 EEEFRSEERL B0 R EEXASEH RN

Bt AR2022 °

The Group actively took part in charity events, such as “Construction Industry
Lo Pan Rice Campaign”, “Construction Industry Council Happy Run 2023"
and “Mid-Autumn elderly visit”.

SERG2EXABTNESEY M REXEIRTH ] REXFALH
2023] R [RREERDBEBAE] -
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COMMUNITY INVESTMENT
Clf- g

7m SPOTLIGHT 1

PYLOTE BE R B ZTE

We encourage our younger colleagues, PYLOT, to protect our environment in
different ways. On 11 March 2023, we arranged a hike and clean volunteering
activity on a trail from Ma On Shan to Sai Kung, to clean up rubbish and also to
raise awareness of hikers not to leave rubbish on trails to keep them clean and to
protect the environment. This volunteering event also provided a good opportunity
for members of PYLOT to bond and communicate and to relax and rest their
bodies and minds.

18 DISTRICTS LO PAN RICE

18E K & &R

Ym SPOTLIGHT 2
N &

The Group co-organised the Winter Elderly Visiting Activities with The
Neighborhood Advice-Action Council and also sponsored the “18 Districts Lo Pan
Rice”.

Apart from sponsorship, a dozen volunteers from the Group went to different
areas in the community to give away meals and sharing love within the
community. We are proud to note that 2023 is also the 11th consecutive year for
the Group to organise this activity and we will continue organising different
activities to give back to the community.

PAUL V. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBAR AT

PYLOT HIKING AND CLEANING EVENT

BPIEEPYLOTHFEREE T UTR AN RERE
RZE-_=F=A+—H8 BHELFHEBRLEAR
BENERERERETES BEENEREEZILE
TEER EEZNR UWREFBEEARRERE - T
EBINAPYLOTR BIRMEVHME - ERRF UM
RKERRIFHE -

EEEBEHEeHRAMABLERERDEY I
Zgh18EmEEIER] -

FRZB)IN RER I+ Z & & TR E TR MR IRK
R EHRADZEL - BB SMEM  2023F 5
SEEMZESNEES T —F ERMBEER
BTIREEIEELR -




AWARDS
RI15

QUALITY MANAGEMENT AWARDS

mEEERIE

Scheme Award
38 818

Hong Kong Professional Building
Inspectors Academy Awards 2022
(HKBIA)

026 ERERKEEESKE

MiC Achievement Ceremony
2022
[HEEAK ]| BE AT
2022

Hong Kong ICT Awards 2022
2022F B E M KB AR R

BCI Asia Awards Hong Kong

BCI M KRREHE

Hong Kong Professional Building
Inspectors Academy Awards 2021
2021 FERERREXBERIRE
Pk 2

NEC Awards 2022
MIIEA #9182022

Main Contractor of the “Five Stars
Residency for the Year 2022 — OMA
by the Sea”

[2022F [ A2 {RE — OMA by The
Sea | 2 fEAER

QOutstanding MiC Project
HIBERAKIER

QOutstanding People (MiC Advocator)
BEEAY (BEEKEBEEE)

Smart Mobility (Smart Logistics) Gold
Award

BEHRIT (B8R &%

Smart Business (Emerging
Technologies) Gold Award
EENEIC N 30k 3

Top Ten Contractors 2022
TREGER2022

Five Stars Residency for The Year
2021

2021 ERERESR

Setting Out Team of the Year 2021
2021 4F 5 1= 48 22 A [ [ 42

NEC Sustainability and Climate
Resilience Contract of the Year 2022
— Highly Commended

20225 E A B E RRIREE 1R
B —aEEER

Corporate Social Responsibility Report ¥4 & &FHE

Awardee

OMA by The Sea

1224-Place Student Residence at
Wong Chuk Hang for The University
of Hong Kong
EEREEMRELEBEEHEE

Lee Hang Wing, James

FEMARE

Remote e-Inspection System for Cross
Broder MiC Logistics for 1224-Place
Student Residence at Wong Chuk
Hang for The University of Hong Kong
EAERBEMNSEFESEENBER
(BEAK) BEBERYRHEREF
BB R

XenseSpace BIM-MR for Construction
XenseSpace [l R EESEITHBIM — B &
BERAE

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
REZEEEFRAA

OMA OMA

No. 15 Shouson Hill Road West
FELEFI55%

Contract No. 4/WSD/19 Development
of Anderson Road Quarry Site

— Construction of Grey Water
Treatment Plant

& HRSR4/WSD/1 9% E B B A TR A
338 R K R TR R 3 T2

AWARDS
28

Organiser

Hong Kong Professional Building
Inspectors Academy

BEEXREEE

Construction Industry Council

BEEFES

GS1 Hong Kong
EEEMRTBHE

Hong Kong Computer Society
EEEMER

BCI Central

Hong Kong Professional Building
Inspectors Academy

BEHERERE

NEC Users’ Group
HE TREOAS
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AWARDS
BRIH

HEALTH AND SAFETY AWARDS
RERZZRIF

Scheme Award
at & #815

28th Considerate Contractors Site  Non-Public Works — New Works

Award Scheme — Group A — Silver

E-t\EABLEENHE  HIHTRE —FRTR —AE— R
[
Innovation Awards for Safety and
Environmental Excellence — Merit
ZERRESHAIHE — BRE
Model Worker
HE TR
Model Frontline Supervisor
HEAARTHET
Model Subcontractor Frontline
Supervisor
RE D EREAETIHET
Non-Public Works — New Works —
Group A — Bronze
FIHIRE —HEIE —AdE — 7
%
Model Worker
HE TR
Model Frontline Supervisor
TE & AT AR THh B T
Non-Public Works — New Works —
Group B — Bronze
FIHIR —FEIIE —BE — i
%
Innovation Awards for Safety and
Environmental Excellence — Merit
RERIRBEWAIE — ERR
Model Worker
BEIR
Model Frontline Supervisor
& AT AR T B T
Model Subcontractor Frontline
Supervisor
BED ARSI HET
Public works — New Works — Silver
IHIRE —#FEITE — R
Innovation Awards for Safety and
Environmental Excellence — Merit
ZE2RRBEHAIHE — BRE
Model Worker
RE TR
Model Frontline Supervisor
R RTAR THEE T
Model Subcontractor Frontline
Supervisor
&S EREASE I E T
Public works — New Works — Merit
IHIR —MEIR —ER2%
Model Worker
B#HITR
Model Frontline Supervisor
BE IR T E T
Model Subcontractor Frontline
Supervisor
K& B R ATAR Tih 8 T
Public Works — New Works — Merit
THITE — el —EEE

PAUL V. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBAR AT

Awardee Organiser
BREN EHWEBEN

Foundation, Excavation, Lateral
Support, Pile Cap & Site Formation
Works for Yau Tong Ventilation
Building Property Development
HEBEEYEBERBEME B R
AR E BERMBRFETR

Development Bureau/
Construction Industry Council
EREAREEERS

Civil Works for 132kV Cable Circuit
Improvement from Kennedy Road to
Queen’s Road East and Queen’s Road
East to Oi Kwan Road

132kVE BREENETIR(HERE
EEFRERETHE)

Student Residence at Police School
Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong
for The University of Hong Kong Main
Contract Works
HEMRERBEBREEERF/EEX
BAEKHTRE

Central Kowloon Route — Kai Tak
East
FAE®HE — RUER

Yuen Long Effluent Polishing Plant
— Main Works for Stage 1
TURAFKEM — F—BREEIRE

Design and Construction of
Redevelopment of Queen Mary
Hospital (Phase 1) — Main Works
R RREFEBERERTIRE 8
—XTETRE



HEALTH AND SAFETY AWARDS (Continued)
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AWARDS
28

RERZZRIE (H)

Scheme Award
i 3 115

Life First 2022 Award
[Hdn 8 — | K#€2022

HKCA Proactive Safety Contractor
Awards
EERERNSREXT 2 RBE

El

Occupational Health Award
2021-22
B 2 1 B K #82021-22

Innovation Awards for Safety and
Environmental Excellence — Silver
ZE2RRBEWAIFE — RE
Model Worker

RE TR

Model Frontline Supervisor
HERFTHET

Model Subcontractor Frontline
Supervisor
REDBEARTHET

Life First 2022 Excellence Award
EE 20228 MKRE

Life First 2022 Merit Award
EmE 202282 KEE

HKCA Construction Safety Award
EREREHEREEHI TR ARER

Joyful @ Healthy Workplace Best
Practices Award (Enterprise/
Organisation Category) —
Outstanding

Award

FiEe@ERIEMALE (1 HiE
) — EREE AR

Joyful @ Healthy Workplace Best
Practices Award (Enterprise/
Organisation Category) — Merit
Award

FiEeE BRI EMALE (1 HiE
M) — RIFEEAE

Joyful @ Healthy Workplace Best
Practices Award (Enterprise/
Organisation Category) — Merit
Award
OB TERm A (X /HKis
H) — RIFEEARE

Awardee Organiser

Lamma Power Station Extension Civil
and Building Works for Unit L12
Y BREREELDLI2EMEL KRR
RETRR

Central Kowloon Route — Kai Tak
East

hARER — R

Yuen Long Effluent Polishing Plant
— Main Works for Stage 1

TRE KR — F—FRREBIRE
Paul Y. Construction Company,

Construction Industry Council
BEXEE

Hong Kong Construction

Limited Association
REZEFRAA EARERY
Paul Y. Foundation Limited

REMEFR DA

Paul Y. Construction & Engineering
Company Limited

RERZETIRBRAA

Central Kowloon Route — Kai Tak Occupational Safety and Health
East Councdil

PARER — RER BEZEHEER

Yuen Long Effluent Polishing Plant
— Main Works for Stage 1
TTRFKRNE — F—FREREEIRE

Foundation, Excavation, Lateral
Support, Pile Cap & Site Formation
Works for Yau Tong Ventilation
Building Property Development
HEBEEYEERREBEE A BER
A1) 32 - #E IR o3t R P B T A2
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AWARDS
BRIH

GREEN AWARDS
RREIE

Scheme Award
=t & 815
28th Considerate Contractors Site Outstanding Environmental
Award Scheme Management and Performance
FE_ T NEAEMEETTE Awards — Merit
BEERIREIRR — BRRK

QOutstanding Environmental
Management and Performance
Awards — Bronze

BHIREEIER — %

HKCA Environmental Merit Award
EREERRARERRE

HKCA Hong Kong Construction
Environmental Awards

EERENGEBEERRAE

PAUL V. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBAR AT

Awardee Organiser
BREMN EHWEN

Student Residence at Police School Development Bureau/
Road * Wong Chuk Hang ' Hong Kong  Construction Industry Council
for The University of Hong Kong Main ZRBREEXES
Contract Works

BEMMERBEBANBBAER S @&

BaEHNIRE

Civil Works for 132kV Cable Circuit

Improvement from Kennedy Road to

Queen’s Road East and Queen’s Road

East to Oi Kwan Road

132kVEBEEENETIZ (HREME
EEFREREZHE)

Foundation * Excavation - Lateral

Support ' Pile Cap &Site Formation

Works for Yau Tong Ventilation

Building Property Development

HEBEEYEBERBEE A B R

Al 2 5 - FE 1R it R P B T A2

Yuen Long Effluent Polishing Plant

— Main Works for Stage 1

TCEAE KR — E—BEREBIRE

Central Kowloon Route — Kai Tak

East

PAREBRR — RUR

Design and Construction of

Redevelopment of Queen Mary

Hospital (Phase 1) — Main Works
REtRRERBEERERIRE -8

— F2TE

Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong Construction
RERZEFR QA Association

Paul Y. Construction Company, BAREAS

Limited

RERZEFRAF

Paul Y. Construction & Engineering
Company, Limited
REBZETIRBRARA

Paul Y. Foundation Limited
REMEFR QA

Paul Y. General Contractors Limited
RERELEFRAA

PYE General Construction
International Limited

RELEBRBE AR AR
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AWARDS

L]
GREEN AWARDS (Continued)
RRRIE (#)
Scheme Award Awardee Organiser
=t & #2185 BREN EHWEN

UNSDG Achievement Awards UNSDG Recognised Project — Project  Fanling North New Development Green Council
2022 Award Area, Phase 1: Fanling Bypass Fastern IR{R{E3# 2
MABAHEZREZAEBHY BMABERFIRE —BEERE Section (Shung Him Tong to Kau Lung
%2022 Hang) Contract No. ND/2019/05

MElLHERRE —FR  HERER

BR(EHREZNER)EDER

ND/2019/05
The 2021 Hong Kong Awards for Hong Kong Green Innovations Awards Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited, The Environment and Ecology
Environmental Excellence and 2021 — Gold Award CLP and Ampd Energy — Battery Bureau/Environmental Campaign
Hong Kong Green Organisation ~ &E4 R AIFT ASE — 48 Energy Storage System Committee
Certification REZEEBEGRAF FEENER BREREERBIREREDEZE Y
2RFEBARFEEMAREE A7)+ Ampd Energy Limited — & F 7
B BB RE FET ) E D ERL R
Green Contractor Award 2021 Green Contractor Award 2021 Design and Construction of Architectural Services
IRR AR 7 22 ) 5t £12021 — Gold Award Redevelopment of Queen Mary Department

IRRAGER HEFT 812021 — 82 Hospital Phase | — Main Works at Pok ZEEHE
Fu Lam Road, Hong Kong
R REEFEERNERBERE
HEIREIH —FBEITE

Green Contractor Award 2021 Design and Construction of Joint-user

— Bronze Award Government Office Building in Area

RIRA R A 212021 — W5 67, Tseung Kwan O
S B R E 67 R BUT B A i A K R EE
FEEITR
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AWARDS
BRIH

CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY AWARDS

R ERKRIE

Scheme
=t &
Caring Company Logo
AARBEER

Partner Employer Award 2022/23
Rk R #772022/23

Happiness-at-Work Promotional
Scheme 2022
FO TAEfHE B 212022

Best HR Award 2022

CISVP Construction Industry
Volunteer Awards Presentation
Ceremony 2022

EEXR T8 2022

Young Lo Pan Award 2022
20225 FBIDER

Award

#R15
Caring Company 2022/2023
7R E B 2022/2023

Partner Employer Award 10 Years
Logo
RERR10+

Happy Company Logo
FO R R

& 2t
™

Best Graduate and Management
Trainee Programme Award — Grand
RESXEREEFIEBEARE
Best Talent Management Strategy
Award — Grand

REAT BERRBEAE

2021 Construction Industry Sports &
Volunteering Programme (CISVP)
Construction Corporate Award for
Activeness 2021 — Merit
202VEEXEPRE T E2FRE
BEERR-PEREBERRE

2022 Outstanding Social Welfare
Organisation Cooperation — Merit
2022 HEE T RAIR—EFLIERE
IEER R

QOutstanding Young Lo Pan Award
SEBIHE

48 PAUL V. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBAR AT

Awardee
JEREN
Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
REZXEEERQA

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
REZXEEFRAA

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
REZEEBEERAT

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
RERZEEBRAA

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
REZXEBFRAA

Paul Y. Engineering Group and Tuen
Mun District Integrated Services
Centre for the Elderly of the

Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council

REZEEEERATARMEHES

B AR A FE IR 0
Paul Y. Construction Company,
Limited

RERZERRAF

SHEREFR
REBREMARAT

Organiser
EHWEN
The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service
BT ERBHE
The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business
BREPNECEERS
Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation Hong Kong

CTgoodjobs

Construction Industry Council,
Construction Industry Sports &
volunteering Programme (CISVP)
AT BREREPRBE I

£l

Hong Kong Lo Pan Kwong Yuet
Tong
EEBMERE



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

000
iU

DIRECTORS

Chan Fut Yan, is the Chairman (Executive Director) of the
Company and has been a Director of the Company since June
2011. Mr Chan is also a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company and a Director of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He has over 46 years of business planning and
development experience in the local construction industry. He
is also a developer and investor in residential and commercial
property in the People’s Republic of China, Hong Kong, Macau
and internationally.

Lee Hang Wing, James, has been the Chief Executive Officer
(Executive Director) of the Company since April 2016. He is
also the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Company
and a Director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He has
over 30 years of experience in project management, property
development, architectural practice and corporate management.
He holds a Bachelor of Science (Architecture) and a Bachelor
of Architecture from The University of Sydney and a Diploma
in Management Studies from the University of Sunderland.
He is an Authorized Person (Architects List) under the Hong
Kong Buildings Ordinance, a Registered Architect (Hong Kong,
Macau), a Fellow Member of Hong Kong Institute of Construction
Managers, a Chartered Building Engineer of the Chartered
Association of Building Engineers, a Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Real Estate Administrators, a Professional Member of Hong
Kong Interior Design Association and an Associate Member
of Hong Kong Mediation and Arbitration Centre. Since March
and July 2021, he was appointed to represent the Hong Kong
Construction Association (HKCA) as a member of the Building
Contractors Committee and Planning Sub-Committee of Land
and Development Advisory Committee, under the Development
Bureau of The Government of the HKSAR. Since 1 April 2021
he was elected and serves as the First Vice President of HKCA
working with other members of its 71st and 72nd Council to
promote the work of the Construction Industry in Hong Kong.
He is also a member of the Fourteenth Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Guangzhou Committee.

EERSAEEERERK

=

RHER BARRAIE (RITESE) X
B-Z— R NABHEARRES 1o
MRARBZAITREEGKE  RARE]
ZRMNBRRZES -REERNMELE
REBIFRER ERNELEXBRE -
RELENMBTEARKLNE BB R
LB ZEEEREEMEERRNER
BNMEREE-

ZEE R - ANFENAREEARRQA]
THER (BTESR) N AEARRZ
WITZEBEEF  RARRZHEMEBERFR]
PEE-ZHEAREEERE MERER-
BEATKMOEETIEHHEERBI0EL
BoEThEDRBFAERMNBERNERZ
AL EERNEELBN UL EERH
BEAEEENR-MATBEEMIE
Bl (REMBE)ANZRAAL  THE
ZE(BBERBRM) BELEEMPBPTE
Fel RERBFREIRMpeTME
ETREM BFHRTRBEEE HHEM
e es FEEENRTHeRE
8 FAMETHMEBE B ALERE
HFHEMAEEE BT -_—F=AK
+t A TEAERSTIRREEEETT
EEEERINTHRERFSEERNES
HEEeRENTHWNERAZRNEZES
BEPDEKE -TEEHB T -_—FMNA
—HRR BREEEVETCESERETES
NkNREREeF—Rlek 2HES
SHBEEERENTIE-MIATEA
REGAHEERETHERENTZES
Z8-
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EEREAEEREK

Wong Kin Kay, joined the Group in February 2014. Mr Wong
is a Chief Operating Officer (Executive Director) of the building
division of the Group. He has over 20 years’ experience in
the construction industry and has taken part in various mega
projects, covering project management, architecture, interior
design and building in Hong Kong, Macau and Australia. He
holds a Bachelor of Architecture and a Bachelor of Planning &
Design from The University of Melbourne. He is also a Registered
Architect under the Architects Registration Board of Victoria,
Australia (ARBV) and a member of the Australian Institute of
Architects (RAIA).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Wong Nai Keung, Philco, joined the Group in July 2021. Ir Dr
Wong is Director of the civil division of the Group. He has over
40 years' experience in private, public and quasi-government
organisations covering multiple disciplines, including civil,
building, foundation and electrical and mechanical works in
Hong Kong, Macau, the Mainland of China and overseas. He
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from the
University of Manitoba, Canada, a Master of Engineering degree
in Construction Management and Engineering from the University
of Toronto, Canada, and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from Curtin University, Australia. He is currently the
Chairman of the Lighthouse Club Benevolent Fund Hong Kong
Branch, Visiting Professor of Tsinghua University and is a past
president of HKIE. Ir Dr Wong held various senior positions in
leading construction companies and corporations including MTR
Corporation Limited prior to joining the Group.

Lam May Lin, joined the Group in August 2018. Ms Lam is
the Group General Counsel of the Group. She is admitted as a
solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales and Australian Capital
Territory. She started her legal career in private practice in London
before joining a major contractor in Hong Kong as its in-house
solicitor. She is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong
and a practising solicitor in Hong Kong. She has over 30 years’
experience in legal, insurance, risk management, compliance and
company secretarial services in Hong Kong, Macau, China and
South East Asia. She has held public office as an adjudicator and
a member of appeal boards and tribunals for the Government of
the HKSAR. She is also a council member, and school supervisor
and manager of the Hong Chi Association, a local charitable
organisation.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT TEAM

Ng Chui Sheung, Rita, joined the Group in July 2016. Ms Ng
is the Group Commercial Director of the Group. She has over
25 years' experience in the construction industry gained in
consultant firms, developers and contractors. She is a member
of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and a Registered Cost Engineer in the
People's Republic of China.

Li Wai Lin, Kenny, joined the Group in August 1991. Mr Li is a
General Manager of the building division of the Group. He has
over 40 years’ experience in the building construction field both
locally and overseas. He holds a Master of Project Management
from the University of South Australia. He is a corporate member
of the Chartered Institute of Building, the Australian Institute of
Building and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers.

Yeung Sin Kai, Eddie, joined the Group in August 1997.
Mr Yeung is a General Manager of the building division of
the Group. He has over 25 years' experience in construction
management. He is a qualified Professional Civil Engineer,
Registered Construction Manager, Chartered Builder, Chartered
Building Engineer, Hong Kong International Arbitration Centre
Accredited General Mediator, a BEAM Professional, Technical
Director and Authorised Signatory of Registered General Building
Contractor (RGBC).

Lee Kin Shun, Kinson, joined the Group in September 1992.
Mr Lee is the General Manager of the foundation division of the
Group. He has over 30 years’ experience in the construction field.
He holds a Bachelor of Science in Engineering from The University
of Hong Kong. He is a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil
& Structural), a BEAM Professional and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He is also an Authorised Signatory
(RGBC) and (RSC (F) and (SF)).

Wong Chi Kwong, Jonathan, joined the Group in June 2013.
Mr Wong is the General Manager of the E&M division of the
Group. He has over 40 years' experience in electrical and
mechanical engineering services, environmental and property
development fields in Hong Kong, Macau and China regions.
He holds a Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical and Electronic
Engineering from Brighton University. He is a Chartered Engineer
registered under the Engineering Council UK and a Registered
Professional Engineer (Building Services & Electrical) of the
Engineers Registration Board Hong Kong. He is a member of The
Institution of Engineering & Technology, the Chartered Institution
of Building Services Engineers, The Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers, the Hong Kong Association of Energy Engineers and
CIC-Certified CCBM (BIM Manager).
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Chan Che Bun, Ben, joined the Group in July 1999. Mr Chan
is a General Manager of the civil division of the Group. He
has over 20 years' experience in the field of construction and
maintenance, including development of major civil, infrastructure,
and power plants projects. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, a Registered Professional Engineer (Civil),
an Authorized Signatory (RGBC), Accredited NEC ECC Project
Manager and Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service
Industry Cooperation Zone of Shenzhen.

Kwan Chi Lap, Albert, joined the Group in July 1999. Mr
Kwan is a General Manager of the building division of the
Group. He has over 30 years' experience in the construction
industry. He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil), a Master
of Engineering Science (Structural) from The University of New
South Wales and a Graduate Diploma in Administration from
The Australian Graduate School of Management. He is also a
member of The Institution of Structural Engineers (UK). The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Registered Professional
Engineer (Structural). He is also an Authorised Signatory (RGBC)
and Assessor for The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers for
membership on both Competence-based Professional Assessment
and Membership Examination (Structural Discipline).

Yan Wai Ming, Alan, joined the Group in November 2021. Mr
Yan is the General Manager of the civil division of the Group.
He is a chartered engineer with over 25 years’ experience in
Hong Kong. He holds a Bachelor of Applied Science in Civil
Engineering from the University of Toronto, a Master of Science
from the University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Newecastle. He is a Fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (FHKIE),
Corporate member of the Institution of Civil Engineers (MICE),
and Corporate member of the Chartered Institution of Highways
and Transportation (MCIHT). He is currently the Vice Chairman of
the Chartered Institution of Highways and Transportation (Hong
Kong Branch) and the committee member of civil division of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers.

Wu Shek Chun, Wilfred, joined the Group in June 2020. Mr
Wu is a Corporate Director and Company Secretary of the Group.
He has over 30 years’ experience in finance, accounting, risk
management, corporate reorganisation as well as mergers and
acquisitions. He holds a Master of Business Administration and
a Master of Arts in Comparative and Public History. He is also a
Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is committed to maintaining
high standards of corporate governance because it believes that
is the best way to enhance shareholder value. The Company
places strong emphasis on an effective board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of the Company, accountability, sound
internal control, appropriate risk assessment procedures, and
transparency to all shareholders.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three Directors,
who possess appropriate expertise and qualifications in managing
the Group.

Biographical information of the Directors is set out on pages 49
to 50 of this annual report and on the Company’s website.

Role and Responsibilities
The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s strategic
direction and the controls applied to its activities, and ensuring
that Management has appropriate processes in place for
risk-assessment, management, and internal control over the
Company'’s day-to-day affairs.

The Board has in place a list of decisions that are to be retained
for the Board decision. These matters include:

1. Corporate strategy;

2. Financial reporting and control;

3. Major financial arrangements;

4.  Risk management;

5. Succession planning; and

6. Recommendations to shareholders regarding the
appointment of external auditor, dividend payments, capital
reorganizations and scheme of arrangement.

The Board has delegated all day-to-day operations and

management of the Company’s business to Management under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
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Board Process

In order to have an effective Board, Directors are provided with
information on activities and developments in the Group’s
business on a regular and timely basis to keep them apprised
of the latest developments of the Group. The Directors have
full access to information on the Group and are able to seek
independent professional advice whenever they deem it
necessary.

In addition, in order to enable the Board and each Director to
discharge his duties, it is the Company’s practice to provide
all Directors with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

To avoid conflicts of interest, Directors who have declared their
material interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be
discussed are not counted in the quorum of meetings and abstain
from voting on the relevant resolutions.

Minutes of Board meetings with sufficient details of matters
discussed are kept in safe custody by the Company Secretary, and
are open for inspection by Directors.

Management Functions

The division of responsibilities between the Board and
Management are clearly set out in writing to ensure that there is
a segregation of duties with clear accountability.

The Board has delegated all the day-to-day operations and
management of the Company’s business to Management, under
the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Management is required to report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring
good information flow and that Board policy and procedures
are followed, and is responsible for advising the Board on
governance matters and facilitates the induction and professional
development of Directors. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for the Group’s compliance with all obligations of
relevant rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Board is responsible for approving the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor and ensuring the
continuing objectivity and independence of the external auditor,
The Board has resolved to recommend the re-appointment of
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as external auditor of the Company.
This resolution has been endorsed by the Board and is subject to
final approval and authorisation by the shareholders at the 2023
Annual General Meeting.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and for reviewing their effectiveness.
In meeting its responsibility, the Board seeks to increase risk
awareness across the Company’s business operations and has put
in place policies and procedures which provide a framework for
controls and management of risks.

The Board is also committed to managing risks and monitoring its
business and financial activities in a manner which enables it to
maximise profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks
which can cause loss or reputational damage, ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and enhance resilience to
external events.

The Board conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems during the year
ended 31 March 2023, and was not aware of any significant
issues that would have adverse impact on the effectiveness and
adequacy of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. Such review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.
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Risk Management

The Company has established an enterprise risk management
framework to identify potential events that may be affecting
the Company, to manage risks within its risk appetite and to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of the
Company’s objectives. It comprises three lines of defence to
provide Management, Risk Management division and the Board
with the confidence that the Company is managing its risks and
they are:

First line of
defense
B—ERR

Second line of
defense
BERR

Third line of
defense
ESEBR

This enterprise risk management framework will enable the
Company to have the following potential benefits:

o Greater likelihood of achieving business objectives;
o Reduction in management time spent “fire fighting”;
o Increased likelihood of change initiatives being achieved,

o More focus internally on doing the right things properly;

o Better basis for strategy setting;
o Achievement of competitive advantage;

o Fewer sudden shocks and unwelcome surprises; and

o Early mover into new business areas.
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Furthermore, the Company enhanced its tender estimating
procedures to identify, control and report on major tendering
and estimating risks (such as unfamiliarised countries, nature
of works, buildabilities and technical feasibilities, changes in
tender requirements, unreasonable basis of costs analysis and
insufficiency of information) for Management to determine the
final tender sums.

Risk Assessment

During the year ended 31 March 2023, Management and
internal corporate audit department carried out the following
risk assessment exercises for the Company’s operations and their
progress and findings are reported to the Board quarterly:

o Setting the context of Company goals and objectives for our
risk assessment process;

o Reviewing the Company’s key documentation policies and
procedures on strategic-management, core-business, and
resource-management processes,;

o Identifying, assessing and documenting the Company’s high
level risks, including financial, operational and compliance
aspects;

o Performing a walkthrough check of the high-level risks
documented in the risk registers to ascertain whether the
control design was effective in addressing the respective
risk;

o Identifying and documenting any deviations from the
enterprise risk-management framework and providing
potential improvement opportunities for any inconsistencies
or gaps;

o Conducting technical field audit to help in locating lacunae
and deficiencies in site organisation structure and contract
management aspects; and

o Preparing an annual risk-based internal audit plan which
details the internal auditing works for the next fiscal year.

Internal Control

The Company has had in place an integrated internal control
framework, issued by COSO (the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission) in the United States.
Internal control is defined as a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in
relation to the following:

o Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

o Reliability of financial reporting; and
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o Compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company’s internal control framework is divided into five
inter-related components: control environment, risk assessment,
control activities, monitoring and information & communication.
It serves as criteria for the effectiveness of the internal control
system in supporting the achievement of the separate but
overlapping operational, financial reporting and compliance
objectives.

The following diagram depicts the comprehensive nature of
the Company’s internal control framework and illustrates how
effective monitoring affects the collective effectiveness of all five
components of internal controls:

MEEER

The Board has overall responsibility for the Company’s system
of internal control and assessment of risks. The responsibility
of day-to-day management of operational risks and the
implementation of mitigation measures lies with Management.

Built into our system are checks and balances such that no single
party can “monopolise” a transaction, activity or process to
conceal irregularities. Hence, Management has undertaken the
following additional checks and balances procedures:

e A clear functional organizational structure was set up
with well defined lines of authority, accountability and
responsibilities. Each division clearly understands their scope
of business and authorities delegated by Management;

e A "Business Policy and Quality Management” directive
was issued by Management to address various important
aspects in enhancing prudence in managing and conducting
business;
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o A "Project and Cost Management System” has been
developed in order to enhance the Company's project
management system and cost management system;

o A monthly reporting system on the performance of
works contracts, and actual financial performance results
against budgets to Management was well established.
The Board reviews the Company’s operations and financial
performance on a regular basis;

o Management reviews with each division on a monthly basis
to ensure that progress payments and final payments shall
be received within a reasonable time. In parallel, accounts
department also issues a summary of overdue trade
receivable to each division regularly to assist the divisional
heads to chase all outstanding payments and consequently
to improve the Company's cashflow position;

o The Board reviews annually, in particular, adequacy of
resources, qualifications, experience of staff, training
programme and budget of the Company’'s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

e  The Board assesses and monitors the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems in detecting fraud
and other irregularities by reviewing the work of the internal
corporate audit department and its findings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

In order to enhance shareholder and investor understanding
of the Group’s business, the Company has established several
communication channels with shareholders and investors,
including (i) printed copies of corporate documents (including
but not limited to annual reports, interim reports, circulars and
notices of shareholder meetings); (ii) general meetings where
shareholders can offer comments and exchange views with the
Board; and (iii) the Company’s website: www.pyengineering.com.

By order of the Board

Wu Shek Chun, Wilfred
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 8 August 2023
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Paul Y. Engineering Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associate, joint ventures
and joint operations as at 31 March 2023 are set out in note 46
to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business performance during the
reporting period, as well as the principal risks and uncertainties,
and future prospects of the Group are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement and the Chief Executive Officer's Report of the annual
report. Also, the financial risk management objectives and
policies of the Group are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements. All the above sections form part of this
Directors’ Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2023 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 69 and in the accompanying
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group currently maintains a variety of credit facilities to
meet its working capital requirements. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$1,560,296,000 which are repayable within one year. Cash,
bank balances and deposits as at 31 March 2023 amounted to
approximately HK$1,237,694,000. The Group's current ratio was
approximately 1.2 and the Group’s bank borrowings to equity
ratio was approximately 0.9 as at 31 March 2023.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$44,633,000
on property, plant and equipment to expand and upgrade its
operating capacity.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and

equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the issued share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company’s former
holding company during the year are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

In accordance with Article 128(1) of the Articles of Association of
the Company, the Company's reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounted to HK$1,130,566,000 as at 31 March
2023 comprising share premium, contributed surplus, investment
revaluation reserve, other reserve and accumulated losses.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company who held office during the year
and up to the date of this report were:

Chan Fut Yan (Chairman)

Lee Hang Wing, James (Chief Executive Officer)

Wong Kin Kay (Chief Operating Officer)
(Appointed on 1 April 2023)

Law Hon Wa, William (Chief Financial Officer)
(Resigned on 1 April 2023)

In accordance with Articles 75(1) and 75(2) of the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr Chan Fut Yan will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The retiring
director, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Blue River Holdings Limited (“Blue River”), ultimate
holding company of the Company up to 4 November
2022

(a)

Share option scheme of Blue River

On 10 September 2012, Blue River adopted a share
option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentive or reward to any employees,
executives or officers, directors of Blue River or any invested
entity and any celebrity, consultant, adviser or agent of
any member of Blue River and its subsidiaries (“Blue River
Group”) or any invested entity, who have contributed or
will contribute to the growth and development of Blue
River Group or any invested entity. The 2012 Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years from
10 September 2012.

None of the directors of the Company were granted any of
Blue River’s options under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
during the period from 1 April 2022 to 9 September 2022.

Share award scheme of Blue River

A share award scheme (the “2021 Share Award Scheme”),
which was adopted by Blue River on 3 May 2021, allows
Blue River to recognise the contributions by eligible
participants (including employees, executive or officers,
directors and senior management, of any member of Blue
River Group) by way of issuing shares of Blue River to
eligible participants.

None of the directors of the Company were awarded any
of Blue River’s shares under the 2021 Share Award Scheme
during the period from 1 April 2022 to 4 November 2022.

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the
Company, its ultimate holding company, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries or subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities including debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of
the directors, chief executives or their spouse or children under
the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such rights during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its ultimate holding company or
fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Information on the Group’s retirement benefit schemes is set out
in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that
directors of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain
in the execution of their duty in their respective offices, provided
that this indemnity shall not apply to them unless they acted
honestly and in good faith, and in what they believed to be the
best interests of the Company and had no reasonable cause to
believe that his conduct was unlawful.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association, or the laws of the British
Virgin Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations

of approximately HK$360,000.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
No significant event of the Group occurred after the end of the
reporting period.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been audited by Crowe (HK)
CPA Limited, who will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting to re-appoint Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lee Hang Wing, James
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director)

Hong Kong, 8 August 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Crowe

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Paul Y.
Engineering Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 69 to
198, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBE RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 8 August 2023

Chan Wai Dune, Charles
Practising Certificate Number P00712
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

M A4S 32
,?VT\ [=] ?Eﬁﬁ%zz
For the year ended 31 March 2028 HZ —_Z_-_=F=A=1+—HILFE

2023 2022
—E—-= —E- =
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FAET
Revenue WA 5 9,477,945 | 12,554,466
Cost of sales iH & AR (9,075,268) | (12,125,298)
Gross profit EX 402,677 429,168
Other income b i a8 6 7,833 8,903
Administrative expenses TIRE R (318,289) (361,514)
Finance costs 7&K AR 7 (63,080) (42,699)
Impairment allowance on financial TREENABRNEEZ
assets and contract assets VoRIEREE 39(b) (35,901) (2,902)
Impairment allowance on EREEEZRE
right-of-use assets B 14 = (3,379)
Write-down of stock of properties WETFE 2R E MR 8 - (1,481)
Fair value changes of investment REMEZ NFE
properties & 9 - (1,341)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBRR &M
and a joint venture BETE AT 34 30,019 13,481
Share of results of associates BB ENRIEE 30 (10) 7,213
Share of results of joint ventures BEEELEXEE 17 (941) (10,856)
Profit before tax RR B A )% F 22,308 34,593
Income tax (expense) credit Frisfi (BA)ER 10 (523) 1,533
Profit for the year FERF 11 21,785 36,126

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeBmkHEMERWER

For the year ended 31 March 2028 HZ —_Z_=F=A=+—HILFE

2023 2022
—s=-= —E-C
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Profit for the year FERA 21,785 36,126
Other comprehensive (expense) FEHME2ME (BX) KE:
income for the year:
Items that will not be reclassified to BT EE SR B
profit or loss: EH -
Change in fair value of financial BRATFEFAEMEEKZE
assets measured at fair value ([BRAFEFAHMEE
through other comprehensive WamlzemEE2ATE
income ("FVOCI"), net of tax FE) (HBRHeE) (25,500) (86,878)
Items that may be reclassified AIRAGETDHEEm Z
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
Exchange differences arising from BREBINEBREEZIER
translation of foreign operations =% (1,098) 4,364
Share of translation reserve of an B RHABE A REE
associate and joint ventures EE R B (270) 1,308
Reclassification adjustment on HEMNBARI LK —H&E%
disposal of subsidiaries and a hEZEHRHHE
joint venture EEES (10,537) (2,641)
(37,405) (83,847)
Total comprehensive expense FE2HEMAX
for the year LR (15,620) (47,721)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

7 e

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

BT 2 B 3 B A R A BT SRR 2 4R A B



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 March 2023 R=ZE_=%=F=+—H

2023 2022
—g=-= —E-=
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7E FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - M N R 13 141,820 147,082
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 42,159 67,060
Goodwill Bk 15 11,526 11,526
Other intangible assets HEfmpEE 16 1,035 8,035
Interests in joint ventures BELERER 17 154 1,065
Financial assets measured EATFEZAEMEZEKE
at FVOClI ZERMEE 18 216,000 -
412,694 234,768
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Trade and other debtors, deposits B RHMEUGRIE 7T
and prepayments N IEA 5RIE 19 2,388,344 2,277,178
Contract assets BHEE 20 4,631,416 4,130,827
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries & U [7] £ [ff B A &) 58 21 - 3,725
Amount due from an associate JE W — e B & R B 3RIB 22 5,820 5,820
Amounts due from joint ventures FEW & & FEFIE 22 25,606 4,289
Amounts due from joint operations/  JEWA &% S EEB
other partners of joint operations H %% 1 KIE 23 165,274 218,269
Loans receivable JE W E 3K 24 183,226 177,226
Promissory note receivable JiE W R 25 250,000 241,335
Taxation recoverable A] Y B 7 1B 1,083 4,553
Pledged bank deposits and EEARITER L ZR G
restricted cash b 26 59,380 45,423
Short term bank deposits RHISRITIE R 26 49,136 55,394
Bank balances and cash RITEREB 26 1,129,178 831,099
8,888,463 7,995,138
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade and other creditors and B S REMEMNRER
accrued expenses s X 27 4,664,162 5,311,706
Contract liabilities aREE 20 688,742 339,547
Amount due to a joint venture JERN—He&EhFERE 22 874 60
Amounts due to joint operations/ EREEER GEEK
other partners of joint operations H b B HRIE 23 579,863 97,544
Lease liabilities HEARE 28 29,333 28,217
Taxation payable FEI IR 26,259 27,003
Bank and other borrowings R1T M H A AR 29 1,560,296 1,132,393
7,549,529 6,936,470
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEBEEFEE 1,338,934 1,058,668
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRD
LIABILITIES afE 1,751,628 1,293,436
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR e B AR O R

As at 31 March 2023 R=F2==%=HA=+—H

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7E FExT FAT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE

Obligations in excess of interests el /NI Eivd

in associates 51T 30 2,376 2,066
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 16,915 43,617
19,291 45,683
1,732,337 1,247,753

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#E
Share capital N 36 395,706 244,091
Reserves H 1,336,631 1,003,662
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,732,337 1,247,753

The consolidated financial statements on pages 69 to 198 were HNEOBEEE198H Y HANKBHRERD
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 RZE-_=ZFNA\BEEST2ZENR

August 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: BENNE THINWEERREEZSH
E=
Lee Hang Wing, James Wong Kin Kay
Chief Executive Officer (Executive Director) Chief Operating Officer (Executive Director)
*1E58 =HEE
TR (RTEF) EERE (HITEE)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM 2 M 5E B4R & B IS 3R 3k 2 A K 3B

IN o

consolidated financial statements. 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARKBBE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z —E-_=F=F=+—HIEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LN 2PN 1
Capital Investment
Share Share  Contributed ~ redemption Special Other revaluation ~ Translation  Retained
capital  premium surplus  reserve  reserve  reservie  reserve  reserve profits Total

kE  BOEE E9ER REREE GHEE AkER EREE EXGE RELN &%
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Ten  TRn  TRn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TET  TEL  TER

(Note (a)) (Note (b)) (Note(c)  (Note (d))
(Hta) (Wtm) (W) (@)
At 1 Apii i
2021 mA-H 122,056 - 406,727 1812 26,489 - - 12540 140613 710239

Exchange differences arising from &5 £ KEE

translation of foreign operations ~ ZEREE - - - - - - - 4,364 - 4364
Share of translation reserve of %45 F?Hﬁé‘m

an associate and joint AEL%

ventures Mﬁﬁ - - - - - - - 1,308 - 1,308
Recassfcaion adustment o~ HE-BAERZ

disposal of a joint venture Zi#ﬁ"*ﬁ?ﬁ” - - - - - - - (2641 - (264)
Changemawvalueof RATEEAL

financial assets PENEZER

measured at FVOC, BEILTER

net of tax B(IkHL%) - - - - - - (86878 - - (86878
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - - K126 36,126
Total comprehensive (expense)  FE2E (F%)

income for the year hies - - - - - - (86,878) 3031 36126 (41721)
Deemed contribution from holding & fEER A2

company (Note 33) g (W) - - - - - 426365 - - - 126365
Shares issued under rights issue ~ RE(ERE /T

(Note 36) (B&36) 122,035 378308 - - - - - - - 500383
Transaction costs attributable to ~ RERRETRA

shares issued under rights issue 2 X AR

(Note 36) (Hi36) - (200 - - - - - - - (200
Deemed distribution to holding B fERERA

company (Note 35) Ak (HHEE35) - - - - - B3 86818 (647 (83231) (341273)
At 31 March A

2022 “f=+-H 244,091 378,108 406,727 1812 26,489 85,092 - 11,926 93508 1,247,753
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

AN |
%VT\ (=] *‘Eﬁ
For the year ended 31 March 2028 HZ —_Z_=F=A=+—HILFE

18 %

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARRREAER
Capital Investment
Share Share Contributed redemption ~ Special Other revaluation Translation ~ Retained
capital  premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits Total
- R#&
e RHEE EBHER RERE HARE  HBRR EAEE ENRE REEA it
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEn fEnr TRn TEx TEn  TErn THr  TEn  TER  TERn
(Note (a)) (Note (b))  (Note(c)) (Note (d))
(Wik(a) (WaEm)  (WaE() (K@)
At 1 Aprl RZ5-=
2022 mA-H 204091 378,108 406,727 1,812 26,489 85,092 - 11,926 93,508 1,247,753
Exchange differences arising from &5 £ EE
translation of foreign operations ~ ZE £ - - - - - - - (1,00) - (1,09)
Share of translation reserve of ~ E{E B EQF
an associate and joint hegts
ventures EiGE - - - - - - - (270) - (270)
Reclassification adjustmenton & -FHELT
disposal of subsidaries LENNERE - - - - - - - (1053)) - (10,537)
Change in fair value of RATEEALRZ
financial assets s eHE
measured at FVOC, E/ATERY
net of tax (NBfisk) - - - - - - (25,500 = - (25,500)
Profit for the year EREN - - - - - - - - T8 2,785
Total comprehensive (expense) ~ FE2E (Fx)
income for the year haes - - - - - - (255000 (11905 21,785  (15,620)
Shares issued under rightsissue ~ REEBETRA
(Note 36) GEEY 151615 348,714 - - - - - - - 500329
Transaction costs attributableto ~ BEERETRH
shares issued under rights isse 2 XA
(Note 36) (H3E36) - (125) - - - - - - - (125)
At 31 March A
2023 Zf=t+-H 395706 726,697 406,727 1,812 26,489 85002 (25,500) A 115293 1732337
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Notes:

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GARKBBE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z —E-_=F=HA=1+—HIFE

The contributed surplus represents the differences of the carrying
amount of the investments in subsidiaries acquired from the former
holding company of the Company and the carrying amount of the
amount due from a subsidiary assigned by the former holding company
of the Company, in excess of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

The special reserve of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) comprises (i) the difference between the
cost of acquisition of subsidiaries and the nominal amount of their
share capital at the date on which they were acquired; and (ii) the
equity-settled share-based payment expenses recognised in relation
to the share options granted under the share option scheme and the
shares awarded under the share award scheme of the former holding

company of the Company.

The other reserve comprises (i) the fair value of net assets acquired in
September 2021 at nil consideration from the holding company of the
Company which was credited to the equity as deemed contribution
from holding company (see note 33 for details) and (i) the carrying
amount of net assets disposed of in February 2022 at nil consideration
to the holding company of the Company which was debited to the
equity as deemed distribution to holding company (see note 35 for
details).

The investment revaluation reserve represents the changes in carrying
amount of financial assets measured at FVOCI, net of tax.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

GES

(a)

B BARIERANRE Z AR A RRER
HJ%"*TZ&%SZEEE@&ZLV‘?Z%T g
PR 2x B P i AR MR — 1P B X B FRR 2 BR
EE BEAR EF)’T%‘ﬁﬁHﬁéxT@ZHﬂ%
EEZZEEZSR-

ARARREWMBEAR (BB IAEER]) 2
Rl ESEOKBINB AR ZKAERE
R B R T%ﬂiﬂﬂlﬁﬁMEZHx$E@ZF§E’\J
Z8 RNARBRBATIEER AR 2B K
REAT B 2 IR B K i dn 2R R =t 31 22D
RO ERABEEE AR BER 2
R

HitEBEEOR _E-—FNLAAAR
A2 Tﬁfguﬁzﬁ%ﬁﬁrﬂﬁz NFE
WRIEERARZ HE M A (718
ﬁWﬁB%&nﬁf§::¢7Hm$A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-.r\ IEI%/)“:E%

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z —E-_=F=HA=1+—HBIFE

2023 2022
—E-=EF g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES PR 5,8
Profit before tax B 75 BT A 22,308 34,593
Adjustments for: MTHIERETHE:
Depreciation of property, MW R EREZ
plant and equipment e 37,881 42,855
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEEZIE 28,656 32,219
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEWE B EERE
plant and equipment EiE (&F) 6,181 (225)
Loss on termination of leases HIEHEZEE 73 63
Impairment allowance on financial TREEREGNEEZR
assets and contract assets B 35,901 2,902
Impairment allowance on TREEEZRE
right-of-use assets B A = 3,379
Write-down of stock of properties YT E 2R E MR - 1,481
Fair value changes of investment KEMEZ NTE
properties # - 1,341
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ﬁ%ﬁ?%@ﬁ&*?&ﬁé%
and a joint venture EZAF (30,019) (13,481)
Gain on disposal of other HEEMBEEE 2
intangible asset il (3,060) -
Interest income ) Bk 7= (2,610) (2,213)
Finance costs R E B AN 63,080 42,699
Share of results of associates BB ERDRIESE 10 (7,213)
Share of results of joint ventures HMEEECEESE 941 10,856
Operating cash flows before RitEEBEREHA 2L
movements in working capital ¥BReRE 159,342 149,256
Increase in trade and other debtors, B NEMERIE 5]
deposits and prepayments N FB A~ FRIE 1S 7Jl] (121,915) (109,244)
Increase in contract assets BHEEL (500,594) (689,731)
Increase in amounts due from fellow F%H&EJ%W%’& Al E
subsidiaries 0 = (299)
Increase in amounts due from JE U B 2 N B RUIB
associates 0 = (62)
Increase in amounts due from joint JEU A & DERIR
ventures 0 (21,317) (613)
Increase in amounts due from joint EWEEER AEER
operations/other partners of joint H AR HRIE
operations 0 (19,887) (34,214)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other 28 5 N E fb JE {5018 % FE =t
creditors and accrued expenses s (R4 ) 80 (646,581) 928,794
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities & £ & & (F 4 ) 349,195 (112,079)
Increase in amount due to a joint R —Rae&EhER
venture 30 814 -
(Decrease) increase in amounts due ERNELER/ &
to joint operations/other partners H AR HRIE (/DZ’J )
of joint operations 0 (11,664) 30,391

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z —E-_=F=HA=1+—HIFE

2023 2022
—B-=5F =
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
k=g THET F& T
Cash (used in) generated from (AR)RBEEEH 2
operations i (812,607) 162,199
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHBNIEH (2,234) (1,140)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded EREFEBNGEH 4,379 1,587
Overseas tax paid B8N IR - (932)
Overseas tax refunded EREGINRIA 50 24
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED (AR)REKEXK2RE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES EEE (810,412) 161,738
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXHK
Repayment from joint operations/ BERR/ AEEBEM
other partners of joint operations BHEN 87,732 351
Release of pledged bank deposits FEDEBRITERK
and restricted cash ZREIE2 35,353 -
Proceeds from disposal of other HEEMEREEMRS
intangible asset A 10,060 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE W R RHE
plant and equipment KA 5,394 717
Interest received B U B 2,344 1,752
Proceeds from settlement of EEEWEANY ZIEME
promissory note receivable ZHE 1,335 _
Repayment from a joint venture —HEeEhEER - 1,223
Advances to fellow subsidiaries EIEE NG E-E: - (53,155)
Acquisition of financial assets WERATFEFAEMEZE
measured at FVOCI WazemEE (1,500) -
Advances to loans receivable AEWE B R (6,000) -
Advances to joint operations/other MEEER AEEBEM
partners of joint operations BB (14,850) (94,156)
Additions to property, plant and WEWE WK
equipment B (21,619) (46,838)
Acquisition of asset through 7 B WU — P B A RIUE
acquisition of a subsidiary BE 32 (23,014) -
Placement of pledged bank FREEBRITEFRRZR
deposits and restricted cash I8 & (49,223) (18,783)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RE (AR)REXBZHE
(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES HEE 26,012 (208,889)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

IE%/)ILE'IEE

n‘/-_]_\

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z —E-_=F=HA=1+—HBIFE

2023 2022
—E-=EF g
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
New bank and other borrowings raised %ﬁLfEﬁ&ﬁﬁﬂFﬁk 1,427,003 1,294,778
Advances from joint operations/other A& & & XK EM
partners of joint operations B 862,289 420
Proceeds from issuance of shares BEHREITRO G
under rights issue FRIA 250,329 259,008
Net cash inflow from deemed ZEVE? BRARIZEEZRS
contribution from holding company mu)\@%ﬁ 33 - 22,688
Net cash outflow from deemed RIEMTERARDIRZEE
distribution to holding company //mﬂj@%ﬁ 35 - (6,035)
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries EIEESENGIE- £/ = (9,990)
Transaction costs attributable to BEHBREBETRO RS
shares issued under rights issue |:@%N (125) (200)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEMEEARE (31,347) (35,527)
Interest paid EFE (61,872) (35,762)
Repayment to joint operations/other A& &% AL EKEM
partners of joint operations BLEER (368,306) (351)
Repayment of bank and other BERITREAM
borrowings B (999,100) | (1,293,782)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM REMEEZHZRE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HEE 1,078,871 195,247
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND REeERBERSEEREEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS FEE 294,471 148,096
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE SEERSE 2
RATE CHANGES 2 (2,650) 548
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUYREREREEE
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR IEH 886,493 737,849
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRAECREREEE
AT END OF THE YEAR IEH 1,178,314 886,493
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF ReREREEEEAB
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RO
Short term bank deposits R HIR 1T IE X 49,136 55,394
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 1,129,178 831,099
1,178,314 886,493
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEMT < M3t RANER & BF 1S ek < /B K D
consolidated financial statements. 7 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRM R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

GENERAL

Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI"). Up to 4 November 2022, its immediate holding
company is Dragon Mission Enterprise Limited, a company
incorporated in the BVI, and its ultimate holding company
is Blue River Holdings Limited (“Blue River”), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with securities listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Following the completion
of the rights issue of the Company and the reassignment
of approximately 10% voting rights in the Company to an
independent third party by Blue River on 4 November 2022,
Blue River ceased to be the ultimate holding company of
the Company and New Chief Ventures Limited, a limited
company incorporated in the BVI, became the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company. The
ultimate controlling party is Mr Chan Fut Yan, who is also
the Chairman and Executive Director of the Company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate
Information section of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries, associate, joint
ventures and joint operations are set out in note 46.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar ("HK$"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

—RER
REZEEEER AR ([ARA])
TREBRZES ([RBREXE
SNEMKIZBERAF HE
—E-F+—AMNBILE-HEEE
ERABIANEBRE XS
FX 32 2 Dragon Mission Enterprise
Limited R EE KR ZER AR AR BH
EAMKIEBLFNEBBER S
FrERAR LM MIERERA
A ([EEH]) cRARAIERHIR K
EMR-_T-_—_F+—ANAEAK
NAKNON KR EREHEBIE =5
% ENTHBARNRINRZREER
NA MR RBR ZAS M
Z New Chief Ventures LimitedfX %
ARpal s BERKEZERAR M
R BN AREERANTE
EPREEBEL L

AARZEMRERREBE LN
%5 b 5t A 4 9 2 R R — B fE
-

ARAB-MBERBRAR XE
BHEAT BEAT AEEER

BEERZEBHHNM E46

mEaMBHRRAET(ET])Z2
S BILIRRBARR 2N EH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year
In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
financial period beginning on 1 April 2022 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual
HKFRS 3 Framework
Amendments to Property, Plant and Equipment —
HKAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
HKAS 37 Contract
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2018-2020

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS

TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKFRS 17 (including the Insurance Contracts'
October 2020 and
February 2022
Amendments to
HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of
and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?

Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
and related amendments
to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies’

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

FTESTHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce
with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience
to perform the related processes or they significantly
contribute to the ability to continue producing outputs
and are considered unique or scarce or cannot be
replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the
ability to continue producing outputs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE#E)
(b) Business combinations (Continued) (b) ¥ E0t (&)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which
is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss
as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
values with certain exemptions.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are initially measured at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets or at fair value. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) is
less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other
assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of cash-generating units). Any impairment loss for
goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of an operation within the cash-generating unit (or a
cash-generating unit within a group of cash-generating
units), the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured
on the basis of the relative values of the operation (or
the cash-generating unit) disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-
generating units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (Continued)

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate and a joint venture is
described below.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the Group
identifies and recognises the individual identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed by allocating
the purchase price first to financial assets/financial
liabilities at the respective fair values, the remaining
balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the
other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of
their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such
a transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as
those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of an associate
or a joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in changes in ownership interest
held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date
on which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in an
associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value
in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised is
not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate or joint control over a joint venture,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. When the Group retains
an interest in the former associate or joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, the Group
measures the retained interest at fair value at that
date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate
or joint venture is included in the determination
of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate or joint venture
on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal or partial disposal of the relevant
associate or joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when
an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to
profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss that
had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest
if that gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues
to use the equity method, goodwill is recognised at
acquisition date if there is excess of the consideration
paid over the share of carrying amount of net assets
attributable to the additional interests in associates or
joint ventures acquired. Any excess of share of carrying
amount of net assets attributable to the additional
interests in associates or joint ventures acquired over
the consideration paid are recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the additional interest are
acquired.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a
joint venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting
from the transactions with the associate or joint
venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the
particular assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale
or contribution of assets), the Group is considered to
be conducting the transaction with the other parties
to the joint operation, and gains and losses resulting
from the transactions are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
other parties’ interests in the joint operation.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation
in which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets
to a third party.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is
presented as right-of-use assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided
interest in the underlying leasehold land, the entire
properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For a contract entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application, the Group assesses
whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception or modification
date. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE#E)
(h) Leases (Continued) (h) HE (&)

The Group as a lessee

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets, the Group recognises right-of-use assets at
the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for

REBEREEA

MR ERIEEEEEZHE
AEBY MM BSESEE
HANEAXNLTENEEE
EEECTHERMAEMHEER
RE R NEB N HEEES
EHERMAERH L CHHE
ENEEBEEEREZHEN
AR EERANIZEREERS
FISZ o

EHEEE

HRERHEMMEEEEMR
B REBEREERSK BB
(RERREERHEMRZ R )i
RERAREE EREEER
AN fe] R T & RORUE B
B E YHRHEERE M

any remeasurement of lease liabilities. BHFTEELAE
The cost of right-of-use asset includes: CRAREEZKARLE:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and
the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h) Leases (Continued)

()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that
are acquired separately are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible
assets, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to relevant cash-
generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()]

Impairment on property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to the group of cash-generating units,
with the recoverable amount of the group of cash-
generating units. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit or the group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or the group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

V)

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values, adjusted
to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

Stock of properties

Stock of properties is stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of stock of properties is
calculated using the weighted average cost method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the end of the reporting
period, or, if not yet sold after the end of the
reporting period, by management estimates based on
prevailing market condition. The relevant costs include
acquisition costs, development expenditure, borrowing
costs capitalised and other direct costs attributable to
such properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE#E)
(m) Financial instruments (m) €T H

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade debtors arising
from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income
and interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE#E)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued) (m) €@ T HE (H)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
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Amortised cost and interest income 35K AR R T B M 7

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset. If
the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial asset
improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve; and are not subject to
impairment assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal
of the equity investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

HRRBHER AT EZERE
ETVERBERMN BOERERH L
Wat - MERERESREE
MEREAENE RIFERE
ECRELEEERE E%F
AT FEKRmEEeHEEDN
BHK AT E - HEERES
BMEEZEERRNE  NAE
TREETHEREERE"
AEETEETBHRESR
BRZEBEMIIE  FE K
BRBERMNEEANERHE
ERIREAEER -

HEE BN FlEGAEME E
Wk #a TA

BAFESAREMEEREZ
o T AREHRRIRAFER
B RVEEFELEZHER
EBENEMZE R ERER I
REREE-EHER AHBE
EITRER S - Rt BN E
B IreEN T BELERE
BREZED YHERERE

A o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 3§

101



102

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE#E)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued) (m) €@ T HE (H)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments designated as at FVOC/ (Continued)

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
other income in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“"ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade and other debtors, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, an associate, joint ventures and
joint operations/other partners of joint operations,
loans receivable, promissory note receivable, pledged
bank deposits and restricted cash, short term bank
deposits and bank balances), contract assets and
financial guarantee contracts which are subject to
impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
Assessment is done based on the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at
the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE#E)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued) (m) €M I A (&)

Financial assets (Continued) THEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) ETHEERE (&)

The Group applies simplified approach to recognise
lifetime ECL for trade debtors, contract assets, and
trade balances due from a joint venture and joint
operations/other partners of joint operations. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually and/or
collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on historical credit loss experience
adjusted by forward-looking information. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by the management of the Group
to ensure relevant information about specific debtors
is updated. Retention held by customers and unbilled
revenue included in contract assets have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade debtors for
the same types of contracts. Therefore, the Group has
estimated the expected loss rates for trade debtors and
contract assets on the same basis.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
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the risk of a default occurring on the financial ZEeBMIANRNERERB

instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
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both quantitative and qualitative information that BRASENEERENER
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is available without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

J significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that
the Group becomes a party to the irrevocable
commitment is considered to be the date of
initial recognition for the purposes of assessing
impairment. In assessing whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk
for financial guarantee contracts, the Group
considers the changes in the risk that the
specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate.

The Group rebutted the presumption of default
under ECL model for trade debtors and trade
balances due from a joint venture and joint
operations/other partners of joint operations over
90 days past due based on the good repayment
records for those customers, continuous business
with the Group and/or other reasonable and
supportable information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

e  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

. a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

° the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

J it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.

Werite-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

EEZEEBR ()
(m) €@ I A (#)
THEE (&)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.
(m) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) TEEEE (F)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL () EHEEERNGER
#iR

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group
is required to make payments only in the event
of a default by the debtor in accordance with
the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed.
Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse
the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the holder, the debtor or any other party.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available,
the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the
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. Past-due status; and

. Nature and size of debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHHE#E)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued) (m) €@ T HE (H)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amount of income recognised over the
guarantee period.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with
the corresponding adjustment recognised through
a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other creditors
and accrued expenses, amounts due to a joint venture
and joint operations/other partners of joint operations,
lease liabilities and bank and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(m) Financial instruments (Continued)

(n)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity
instrument which the Group has elected on initial
recognition to measure at FVOCI, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss,
but is transferred to retained profits.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous

contracts

(i)  Provision and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(n) Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Provision and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed
by another party, a separate asset is recognised
for any expected reimbursement that would be
virtually certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount
of the provision.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has
a contract under which the unavoidable costs
of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be
received from the contract. Provisions for onerous
contracts are measured at the present value of
the lower of the expected cost of terminating
the contract and the net cost of fulfilling the
contract. The cost of fulfilling the contract
includes both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling that contract.

(o) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Revenue from contracts with customers

(Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.

(i)  Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation
Input method
The progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation is measured based on
input method, which is to recognise revenue on
the basis of the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of a performance obligation relative
to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of
that performance obligation, that best depict the
Group's performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

(ii)  Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
in relation to the variation works and claims for
prolongation, the Group estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled using
either (a) the expected value method or (b) the
most likely amount, depending on which method
better predicts the amount of consideration to
which the Group will be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Variable consideration (Continued)

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating its assessment of whether an estimate
of variable consideration is constrained) to
represent faithfully the circumstances present at
the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing
component may exist regardless of whether the
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed
to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment
and transfer of the associated goods or services is
less than one year, the Group applies the practical
expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e RS IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)
(iv) Costs to fulfil a contract

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an
asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing
which it recognises an asset for these costs only if

they meet all of the following criteria:

J the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can

specifically identify;

e the costs generate or enhance resources
of the Group that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance

obligations in the future; and

J the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the assets relate.
The asset is subject to impairment review.

(v) Performance obligations for contracts with

customers

The Group provides management contracting
services and property development management
services to customers. Revenue from such services
is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time using input method as the
Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(o) Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(v)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers (Continued)

The Group's certain construction contracts
include payment schedules which require stage
payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. In
addition, the Group requires certain customers
to provide upfront deposits or advance payments
for construction works, this will give rise to
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until
the revenue recognised on the specific contract
exceeds the amount received.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related
to the same contract, is recognised over the
period in which the construction services are
performed representing the Group’s right to
consideration for the services performed because
the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in achieving specified milestones
or the value of construction work has been
agreed with the customers. The contract assets
are transferred to trade debtors when the
rights become unconditional, which is typically
at the time the Group obtains the certification
of the completed construction works from the
customers.

Retention held by customers, prior to expiration
of defect liability period, are classified as contract
assets or liabilities, which ranges from one to two
years from the date of the practical completion
of the construction. The relevant amount is
reclassified to trade debtors when the defect
liability period expires. The defect liability period
serves as an assurance that the construction
services performed comply with agreed upon
specifications and such assurance cannot be
purchased separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= R
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B RS R AR MY AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

(q)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position
and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related
assets. Government grants related to income that
are receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as expenses or capitalised in contracts
in progress, where appropriate, when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries, annual leave
and sick leave) after deducting any amount already
paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B RS R AR MY AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and interests in associates and joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

3.

FTESEBE )

(t)

BE (&)

BERIBNIRG AU EHRERE
ELBERTENMTERER
mFAERE s R EERE
RoRLERBEEEBESHAT
EEBMERZ3EER ME
ERTEE EBE L] e IR A]
FAERZ=ZmOM 2 ERBK
o A BEAT A AT E R =
R FENEZEREE S
B A—HE A EERM
BAMAHEGH RN RS
(EFEEPRRIN) B IXHER
BENABGEMSIE BT
REZEREHBEEEREGRE-

BT IR A B E R E AR
ZIREUNNMRBERRINEE
CEZEREEZERANERK
Z A MR - M AN B B S
2HEREZRBELD MY
REBEAETERAIERRK
BERMER - HZFERE N
RS AR < AT E B 28R P
EEZETERAEEER A
B 2 SRR T i A AT LA GE R
RrERR 2 MaE AR R
PRA] LA 8¢ [0 By RE R ©

BELERBEEZFAEERE
EzREBREITERR  RRK
R RAERBOEF S
EEESAE IR W E
FFa(K -

EER AR ER A R E
£ (R B E 2 B AR
ZEABE BRRERRED
EHERER B BE (R
) EHHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRM R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing
transactions as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied to the same taxable entity
by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
w3

B RS R AR MY AL

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of
the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate or a
joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation of
which the retained interest becomes a financial asset),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(u) Foreign currencies (Continued)

(v)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a
subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity investments at the grant date.

Share options granted to directors, employees,
consultants and advisers providing similar services as
employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted at
the date of grant without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (special reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest
based on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions would be revised. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative amount reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to special reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

3.

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(v) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Shares awarded to employees, consultants and advisers
providing similar services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of awarded shares granted
at the date of grant is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase
in equity (special reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the estimates
of the number of awarded shares that are expected
to vest would be revised. The impact of the revision
of the original estimates during the vesting period,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative amount reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to special reserve.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year:

(a) Construction contracts

The Group recognises contract revenue and profit of a
construction contract according to the management’s
estimation of the total outcome of the project as
well as the progress towards complete satisfaction of
a performance obligation measured based on input
method. Notwithstanding that management reviews
and revises the estimates of both contract revenue
and costs for the construction contract as the contract
progresses, the actual outcome of the contract in
terms of its total revenue and costs may be higher
or lower than the estimates and this will affect the
revenue and profit recognised.

(b) Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets
The Group assesses regularly whether property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets have
any indication of impairment in accordance with
its accounting policy. The Group determines the
recoverable amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets based on the
estimation of the economic benefits generated from
these assets. Management is confident that the
carrying amounts of these items will be recovered in
full based on the results of assessment of the estimates
of anticipated cash flow generated by these assets.
The situation will be closely monitored by the Group,
and adjustments for impairment will be made in
future periods in which there is an indication of such
adjustments are appropriate. As at 31 March 2023,
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are HK$141,820,000 (2022:
HK$147,082,000) and HK$42,159,000 (2022:
HK$67,060,000), respectively.

4.

THREMT ZEBZRR (#)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
units (or group of cash-generating units) and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise. As at
31 March 2023, the carrying amount of goodwill is
HK$11,526,000 (2022: HK$11,526,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note
15.

Trade debtors and contract assets

Trade debtors and contract assets are assessed for
ECL individually and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings based on historical
credit loss experience adjusted by forward-looking
information that is reasonable and supportable and
available without undue cost or effort.

As at 31 March 2023, the net carrying amounts
of trade debtors and contract assets are
HK$1,434,932,000 (2022: HK$1,383,798,000) and
HK$4,631,416,000 (2022: HK$4,130,827,000),
respectively. The allowance for ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates. The information about the
Group's trade debtors, contract assets and allowance
for ECL are disclosed in notes 19, 20 and 39(b),
respectively.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)
(e) Loans receivable

(f)

Loans receivable are assessed for ECL on an individual
basis. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes.

As at 31 March 2023, the net carrying amount
of loans receivable are HK$183,226,000 (2022:
HK$177,226,000). The allowance for ECL is sensitive
to changes in estimates. The information about the
Group's loans receivable and allowance for ECL are
disclosed in notes 24 and 39(b), respectively.

Deferred tax asset

As at 31 March 2023, a deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of unused tax losses
of HK$46,004,000 (2022: HK$49,966,000) in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to the remaining unused tax losses of
HK$944,787,000 (2022: HK$1,077,824,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position due to
unpredictability of future profit streams (see note
31). The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the actual future taxable profits generated
are less or more than expected, or change in facts
and circumstances which result in revision of future
taxable profits estimation, a material reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax asset may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period
in which such a reversal or further recognition takes
place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

(g) Fair value measurements and valuation
processes
Some of the Group's assets are measured at fair value
for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages an independent
qualified professional valuer to perform the valuation.
Management of the Company works closely with
the valuer to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs which are not based on observable market data
to estimate the fair value of financial assets measured
at FVOCI. As at 31 March 2023, the fair value of
financial assets measured at FVOCI is HK$216,000,000
(2022: Nil). The information about the valuation
techniques, inputs and key assumptions used in the
determination of the fair value of financial assets are
disclosed in note 39(c).

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Revenue from contracts with customers, which includes (a)
contract revenue from management contracting services and
(b) gross proceeds received and receivable from property
development management services in connection with
contract works performed, is recognised over time.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 March 2023 amounted to HK$20,264,000,000
(2022: HK$21,345,000,000). Management expects that all
the remaining performance obligations will be recognised
as revenue over the contract terms up to eight years (2022:
eight years) from the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision makers,
is organised into divisions for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment focusing on
the types of services provided. Specifically, the Group's
reportable and operating segments under HKFRS 8
"Operating Segments” are as follows:

Management — building construction and civil
contracting engineering

Property — development management, project
development management and facilities and
management asset management services

Property — investment, sale and leasing of
investment properties

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3.

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit earned or loss
incurred by each reportable and operating segment without
allocation of corporate income, central administrative
costs, certain reversal of impairment allowance (impairment
allowance) on financial assets, finance costs and gain on
disposal of subsidiaries and a joint venture. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision makers
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates or
at terms determined and agreed by both parties, where no
market price was available.

The assets of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for financial assets measured at
FVOCI, promissory note receivable, pledged bank deposits
and restricted cash, short term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash and other unallocated assets.

The liabilities of the Group are allocated to reportable and
operating segments except for bank and other borrowings
and other unallocated liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by reportable and operating segments.

WARSDEHER (#)

ATRREBWANKERATRE
K& a2 DHfr o

Property
Management ~ development Property Segment
contracting management  investment total  Eliminations  Consolidated
REEE NERRER VEIE ARact # &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T T T TiEx
For the year ended BE-%-=fZR
31 March 2023 St-BLEE
SEGMENT REVENUE AHUA
External sales #iHE 9,447,801 30,144 - 947,95 - 947,95
Inter-segment sales HEEkEE - 1,014 = 1,014 (1,014) =
Segment revenue AEBA 9,447,801 31,158 - 9,478,959 (1,014) 9,477,945
Segment profit AHET 203,559 2,144 - 205,703 - 205,703
Corporate income bxhE 2,610
Central administrative costs PRIBME (152,973)
Reversal of impairment allowance BRI BEAEZHE
on financial assets B 29
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBLR B 30,019
Finance costs BENK (63,080)
Profit before tax BE AR 22,308
For the year ended BE-%--fZR
31 March 2022 Zt-HIEEE
SEGMENT REVENUE 10N
Fxternal sales HiMEE 12,529,485 20234 4747 12,554,466 - 12,554,466
Inter-segment sales HHEHEE - 2,035 - 2,035 (2,035) -
Segment revenue FEHRA 12,529,485 22,269 4,747 12,556,501 (2,035) 12,554,466
Seqment profit (loss) FHRFH (BE) 250,530 6,097 (12,722) 243,905 - 243,905
Corporate income bxkE 2213
Central administrative costs RROTEKA (182,145)
Impairment allowance on financial £ BEE ZHE
assets i (162)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBARR—H
and a joint venture RELRZEN 13,481
Finance costs BENK (42,699)
Profit before tax BH AR 34,593
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.
(Continued)

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and
liabilities by reportable and operating segments.

WA R 2 EBER (%)

UTAAEEEERAEETHRS
RS #2517 -

Property
Management development Property
contracting management  investment Consolidated
REEE YERREE MERE e
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL
At 31 March 2023 R-E-=%=A=1-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets NHEE 7,466,831 10,655 - 7,477,486
Financial assets measured BAFEGARMEE
at FVOC| WnzemEE 216,000
Promissory note receivable FENUE R 2B 250,000
Pledged bank deposits and EERBRTERR
restricted cash _XRHRE 59,380
Short term bank deposits RHRITER 49,136
Bank balances and cash RITERRAS 1,129,178
Other unallocated assets HRHEEE 119,977
Consolidated assets HEEE 9,301,157
LIABILITIES E
Segment liabilities ABEE 5,878,528 14,110 - 5,892,638
Bank borrowings |ITER 1,560,296
Other unallocated liabilities HRHEE R 115,886
Consolidated liabilities meEakE 7,568,820
At 31 March 2022 R-2--f=A=+-H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEERE 6,906,826 17,995 - 6,924,821
Promissory note receivable RN R 2B 241,335
Pledged bank deposits and BEERRTERR
restricted cash _ZRHRE 45,423
Short term bank deposits RHEITER 55,394
Bank balances and cash RITERRAS 831,099
Other unallocated assets H RO EEE 131,834
Consolidated assets HEEE 8,229,906
LIABILITIES E
Segment liabilities AMEE 5,701,125 21,793 - 5,722,918
Bank and other borrowings BIREMBER 1,132,393
Other unallocated liabilities HRHEE R’ 126,842
Consolidated liabilities FERE 6,982,153
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KARDHER (&)
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's other NTRAEBEMERZAIHRE R
information by reportable and operating segments. KEDE 29T
Property
Management  development Property
contracting management  investment  Unallocated  Consolidated
REEE NEERER NERE AR &a

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEL TEL TEL

For the year ended HE-3-=£=f

31 March 2023 _‘i‘ ALEE
OTHER INFORMATION HftEH
Amounts included in the measure of segment G ASFEELFHEEHE

results or segment assets: JEE:
Additions to property, plant and equipment FENZE BHREE 8,896 - - 12723 21,619
Additions to property, plant and equipment EANE-RHEBLRTE

through acquisition of a subsidiary nE BHRRE 23,014 - - - 23,014
Additions to right-of-use assets RERRELE 4,480 - - - 4,480
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% BARRE L E 25,225 11 - 12,645 37,881
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRESE B 11,851 - - 16,805 28,656
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and HENE BRRAE,

equipment EE(BH) 6,188 - - 1) 6,181
(Gain) loss on termination of leases RIEEZ (BH) R (15) - - 88 3
Impairment allowance (reversal of impairment SREERANEE,

allowance) on financial assets and contract AERE (ROHE

assets &) 35930 - - (29) 35,901
Interests in joint ventures SERZER 154 - - - 154
Share of results of associates and joint ventures ~ BEBERFRASLEEE (946) (5 - - (951)
Amounts requiarly provided to the chief gperating AL FL EEERRE

decision makers but not included in the BIaERFENTZE

measure of segment results: LEE:
Share of revenue of associates and joint ventures ~ BEBEARRALLERA 133,115 - - - 133,115
For the year ended HE-R-C-EZf

31 March 2022 St-ALEE
OTHER INFORMATION HtEs
Amounts included in the measure of segment HAF EK% SR HEENE

results or seqment assets:
Additions to property, plant and equipment E%% B RRE 41,589 20 564 4,665 46,838
Additions to right-of-use assets ﬁaﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ% 19,783 - 2,861 543 23,187
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %1% #H k& B 21T E 29,387 29 336 13,103 42,855
Depreciation of right-of-use assets PRELZEE 15,264 - 127 16,828 3,19
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE RHREEZ

equipment (BH)E# (228) - 5 2) (225)
Loss on termination of leases KIRE ER 63 - - - 63
Impairment allowance (reversal of impairment SHEERANEEY

allowance) on financial assets and contract FERE (BERE

assets &H) 11,374 313 (8,947) 162 2902
Interests in joint ventures RELEER 1,065 - - - 1,065
Share of results of associates and joint ventures ~ BEBENARALCEEE (48) 7,297 (10,892) - (3,643)
Amounts requlery provided to the chief operating  EAEL FEEEERRE

decision makers but not included in the BIEERFEFTZE

measure of segment results: 28
Share of revenue of associates and joint ventures ~ BEBERARALLEMA 352,543 - 1,646 - 354,189
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRNEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong
(place of domicile of the Group), Macau, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") (excluding Hong Kong and
Macau), and Southeast Asia.

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue based
on geographical location where construction works or other
services are provided:

WARSDEHER (#)

AEBZEBIBZUNRER (XE
BRI ) RF R EARKME
(TR E]) (BB MR A K
REE-

ATAREBWAZIRHEETR
HEMREAERCE 2 D

2023 2022
—E-=8F —E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR FAET

Hong Kong BA
Macau JE P
The PRC =s)
Southeast Asia R

9,290,352 11,788,607

123,006 744,901
- 7,781
64,587 13,177

9,477,945 12,554,466

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-
current assets, excluding financial instruments, based on the
geographical location of the assets:

ATRIFRDEE(TERERT
LFAEREEMEELE 2
DT

2023 2022

—_E_-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Hong Kong BB 170,301 228,861
Macau B 22,603 2,215
The PRC F 1,954 1,851
Southeast Asia HEo 1,836 1,841
196,694 234,768
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Revenue from the three (2022: three) largest
customers amounted to HK$2,464,805,000 (2022:
HK$2,092,415,000), HK$1,083,578,000 (2022:
HK$2,276,744,000) and HK$958,094,000 (2022:
HK$2,095,896,000) respectively, which individually
contributed more than 10% of total revenue of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2023. All these customers
are under the management contracting and the property
development management segments.

OTHER INCOME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

WARSDEHER (#)

RE=H(ZE-_—F:=%)5=x
BEEZWAD B A2,464,805,000
B (ZF = =%:2,092,415,000
#7T) ~1,083,578,0008 7T (=&
— — 4% :2,276,744,000 70 ) &
958,094,000 T (=T = —

2,095,896,0007% 7t ) + 1@ 51k AN &
BEHz T -_=—F=HA=+—H81t
FEZHAWABBIO% WERF
BAREEERMEBREE DI

H o I 58

2023 2022
—E_-= =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank and other interest income R1T M E AR B EE 2,610 2,213
Government and other subsidies BT B B A 485 B 2,441 1,898
Income from disposal of construction HEREREmZ
scrap Wz 1,125 1,512
Sundry income 1AW 1,657 3,280
7,833 8,903
FINANCE COSTS Rl & L A
2023 2022
—E-= —_=_
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMERZ2FE 61,129 39,774
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGBZFE 1,951 2,925
63,080 42,699

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

WRITE-DOWN OF STOCK OF PROPERTIES

Stock of properties represented the completed properties
held for sale which are situated in Jiangsu Province,
the PRC. The write-down of stock of properties of
HK$1,481,000 recognised for the year ended 31 March
2022 was attributable to the decline in net realisable value
which represented the sales proceeds estimated based on
the comparable properties of similar characteristics and
location under prevailing market condition, less applicable
selling expenses.

MEFE 2R E KB

MEGEURTRIHE HEX
ITHELEZYE -BHE-_T =
FZAZTRUFEVEGTER
R BEME 1,481,000 T2 BN
AJEIREE TR MRl #IRF
BERENBITMSBR TEELD
M B Rl B LR 2 SHE TS
REGHE  WREABERZHEERE -

FAIR VALUE CHANGES OF INVESTMENT REMEZLATFEEH
PROPERTIES
Leasehold
properties
HEWMHE
HK$'000
FAT
Fair value AY¥E
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33) RVEUR BE BT B A &) (BI5E33) 196,919
Translation adjustments VE R AR FRR 3,689
Decrease in fair value recognised BRZAFERD (1,341)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) RBIELEME AR (H5E35) (199,267)

At 31 March 2022 RZE-_—_F#=ZRF=+—H -

Investment properties represented the leasehold properties
in the PRC. The fair values of the investment properties at
the dates of deemed acquisition and deemed disposal had
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out as at
those dates by independent qualified professional valuers
not connected with the Group. The management worked
closely with the external qualified professional valuers to
establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurement.

The fair value hierarchy of the measurement of the
investment properties was Level 3 and the fair value
measurement was on a recurring basis.

REMERURTEZHEEDX-
BREMERNBERER RBRELE
BZRVPERREBHENEEM
BEEZEIAERBEXEMGEME
TEEFE-BEEEINIGSE
REEGEMBYEE LEER
BRI M aw ABRZY A FENG

=
= °

REMFRFAEZRFEFRARE=
Ao MAFEDRESELEFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

10. FREHER (ER)

2023 2022
—=== — T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Hong Kong B5E
Current tax INEEY ] 551 931
Under (over) provision in BEFEBETR
prior years (HERERE) 475 (2,434)
1,026 (1,503)
Macau and other jurisdictions RERHEMREEE
Current tax N HR R TR - 56
Overprovision in prior years BEFERBEREE (503) (127)
(503) (71)
Deferred taxation (Note 31) EERTE (BFFE31) = 41
523 (1,533)

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong
Kong Profits Tax, the first HK$2 million of assessable profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%,
and assessable profits above HK$2 million will be taxed
at 16.5%. The assessable profits of group entities not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Taxation arising in Macau and other jurisdictions
is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (Continued) 10.
The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be
reconciled to the profit before tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as follows:

e M RAR MR

2028 BIZE-ZE-_=F=A=+—HLEFE

FiEHEN (ER) (8
AFEREZFAEHRER (%) RIEE
Bas & PO 2 BR AR B 2 ¥ Bk 40
T

2023 2022
—E=-= —FE=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FH&T
Profit before tax B 75 B & A 22,308 34,593
Tax at the domestic tax BRI E165% (ZF
rate of 16.5% T :165%)5E
(2022: 16.5%) Z IR 3,681 5,708
Tax effect of share of results of BiOBME L R RAaEDE
associates and joint ventures KB MG E 157 601
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ERBHFTEATIRAL
for tax purpose ZHBRE 6,812 6,652
Tax effect of income not taxable for ERLFE 7 E B AR M =
tax purpose LB E (5.341) (11,727)
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAUMRE R =
differences not recognised LB E 51 52
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible &) FH 4% A oK 7 52 AT H1 R
temporary differences previously B ERE NG
not recognised B (115) (492)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RAERVEBB RGBT E 16,530 30,633
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B ALRAIRBERNIEEE
previously not recognised 2R E (22,579) (31,015)
Tax effect of different tax rates in EM e AR TR E
other jurisdictions BT E 1,355 616
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHEBERE (28) (2,561)
Income tax expense (credit) for the year FEZHAEHER (K2) 523 (1,533)
Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 31. EERIE 2 sF B E R M EE31 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. FERF
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging FREEMEMR (FTA) -
(crediting):
2023 2022
—E2-= - = —
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5k FERT FAT
Auditor’s remuneration % EREM B & 2,740 2,179
Depreciation of property, plant ERR - TN L
and equipment e (a) 37,881 42,855
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTREEEZIE (a) 28,656 32,219
Expenses relating to short-term BEIHHE REEE
leases and leases of low-value EEMHEB#BZ
assets Fi (b) 333,025 341,410
Gain on disposal of other HEHEMBEREEZ
intangible asset gl (3,060) -
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, HEME - &R
plant and equipment Z BB (AF) 6,181 (225)
Loss on termination of leases RIS 2 B 73 63
Net exchange gain M5 AT HEE (7,217) (1,224)
Staff costs B IR (© 1,067,875 1,138,627
Notes: Bt 5 -
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax F
(a) Depreciation: (a) #TE&:
Property, plant and equipment Y2 - W R 37,881 42,855
Right-of-use assets TRAEEE 28,656 32,219
66,537 75,074
Analysed as: PR
Amount included in cost of sales FTAEER ANz &% 26,125 30,442
Amount included in administrative expenses FEATTHEBR &% 40,412 44,632
66,537 75,074
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|A|_ STATEMENTS
nVT\ I:I P j%#ﬁ% Izﬁ--\-I

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#ZE=-—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILEE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 11. FEBRF (#)
Notes: (Continued) BoeE: (#8)
2023 2022
—E-=HF g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
(b) Expenses relating to short-term leases (b) EEHHERBEEEEE
and leases of low-value assets: HEEBE2MEX:
Premises mE 6,833 4,854
Plant and machinery A B i 2R 318,359 333,621
Other assets Ha&EE 7,833 2,935
333,025 341,410
Analysed as: DR :
Amount included in cost of sales FTAHER AR &8 328,830 339,212
Amount included in administrative expenses FFATHERZ SR 4,195 2,198
333,025 341,410
(c) Staff costs: () EITRA:
Directors’ emoluments: BE=Me:
Fees Hwe - 122
Salaries and other benefits N & E A2 20,339 19,569
Discretionary bonus T E FE 4T 6,266 24,055
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BARRE A ET B R 1,026 987
27,631 44,733
Other staff costs: Hfh B ITRRA:
Salaries, discretionary bonus and other BB BB TEAL A
benefits & ) 1,009,146 1,060,817
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BARRE A ET B R 31,098 33,077
1,040,244 1,093,894
1,067,875 1,138,627
Analysed as: DT A
Amount included in cost of sales FFABENAZ & 870,534 907,046
Amount included in administrative expenses FFATTHRERA22E ({0
(net of government grants W I 4 Bh 8,596,000
of HK$8,596,000 (2022: B (ZE -4
HK$2,482,000)) 2,482,000/ 7T) ) 197,341 231,581
1,067,875 1,138,627
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

N

e M RAR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

11.

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group has received government
grants of HK$8,596,000 (2022: HK$2,482,000) which mainly represent
the funding from the Anti-epidemic Fund as promulgated by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. There is no
unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attached to the receipts.

DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed during the years ended
31 March 2023 and 2022.

At a meeting held on 3 April 2023, the board of directors
proposed a special dividend by way of distribution in specie
of the entire interest in financial assets measured at FVOCI
of 28 unlisted shares in Octagoonies Limited to shareholders
on the basis of 1 share in Octagoonies Limited for every
141,315,897 shares held in the Company as at 3 April
2023.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME -HRBRXE
Furniture,
Leasehold Plant, Yacht and fixtures
land and  machinery and motor and office
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment Total
AELH  BH BE B HE RER
kg7 FES RRE  BOZRE &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRL TR TR TR TEL

Cost 72
At 1 April 2021 A\E--%NA-H 38,625 257,001 59,469 136,088 491,183
Translation adjustments e - 1 310 291 602
Additions RE - 28,969 6,950 10,919 46,838
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 33)  BfEEMBA A (H333) - - 18 761 1,179
Disposals ik - (9,269) (488) (539) (10,296)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35) B {et EMBAA (Hi35) - - (1,008) (923) (1931)
At 31 March 2022 R_E--E=f=1-H 38,625 276,702 65,651 146,597 527,575
Translation adjustments ERA% - 6 (526) (237) (757)
Additions RE - 2,324 13,978 5317 21,619
Additions through acquisition of a EANE-HNBARAE

subsidiary (Note 32) (MTBZ) 23,014 = = = 23,014
Disposals HE - (15,090) (1,498) (3,595) (20,183)
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 34) HEMBAF (H534) - - (6,682) (446) (7,128)
At 31 March 2023 \ZEZ=E=f=+-H 61,639 263,942 70,923 147,636 544,140
Depreciation iﬁé
At 1 April 2021 A\—E--FENA-H 3,662 223,820 39,882 80,069 347433
Translation adjustments EiHE - 1 282 231 514
Provided for the year AEERE 1332 17,620 6,726 17177 42,855
Fliminated on disposals HERHH - (8,946) (363) (495) (9,804)
Fliminated on deemed disposal of BIEHERBRA K S

subsidiaries (Note 35) (H#35) - - (97) (408) (505)
At 31 March 2022 RZE--F=f=1-H 4,994 232,495 46,430 96,574 380,493
Translation adjustments 5 EE - 6 (500) (165) (659)
Provided for the year REERE 1,447 11,759 8,084 16,591 37,881
Fliminated on disposals i E & - (5243) (1,498) (1.867) (8,608)
Fliminated on disposal of subsidaries HEMBAF G H

(Note 34) (Biiz4) - - (6,348) (439) (6,787)
At 31 March 2023 ZE-CFZR=1-H 6,441 239,017 46,168 110,694 402,320
Carrying amount EEWE
At 31 March 2023 A\ZE-ZEZR=+-H 55,198 24,925 24,755 36,942 141,820
At 31 March 2022 \_EZZFZR=1-H 33,631 44,207 19,221 50,023 147,082
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13.
The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates

M EERERE (@
i MR R RE T NE SE
BT FRAEE

140

per annum:
Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of lease HELHEREF HEH
Plant, machinery and equipment  10% — 33'/3% W -t R I 10% - 33'5%
By
Yacht and motor vehicles 10% — 20% PeME N 5 E 10% — 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office 10% — 33'5% FE-EKER 10% — 33'5%
equipment WAERME
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FRAEEE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leased Motor and office
properties vehicles equipment Total
RE -HEBE
EAE
HEWE RE BE F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FHETT FHTT FH&T
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 March RZE—=F=A
2023 =t+—H 40,569 83 1,507 42,159
At 31 March RZEZZF=H
2022 =t+—H 64,727 256 2,077 67,060
Depreciation e
For the year ended HE-_T-_=F=A
31 March 2023 =+—HIFE 27,913 173 570 28,656
For the year ended HE_ZT-__F=H
31 March 2022 =t+—HILFE 29,904 1,764 551 32,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B RRM R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2023, additions to the right-
of-use assets amounted to HK$4,480,000 in respect of new
leases (2022: HK$23,187,000 and HK$3,449,000 in respect
of new leases and deemed acquisition of subsidiaries,
respectively).

For the year ended 31 March 2022, impairment allowance
on right-of-use assets amounted to HK$3,379,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, expenses relating to
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets amounted
to HK$325,192,000 (2022: HK$338,475,000) and
HK$7,833,000 (2022: HK$2,935,000), respectively.

Total cash outflow for leases amounted to HK$364,372,000
(2022: HK$376,937,000) for the year ended 31 March
2023.

For both years, the Group leases various offices, plant and
machinery, motor vehicles and equipment for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for term of up to five years,
but may have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period based on the contractual terms of the contract.

The Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of either
a significant event or a significant change in circumstances
that is within the control of the lessee. During the years
ended 31 March 2023 and 2022, there is no such triggering
event.

At the end of the reporting period, the portfolio of short-
term leases to which it is committed is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term lease
expense disclosed above.

14. FREEE (&)

HE2-_ZT-_=¢=A=+—H1t
FE BT EAEMAEFEHE
BESERLL80,0008 T (ZF
T oF RHFAIAE G EREEN
B AF oAl A23,187,000/%8 T &
3,449,000/ 7T ) °

BHE-_ZET-_—_F#=A=+—81F
FE FTRAEEEZRERBGA
3,379,000/ 7T ©

BE-_T-_=F=A=+—HItHF
E-HEOBHEREEEEERE
B 2AYX D 51/4325,192,0007% 7T
(=% = — % :338,475,000/ 7T )
7,833,000 0 (=& = =
2,935,000 7T ) °

HE_T_=ZF#=ZA=+—H
HFE HEZH2RLBREAS
364,372,000 T (& ==
376,937,000/ ) °

AEERMEFERESERA
E-EMEEE TERREES
E-HEANWAHARRAFAIL
BrgAEEHEER HEHRK
18 51 15 5 17 79 B T - H 16 AR R AR 1
ENMHER - REEHEEDRMFFHD
ARENBRE  AEERHAA L
HITE & RIRE A O IRRETHR -

RELEBABRAZEHEEANER
EMRBERABRE LR AEEE
BERNAET SRR ESTEEMR
EER-NBE_T-_=ZFK=-F
T CHEZA=t—BHLFE HE
HEWERBBERNES,-

REBEBRR BAFERREEES

5 b A B A0 S AR B & B 5
RrEHHEEEAEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

15.

GOODWILL 15. B8
HK$'000
FHET
Cost A
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 N_T-—45NA—H —T-4K
and 2023 —E=%=R=+—H 14,292
Accumulated impairment R EE
At 1 April 2021, 31 March 2022 N-—E-—45MA—B —T--FR
and 2023 —E_=%=R=+—H (2,766)
Carrying amount REE
At 31 March 2022 R-B-Z—_FR-F_=F
and 2023 =A=+—H 11,526
For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount HETRENATES HERHE

of goodwill has been allocated to the cash-generating unit
of building construction in the management contracting
segment.

The recoverable amount of the above cash-generating unit
has been determined based on value in use calculations.
The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by management
for the next two years (2022: two years) and extrapolates
cash flows for the following five years (2022: five years)
with a steady growth rate of 5% (2022: 5%) plus a terminal
growth rate of 3% (2022: 3%). The rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows is 9% (2022: 9%). The value in
use calculations is calculated based on the budgeted
gross margin, which is determined using the unit's past
performance and the management’s expectations for the
market development.

The management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
aggregate carrying amount to exceed the recoverable
amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17.

16. Hitb B EE

2023 2022

—ZE_= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
Club membership in Hong Kong, at cost BB Z g LKA - 7,000
Motor vehicles registration marks, at cost B8 & R 55 - LA A 1,035 1,035
1,035 8,035

The above intangible assets have indefinite useful lives. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the motor
vehicles registration marks are worth at least their carrying
amounts by reference to latest market prices.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

17. S8 ¥R

tEPEEREERERFH-
ARRERLK2ERHNMIHERE
RR EWMECLKRBZ2EEELA
EFRHEKME-

2023 2022
—E=-= —_E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint WERFELTEEREL
ventures DN 997 997
Share of post-acquisition (losses) profits BiaWEER 2 (B8 &R
and other comprehensive (expense) REMEE (X)W
income, net of dividends received B B U E AR B (843) 68
154 1,065
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g A

e IR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 HZ =T ==

—F _=

F=ZRA=t-RBLFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 17. GELEER (H)
Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not BERLIEBERZEERELER
individually material: HRNE -
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
The Group's share of loss REE#E(NEE (941) (10,856)
The Group's share of other AEE#GEMEE
comprehensive income U & 30 1,336
The Group's share of total AEEHEEEZERAX
comprehensive expense 4B R (911) (9,520)
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEEREEPEER
Group's interests in joint ventures 2 REBE 154 1,065
Particulars of the Group's principal joint ventures as at 31 REBXTEGERER_T_=F
March 2023 and 2022 are set out in note 46(c). =T —F=ZA=+—HZ=FE

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FVOCI

In November 2022, the Group acquired the unlisted equity
securities of 2.59% equity interest in Cordoba Homes
Limited (“Cordoba”) at a consideration of HK$240,000,000
which was fully satisfied by the promissory note receivable.
Transaction costs incurred for the acquisition amounted to
HK$1,500,000. Upon the completion of the restructuring
of Cordoba in December 2022, Octagoonies Limited, a
private limited company incorporated in the Marshall Islands
and is principally engaged in investment holding in Hong
Kong, became the holding company of Cordoba and the
Group’s unlisted equity securities represent 2.8% equity
interest in Octagoonies Limited thereafter. As at 31 March
2023, the fair value of financial assets measured at FVOCI is
HK$216,000,000 (2022: Nil).

Details of fair value measurement are set out in note 39(c).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

19. BEZRHMERRE -TEK

PREPAYMENTS B RIE
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Trade debtors g 5 RN 1,467,067 1,462,316
Less: Impairment allowance OB R (32,135) (78,518)
1,434,932 1,383,798
Advance payments to sub-contractors M5 # 7 2 2 BN I8 191,033 209,768
Construction and material purchase costs KD HEZ M2 E2ER
paid on behalf of sub-contractors MEHR B AR 524,104 487,938
Other debtors, deposits and Hih W sIE sl &k
prepayments TEF I8 451,919 375,426
1,167,056 1,073,132
Less: Impairment allowance R RE R (213,644) (179,752)
953,412 893,380
2,388,344 2,277,178

Trade debtors mainly arise from management contracting
business. The Group’s credit terms for its management
contracting business are negotiated at terms determined
and agreed with its customers. The credit periods are
ranging from 60 to 90 days.

As at 31 March 2023, construction and material purchase
costs paid on behalf of sub-contractors relating to
a joint venture amounted to HK$3,457,000 (2022:
HK$77,710,000).

BORKARETEZREEAEZEERE
B AREBAREEEEKZEER
TEAERPFPER NI - EEHH
60H £90H 1" 5 -

R-_EBE-_=F=A=+—H #&—
MeEtE¥EFlEzRIPHBmINZ
B R OEHER B K AR &3,457,000
B (ZZE = —-9:77,710,000/8
JL) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 19.

PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

The aged analysis of trade debtors, net of impairment
allowance, presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

ESRHEMEBRARE TEK
FE AT RRIE (4)

RBERR NEREHRELEZ
W EIMBRERBRZE S EK

RIAZ REDHTANT

2023 2022

—EC-=HF | —ZE-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Within 90 days 90H A 381,799 320,455
More than 90 days and within 180 days FEEI0REM180H A 1,551 890
More than 180 days H#@E180H 1,051,582 1,062,453
1,434,932 1,383,798

Included in the trade debtors aged more than 180 days is an
amount of HK$1,017,986,000 (2022: HK$1,017,986,000)
which is covered by the retention right over the building
constructed under the construction contracts.

The Group's trade and other debtors that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

SFARERBIBI1S0ENE F B WA
F-1,017,986,000 0 (ZFE = =
% :1,017,986,000/ 7T ) K 7 B %
BIEREANEENEEYBE
T ARBE -

AEENEBEEEERINEEEIN
Sz EBREMZE S MEMEK
FOREIN AT

2023 2022
—E-= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T AT
Macau Pataca (“MOP") SRPIEE (TBPI% ) 15 15
Renminbi (“RMB") AREB(TAR®E]) 26,534 311

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRNEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

20. EHNEBERERE

2023 2022
—E-= —_=__
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
BT 2% FET THET
Retention held by customers EFPEAEZRESR (a) 1,296,942 1,246,569
Unbilled revenue of construction BEAHNRBEEE 2
contracts W A (b) 3,611,482 3,114,493
Advances from customers of TEWEEAENRR
construction contracts I8 (c) (957,897) (561,937)
3,950,527 3,799,125
Less: Impairment allowance OB E R (7.853) (7,845)
3,942,674 3,791,280
Analysed as: DA (d)
Contract assets BHEE 4,631,416 4,130,827
Contract liabilities SHEE (688,742) (339,547)

3,942,674 3,791,280

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39(b).

Notes:

(@) Retention held by customers represents the Group’s right to
consideration for works performed and the rights are conditional
upon the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over
a certain period as stipulated in the contracts. The retention held
by customers are transferred to trade debtors when the rights

become unconditional, which is typically at the expiration of the

defect liability period.

As at 31 March 2023, retention held by customers expected

to be settled within and after 12 months from the end
of the reporting period amounted to HK$749,911,000
(2022: HK$696,975,000) and HK$547,031,000 (2022:

HK$549,594,000), respectively.

BB R 5 2 F BRI FE39(b)

HRE

(a)

BEPHAEZRESEREBERA T
PR T2 SR B ORI - Tz %
BRNAFEPNENTRZ —BH
MAHRBERRTMERTAE
B BRFHNRBEGSE (—&R
REMEMR) K BEFFEZKRE

CHEBEEE S EWE-
RN-ZEBE_=F=A=+—10 8F

A
BB HRE I AREBE 120 A
ARI1I2EREBEEZRE S DA
£749,911,0008 70 (Z T = ZF:
696,975,000/ 7t ) % 547,031,000
B (ZF = = 549,594,000/
T e
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BB HwAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Unbilled revenue represents the Group’s right to consideration
for works completed and not yet certified because the rights
are conditional upon the satisfaction by the customers on the
construction works completed by the Group and the works is
pending for the certification by the customers. The unbilled
revenue is transferred to trade debtors when the rights become
unconditional, which is typically at the time the Group obtains
the certification of the completed construction works from the
customers.

Advances from customers include the non-refundable payment
received from customers, for which the Group has obligation to
transfer goods or services to customers.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current assets
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

Contract liabilities of the Group, which are expected to be settled
within the Group's normal operating cycle, are classified as
current liabilities.

Revenue from construction contracts recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2023 that was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year was HK$318,214,000 (2022:
HK$413,758,000).

As at 31 March 2023, contract assets relating to joint ventures
amounted to HK$74,144,000 (2022: HK$420,217,000) while
contract liabilities relating to a joint venture amounted to
HK$35,680,000 (2022: Nil).

The increase in contract assets during the year was mainly due
to changes in the number and the size of contract works that
the relevant services were completed but yet been certified by
the customers at the end of the reporting period. The increase
in contract liabilities was mainly due to increase in advance
payments from customers.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

E/\Gﬁ?&gﬁ :fﬁﬂ)

B

(b)

C (&)

REZRBEZWABREERE TX
BRARZE N TR E R

REZERNAGEPREARHE
FSERESETIRE T AIFE - ME#
IRIDEGEPZE - E%FRAK

BEEE (—RAAEEESEPXZ
BOTRBETER)K RERE
ZWABBEE 5 EUGRIE

RKEEFEPZRWHARERERP K
FNTRENNT . AEEB A W
FPERERARBHEE-

HE-EOHENANEERAN
BERFELEARRZS-

AEBBREANEESEARD
g HEAEEEHNEEHHE
AL ITET TR

RAEBEBADNABEIBARDERE

TAREETBHNELER & &R
NEEEHARE
FAFVE REZE -_=

F=ZR= + Eiifﬁw
A #U A 5318,214,0005 7T <7 =
— Z%:413,758,000/ 7T ) °

R-TZ-_=ZF=ZA=+—H BHL%L
TEBBZEHEAERT4,144,000
B (ZZ = =4 :420,217,000/%
) MEAEREEHEZAENAR
£35,680,0008 L (===
fm) o

BHEERFREMEZRHAR
ﬁiﬂiﬁﬁn&ﬁhiﬁggﬁ
REZABRBZEBAHNTIER
ERREEMEBELAB-ANAEE
BNEERRNE S BN RIAE AR
B o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES 21. BEREZME A RIFKIE
2023 2022
—ZE_= g
HK$'000 HK$'000
THE T FAET
Trade and other balances B 5 REMEEH
Other balances H b 4555 = 3,725
Other balances due from fellow subsidiaries were BRI RZMEB AR 2 it AE
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. BEHR RERERERKEE-
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39(b). B FTAE 2 FE B H M FE39(b) ©

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO AN ASSOCIATE/JOINT 22. B t—REBELT &

VENTURES 1 ERIE
(a) Amount due from an associate (a) EW—HEBEQATRRE
2023 2022
—E_-=5F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade and other balance B 5 N E A4
Other balance Hfib 4554 5,820 5,820
(b) Amounts due from joint ventures (b) EREEDERE
2023 2022
—E-=5F —E=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET F&T
Trade and other balances B 5 M E A
Trade balance = rt 3 5,079 -
Other balances H b & 20,527 4,289
25,606 4,289
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

22.

23.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO AN ASSOCIATE/JOINT 22, Bl [ —REBE L T A&
VENTURES (Continued) P EFKIE ()
(b) Amounts due from joint ventures (Continued) (b) EREEDLERE(HE)
The trade balance due from a joint venture which has a W —EaeEhE 2B HER
credit period of 90 days is aged more than 90 days and ZEEHA90R MR K& H
within 180 days based on the invoice date at the end AANBEZRHRREEZRIRA
of the reporting period. HBiBI0BEMR180H A -
() Amount due to a joint venture (c) EN—BEEELERE
2023 2022
—E_-= —=E-
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Trade and other balance B REME
Other balance H b 4 84 874 60
Other balances due from or to an associate and joint JEW S EN — R E AR RE & D
ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on FEZHMERAEER 28 KA
demand. REREERER-
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39(b). BB 2 FF B M FE39(b) ©
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT OPERATIONS/ 23. B REEELE S-ER

OTHER PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS
Amounts represent balances due from and to joint
operations, which are deemed to be borne by other
partners of such joint operations, and other partners of
joint operations. The balances due from joint operations
and other partners of joint operations are HK$58,503,000
(2022: HK$44,622,000) and HK$106,771,000 (2022:
HK$173,647,000), respectively. The balances due to
joint operations and other partners of joint operations
are HK$467,265,000 (2022: HK$85,252,000) and
HK$112,598,000 (2022: HK$12,292,000), respectively.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

H fth % ¥ 5B
ZEREEERKENAG EER
(R ASHZEEEEBEME
HREIREEEBEMBH 2 &
BoRREEEBRREEEKEM
12 4525 B 558,503,000/ 7T
(ZF = — % 44,622,000/ 1) &
106,771,000 T (&2 = —
173,647,000/ 7T) - BT & & %5
NEEEBEMBHE &80 AR
467,265,000 L (ZE = = F:
85,252,000/ 7t ) &% 112,598,000
B (2T - Z4:12,292,000/8
JT) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRRNEE

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

23. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT OPERATIONS/

(Continued)

23. B NEEEY SEEK

OTHER PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS H{th %8 ¥ FKIE (4)
(a) Amounts due from joint operations/other (a) EWREEER SEEBH
partners of joint operations it 5% % I8
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade and other balances B 5 REMEH
Trade balances s 14,184 834
Other balances H fib 45 55 70,810 64,273
Non-trade balances IEE FEER 80,280 153,162
165,274 218,269

(b)

The trade balances due from joint operations/other
partners of joint operations which have a credit
period of 90 days on average and the balances of
HK$890,000, HK$6,572,000 and HK$6,722,000
(2022: HK$297,000, HK$187,000 and HK$350,000)
are aged within 90 days, more than 90 days and
within 180 days and more than 180 days, respectively,
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting

period.

Amounts due to joint operations/other partners

of joint operations

(b)

EREEER  AEEBHH
BN ESEBR 2FHE
B HIA908 - M 4 £2:890,000
I +6,572,000% T &
6,722,000 T (=& ==
297,000/ 7T ~ 187,000 7T &
350,000 70 ) R 3R E HAR A3
ZREAEE RIS B A0
B HiE90HER180H K
N Bi8180H »

ENEEXY AEEKH
i % £+ 7"

2023 2022
—E-= —E-=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T F&T

Trade and other balances B 5 REMEH
Trade balance B o5 &E%n 543 569
Other balances H b R 25,911 37,549
Non-trade balances IEE B R 553,409 59,426
579,863 97,544

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 3§



152

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

23.

24,

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO JOINT OPERATIONS/
OTHER PARTNERS OF JOINT OPERATIONS
(Continued)
(b) Amounts due to joint operations/other partners
of joint operations (Continued)
The trade balance due to joint operations/other
partners of joint operations which has a credit period
of 90 days is aged more than 180 days based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Other balances and non-trade balances due from and
to joint operations/other partners of joint operations are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39(b).

23. B NEEEY SEEK

Ha B FE (|)

(b) BERNEEXEY AEXKH
fitb 3 ;IR (80D
BNEEER AEEBEM
BHZESBEHBRZEREHR0
B MRS HRAERBH
REEZ IR SHEE180H °

R RENEERY AEEHH

Bz EMERNIEE R ERR

EEA 2B RARBREER-

B RS 2 F BB FE39(b) °

LOANS RECEIVABLE . ERER

2023 2022
—E-=fF —_E-_=

HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
Loans receivable JE U & X 453,855 447,855
Less: Impairment allowance B R E B (270,629) (270,629)
183,226 177,226

The loans receivable are unsecured, interest bearing at
floating rates at the best lending rate in Hong Kong plus
2% to 6% per annum and are repayable on demand,
except for an aggregate amount of HK$6,000,000, which is
repayable within one year.

Included in loans receivable, the gross carrying amount
of HK$181,770,000 with impairment allowance of
HK$4,544,000 at the end of the reporting period is covered
by the retention right over the building constructed under
the construction contracts.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 39(b).
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BRERABER RESRER
FENFEB2%E6% 278 F| R
ERERBRIBEEE HAHE
6,000,000/ 7T 2 FUIEAR —FAE
8o

RBEBRR - FTFABBERF E
M 4218181,770,000/% 7T ({8 B &
4,544,000/ 0 ) 2 B X B IEEE
BHRENEEY  BERRE-

BB FHE 2 F B EN M FE39(b) ©
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLE

As at 31 March 2023, the zero-coupon six-month
promissory note with a principal amount of
HK$250,000,000 is issued by the ultimate holding company
of the Company for the settlement of subscription monies
of rights issue on 28 October 2022. The maturity date
of the promissory note is subsequently extended for six
months.

As at 31 March 2022, the zero-coupon three-
month promissory note with a principal amount of
HK$241,335,000 was issued by a fellow subsidiary for
the settlement of subscription monies of rights issue on
behalf of the Company’'s immediate holding company.
In November 2022, this promissory note was settled in
full by setting off against the consideration payable for
the acquisition of financial assets measured at FVOCI of
HK$240,000,000 with the balance of HK$1,335,000 by
cash.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND RESTRICTED
CASH, SHORT TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

The pledged bank deposits and restricted cash represent
deposits or cash placed in financial institutions as collateral
for performance bonds. The pledged bank deposits and
short term bank deposits with maturity less than three
months carry prevailing market rates ranging from 1.40%
to 3.72% (2022: 0.05% to 2.36%) per annum. The bank
balances carry prevailing market rates ranging from 0% to
0.88% (2022: 0% to 0.42%) per annum. The restricted
cash is interest-free.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and restricted cash,
short term bank deposits and bank balances and cash that
are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

25.

26.

AR RE
RZB_=F=A=+—H %%
©%¥8/$250,000,0008 T2 TR BN
(ERZRESZIES Pl RN IS 3524
RomREL AREE T -
TAZTNAZHENREER -
AAEBEZINMAERERNE
Ao

RZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H &%
© % 5241,335,0008 T2 EE LS
—EAEAREERTYR —ER RN
BRAARARQRAZEEEZER AR
Bl ARGEEHROREER-
RZEZ—F+— A hERLERE
EEBEEKBEATFEFAELM
rEHUE eRMEEZCEMNRE
240,000,000 7T & £ ¥81,335,000
BILABE2HES-

EBEFRTEARARZIRFIR
& EHRTERRRBRITER
EEE
EEABRTHERAEXBRHRESET
BMRERmEBIEARNREBES 2K
HRZEREBe BEBETHE
RELR=ZMEARH 2 EHRETHF
HHEFEBB1.40%%E3.72% (=
L - _F:0.05%F2.36%) 2 R1T
MBHA K- BITHEKRMEFE AR
0%%F088% (T - —F:0%%
0.42%)2 BR17 T 45 F & o Z R $I3R
LARE-

AEENEEEEERINEEE U
SNz BB REBEL 2 EEIFRITHER
RERHRE BHRTERELR
THHBLRSEINMT

2023 2022
:‘EZE _=__

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHTT

MOP B P 94 121

RMB AR 19,534 31,037

United States dollar (“USD") Ex([Ex]) 26 26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

27.

TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 27. EZRHMEMARERESH
EXPENSES 53
2023 2022
—E-= B

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Trade creditors B S e RIE 678,028 708,900
Retention held by the Group AEBRFHEZRE® 1,294,551 1,263,895
Accrued construction costs JEETE AR 2,090,945 2,680,969
Other creditors and accrued expenses H b S 5E R R S 600,638 657,942
4,664,162 5,311,706

The average credit period of trade creditors is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that all payables are within the credit time frame.

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on the

BHRMNRAEZFHERH RO

B-AREREEREARERHRK
BRMEBEENREAEEERR
7 o

RBMERR UBFZEHRELER

invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: WMeBESRENRBEZER TN
T
2023 2022
—E-= = —
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Within 90 days 90H 614,149 597,207
More than 90 days and within 180 days FBiIBI0HER180H A 12,399 91,801
More than 180 days HBiE180H 51,480 19,892
678,028 708,900

Retention held by the Group expected to be settled
within and after 12 months from the end of the reporting
period are HK$880,429,000 (2022: HK$862,627,000) and
HK$414,122,000 (2022: HK$401,268,000) respectively.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

AEEFAEERAER

WEHRE

2@ ARKRI2ME A B & 2R
& & 9 Rl £880,429,000/% 7T ( —
LT — —£:862,627,0008 L) &
414,122,000/ ¢ (==
401,268,000/ 7T ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED 27. ESREHMEMNFERESHE

EXPENSES (Continued) X (&)
The Group's trade and other creditors and accrued AEEUEESEEREEEEN
expenses that are denominated in currencies other than the BB RENZE S RAMER
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out FIE R EST R #HI T -
below:
2023 2022
—EZ=F —_E_—
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
MOP R P 847 847
28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&AE
2023 2022
—Eg—= —EF=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Lease liabilities repayable as MEABEARNATHRA
follows: BiE -
Within one year —F A 29,333 28,217
After one year but within two years —FRERBWENAN 16,407 27,969
After two years but within five years MEBERAEA 508 15,648
46,248 71,834
Less: Amount due within one year B — FEREEN S R
shown under current liabilities FAaENIE (29,333) (28,217)
Amount due after one year shown —F 1B EAI B EIE TR ED
under non-current liabilities BEZHIE 16,915 43,617
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

29.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS . BRITREMER
2023 2022
:S:: —_=__
HK$'000 HK$ 000
Bank and other borrowings comprises: RITREMERELE:
Bank loans RITER 1,560,296 1,082,393
Other loan H b &R = 50,000
1,560,296 1,132,393
Analysed as: DR
Secured KA 1,520,296 1,045,100
Unsecured 4 3 3 40,000 87,293
1,560,296 1,132,393
Repayable as follows: EERANT
Within one year —FA 1,560,296 1,132,393

The Group’s bank loans carry interests at floating rates
ranging from the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus
1.3% 10 2.2% (2022: 1.3% to 2.2%), with effective interest
rates ranging from 4.26% to 5.55% (2022: 1.50% to
2.52%) per annum. The Group's other loan carried interest
at a fixed rate of 5% per annum.

The secured bank loans are secured by the Group's
leasehold land and building in Hong Kong of
HK$32,299,000 (2022: HK$33,631,000) and benefits from
certain construction contracts.

During the year, notwithstanding one of the financial
covenant requirements set for the Group in two of its
subsidiaries’ banking facilities not being fulfilled, the
concerning bank did not exercise its right to demand
immediate full repayment of the outstanding bank
borrowings. By the end of the year, another subsidiary
obtained new banking facilities with the same bank and
the financial covenant requirements were set lower such
that the Group could meet the new financial covenant
requirements. The directors considered that obtaining the
new banking facilities by the subsidiary from the same
bank was similar to obtaining a waiver from the bank by
the Group. As at 31 March 2023, the Group's outstanding
bank borrowings with the concerning bank were
HK$276,020,000 and the utilisation of the banking facilities
was maintained normally.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

REBEZRFHMNEGF B ZRITHE
FE R REFBRITRAER
BI13%E22% (T -4
1.3%E2.2%)i B BEREFEFEN
F4.26%E555% (- &~ —F:
1.50%%2.52%) - AL B H A &K
ZEE FFE5%ET B -

BEHEBBETERDDURNEEESTE
ZHE T K EF 32,299,000/ T
(=T~ —%:33,631,000/8 ) &
AETREGNVEE ZF=ERR-

RERN BEAEBRERBITHE
EMNE AR ZEITREFTEIA 2
Hh—HBBREE K B@ET
WARITEEENERKRRG2EER
KREZRITER - RFEKRAT B—MH
MEARNRE —IRITESHIEITR
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

30. OBLIGATIONS IN EXCESS OF INTERESTS IN
ASSOCIATES

30. BHEMENRRERE2EME

2023 2022
—E-= —EF=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Cost of unlisted investments in HERIE LT E QA
associates Z AR 1,561 1,561
Share of post-acquisition losses and BhkERzZEER
other comprehensive expense, net H2HEMAX  MkE
of dividends received W ER AR 2 (3,937) (3,627)
(2,376) (2,066)

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
material:

BRI HBEAZBEAFZERN

2023 2022
—s=-= —ET-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The Group's share of (loss) profit REEEN (EE) & (10) 7,213
The Group's share of other AEBBGEMEE
comprehensive expense 3 (300) (28)
The Group's share of total AEE®EE2E (AX)
comprehensive (expense) income e 48 8 (310) 7,185
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBEBHEE QA
Group's obligations in excess of mzEEZ
interests in associates EEAE (2,376) (2,066)
Particulars of the Group's principal associate as at 31 March AEBTERERAR_T_=F

2023 and 2022 are set out in note 46(b).

T _F=ZA=+—HZ=HE
5 BT 5E46(b) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

31. DEFERRED TAXATION
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and

31. IEERIE
RAEAFERBAFEEHRAZLTE
EREBIERE (BE) RIEAEEH 0N

prior years:

Accelerated

T

tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
B MRTE BREEE Hitr @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AT AT AT
At 1 April 2021 R-E-—£mA—F 7,264 (7,264) - -
Translation adjustments R EE - - 196 196
Deemed acquisition of RIEKBENRB AR
subsidiaries (Note 33) (Ft5E33) - - 13,204 13,204
Charge (credit) to profit or loss REZNR (T A) 980 (980) 41 41
Credit to other comprehensive REMEEKRETA
income (Note) (F=E) - - (4,000) (4,000)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries & {EHHEHB A A
(Note 35) (P#5E35) - - (9,441) (9,441)
At 31 March R-E-—F=FH
2022 =+—H 8,244 (8,244) - -
(Credit) charge to profit or loss PEZ (5P A) 0k (654) 654 = =
At 31 March R-ZBE-=F=A
2023 =t+—H 7,590 (7,590) - -
Note: B &E

REM2ERERSD  Eh2 AR A
IR 754,000, 00058 7T B4 2 (B35
Hip2EkaEs S RAE S HEATES
WIER - B Lo AW AR BRE
W R IR BB RE

The deferred tax of HK$4,000,000 credited to other comprehensive
income was offset with the corresponding change in fair value
of financial assets measured at FVOCI in the statement of other
comprehensive income. Other than that, there were no tax effects
relating to the other items included in the other comprehensive income.
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31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, the above deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has unused tax losses
of HK$990,791,000 (2022: HK$1,127,790,000) available
for offsetting against future taxable profits. A deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses of
HK$46,004,000 (2022: HK$49,966,000). No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of the remaining tax
losses of HK$944,787,000 (2022: HK$1,077,824,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. The unused
tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has deductible temporary
difference in respect of tax depreciation of HK$326,000
(2022: HK$712,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such temporary difference as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised.

In addition, there are no undistributed earnings of the PRC
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2023 and 2022.

31.

IEEB IR ()
IEAPHBRRNERMN2IME £
MELEHAREERBED THEIH-

R-E-_=F=A=+—H K&
B & & B) F % 18 &5 $8990,791,000
B (T Z4:1,127,790,000
PETT ) AT FR DA 3 R SR FE aR A g2 1 o
B _E i &5 18 E A AY46,004,0007%8 7T
(ZZ = — % :49,966,000 7T) &
BRIELEHIBEE AN KERT
AR IR g ) 2RO - # A AE mE TR eR AR IR
E718944,787,0008 L (—Z T = =
£F:1,077,824,000/% 7T ) #E R IE 1T
MEEE RPHAREEBHEXA T
mIR AR -

R-ZTE-_=F=A=+—H &%
E ST EA326,00087T (—F
— 4 :712,00058 7T ) A] R B
EZH-BRTKAIGE S B ERF &
FEAT BT EEERN A
WA BB ZE IR E R EEER
REFBEEE -

IV R B =R - —F=

A=+—H BMEFEMBARZ
AOBEBAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

32.

33.

ACQUISITION OF ASSET THROUGH 32. ZBWBE-—HBHNELARETZ
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY EEWE
In January 2023, the Group acquired a leasehold land RZEBEZ=F—A F&EEFBK
and building by acquisition of 100% equity interest of BEBRITERQRA (—HEARFMRK
Chun Ping Company Limited, a company engaged in ERHEWENRA) Z2100% % #
property holding in Macau, for a cash consideration WEHELHWREF HaRER
of HK$23,014,000. The seller in the transaction is the 23,014,000 - R HHE 7 A
ultimate controlling party of the Group. The directors FERNHEEES T - ERT AR
assessed that there was no substantive process acquired SV EBBES HEEKRRE Al
in this transaction, therefore, the transaction has been RS E AR =3 B U — B
accounted for as acquisition of asset through acquisition of NAETZEEWNE-
a subsidiary.
The effect of the acquisition is summarised below: ZWHEz BT

HK$'000

FTERT

Fair value of net asset acquired: FrEEEFEREE:

Property, plant and equipment M - M R 23,014
Cash consideration ReNRE 23,014
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition: WHESX ZREMLIERE:

Cash consideration paid ERNEERE 23,014

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH DEEMED
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 30 September 2021, Blue River injected certain financial
assets measured at FVOCI and investment properties
(the "Assets”) into the Company by an irrecoverable and
unconditional assignment of 100% voting rights (the
“Voting Rights”) in the shareholding of Grand Scheme
Developments Limited (“Grand Scheme”) to the Company
at nil consideration to enhance the financial condition
of the Group. Upon accepting the assignment of the
Voting Rights, Grand Scheme and its subsidiaries (“Grand
Scheme Group”) became wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Group on 30 September 2021. The directors assessed that
there was no substantive process acquired in the above
transaction, therefore, the transaction had been accounted
for as acquisitions of assets through deemed acquisition
of subsidiaries and the fair value of net assets of Grand
Scheme Group was deemed as contribution from holding
company.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

33.

ERBEWNENBAREITZ
EEWE
RZEZ—FNALA=+H &
AEBREEEEGrand Scheme
Developments Limited ([ Grand
Scheme ] ) Z100%#& Z 4 ([#&Z
) MARAEAETFTRAF
BEFEAEMEzEAREzEMEE
MgEMHE ([ZEEE]) UK
EXREETBARN - M EE I
ATEE R EGG RN ERREEE
#1% > Grand SchemeR H B 2
A ([Grand Schemef(®E | )N - =
—_—FAAZ+HKALREEZE
ENBAR EEFGHLARZI
mEBEEMERRE At X
SEARY AEBREWERNER
AT 2 & E W M 8 Grand
SchemeS B & E FE A TFHEFER
R RE 2 HE -



33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH DEEMED
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The effect of the deemed acquisition was summarised
below:

33. ZBRFUBHEBLARETZ
AEWE (&)
HIRER Bz BRI :

HK$'000
FAT
Fair value of net assets acquired: FriEEEFELATE:
Property, plant and equipment ERE TN 1,179
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,449
Investment properties KEME 196,919
Financial assets measured BEAFEFAEMEEKZ
at FVOCI ZEMEE 210,337
Stock of properties MEFE 34,370
Trade and other debtors, deposits B hEMEWGKIA 5T
and prepayments KB 58 5,043
Taxation recoverable GRS B RE 1
Bank balances and cash BITERNIRE 22,688
Trade and other creditors and B REMENFKER
accrued expenses FEETF S (16,323)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ANIEEL NGRS (13,416)
Lease liabilities HEBE (3,457)
Taxation payable &5 R IR (1,221)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEEE (13,204)
426,365
Deemed contribution from holding company BREERAR ZHE (426,365)
Cash consideration RERE -
Net cash inflow arising from deemed BRIEREEECZEER
contribution: HER
Bank balances and cash acquired BUWEBIRITEG LIRS 22,688
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND A JOINT 34. HEHMBRAEAR—BEELE

VENTURE

During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group disposed
of certain subsidiaries to independent third parties and
recorded a gain on disposals of HK$30,019,000. The gain
on disposals mainly arise from the disposal of the entire
equity interests in Paul Y. Construction (China) Limited, a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC
and is principally engaged in civil engineering and building
construction.

HzE—_Z2-_=F#=ZA=+—H1
FE AEEMBIYEF=FHE
ETHEAR IHBEEARF
30,019,000 Lo tH E & F £ E K
BREREZE(FBE)BRAF
(B—BEFBRKINIINEBEE D
ERTERELIAIRRETRE)
K 2 B AR A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND A JOINT 34. HEMIBARR —HEEELE
VENTURE (Continued) (#&)
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group disposed BE_ZT-_—_F=ZA=+—HLHF
of its interests in a joint venture, HTEHMEXHER QA EAEBEBLENBARLE
("I 8 "), through disposal of subsidiaries to Blue River. HR—RHEeEbEMIEXBEEE
T8 is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established RAR ([HIEM]) 2Rz TE
in the PRC and is principally engaged in property investment Ao MIEM A —BRPBEKYZ
which holds an office building in the PRC for rental through IEBERE FREZEMEBER
its wholly-owned subsidiary. The above transaction had been ACEEREVERENFAE B
accounted for as disposal of subsidiaries and a joint venture. URFPEHNRAKREEREZR -

E RSB HE L EN B R R R
BEEEAR-

The effect of the disposals is summarised below: ZEEEZXEHRBPT
2023 2022
—E-= —EF=-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHTT
Carrying amount of net assets FRTEEEEFEZ
disposed of: FREE -
Property, plant and equipment E R I 341 -
Interests in a joint venture —MAEEERED = 79,247
Trade and other debtors, deposits B 5 I H e YRIE
and prepayments HENSSENE S 6,953 -
Other creditors and accrued expenses H fth & < R IE K FE 5B 2 (220) (4,318)
7,074 74,929
Release of translation reserve FA 6 14 55 [0 FE 35,
upon disposal ] (10,537) (2,641)
Gain on disposal HEME AT 30,019 13,481
Consideration satisfied by: REZMAR:
Cash consideration RERE 26,556 -
Set off against loan and interest HKHENER R
payable A - 85,769
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEELEZHRERAFE:
Cash consideration RERE 26,556 =
Consideration receivable FTAE fth fE Y R IE -
included in other debtors, HEDSE -]
deposits and prepayment B E WK AE (26,556) -
Cash consideration received ERBEEKE - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

35. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. RIELHEME QT
Following the rights issue as disclosed in note 36, the M FE36AT R 2 (AR - EHR
directors considered that the financial condition of the REAEEZHBRRABFINRE-
Group was enhanced. In this regard, in February 2022, mEEms R-_E-_—_F_A =#
the directors decided to distribute the Assets back to Blue ERTEBAREERREEZFN
River by way of reassignment of the Voting Rights at nil B EEERXBE N AL Grand
consideration. As a result, Grand Scheme Group ceased to SchemeS B THAXRSE 2B
be the subsidiaries of the Group. The transaction had been A RBEARIABRIELEWE
accounted for as deemed disposal of subsidiaries and the A &) & Grand Schemefs B A 1% E 4
carrying amount of the net assets of Grand Scheme Group ERARACEEFEZREER
at the date of reassignment of Voting Rights was deemed as EMIZERAG DK
distribution to holding company.
The effect of the deemed disposal was summarised below: ZEEHE 2 ERRET -
HK$'000
FHET
Carrying amount of net assets disposed of: FILEEEFEZREE:
Property, plant and equipment M2 M R 1,426
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,857
Investment properties wEME 199,267
Financial assets measured ERFEGBARMEEKZ
at FvOClI ZEREE 119,459
Stock of properties MERFE 33,765
Trade and other debtors, deposits and B REMBEKFIE FTE
prepayments SSCENEC 3,140
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FE U B 2B B A Rl 5K IR 64,328
Taxation recoverable AJ 4y [B1 7% 18 1
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LIRS 6,035
Trade and other creditors and accrued B 5 I H A e 3018 2 FE 5
expenses 3 (16,457)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries L ANIGE N B (3,426)
Lease liabilities MEAE (5,779)
Taxation payable e 118 (112)
Other borrowings H & 3 (53,790)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEAE (9,441)
Deemed distribution to holding company WRAERIER A B 9K 341,273
Net cash outflow arising from RUEDIREELE 2RSSR
deemed distribution: FEE
Bank balances and cash disposed of BEHERITEKRLE S 6,035

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 3§

163



164

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. B
Number of
shares Amount
M BB ikl
HK$'000
FAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each EREE.10BTZEER
Authorised: JETE
Unlimited number of ordinary shares EmEHE 2EBR N/ATT i 3 N/AZR i3
Issued and fully paid: EEITREE:
At 1 April 2021 R-ZE-_—FWHA—H 1,220,558,996 122,056
Shares issued under rights issue BFE AR EITRD 1,220,348,996 122,035
At 31 March A=
2022 —A=+—H 2,440,907,992 244,091
Shares issued under rights issue RE AR IR 1,516,147,126 151,615
At 31 March R-IFB-=F
2023 —A=+—H 3,957,055,118 395,706

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors of the
Company on 28 October 2022, the Company allotted and
issued 1,516,147,126 ordinary shares on the basis of 6
rights share for every 5 existing shares held by the qualifying
shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.33 per rights
share to some qualifying shareholders. The net proceeds
from the rights issue are HK$500,204,000 (in the form of
cash received and promissory note receivable (see note 25)),
after deducting related transaction costs of HK$125,000.

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by all the directors
of the Company on 23 December 2021, the Company
allotted and issued 1,220,348,996 ordinary shares on the
basis of 1 rights share for every 1 existing share held by the
qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of HK$0.41
per rights share to qualifying shareholders. The net proceeds
from the rights issue were HK$500,143,000 (in the form of
cash received and promissory note receivable (see note 25)),
after deducting related transaction costs of HK$200,000.

The new shares issued rank in all respects pari passu with
the existing shares of the Company.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Blue River, ultimate holding company of the
Company up to 4 November 2022

(a)

Share option scheme of Blue River

On 10 September 2012, Blue River adopted a share
option scheme (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentive or reward to
any employees, executives or officers, directors of
Blue River or any invested entity and any celebrity,
consultant, adviser or agent of any member of Blue
River and its subsidiaries (“Blue River Group”) or
any invested entity (“Eligible Person”), who have
contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of Blue River Group or any invested
entity. The 2012 Share Option Scheme will remain in
force for a period of ten years from 10 September
2012.

None of the Eligible Person of the Group were granted
any of Blue River's options under the 2012 Share
Option Scheme during the period from 1 April 2022 to
9 September 2022.

Share award scheme of Blue River

A share award scheme was adopted by Blue River
on 3 May 2021 which allows Blue River to recognise
the contributions by eligible participants (including
employees, executive or officers, directors and senior
management, of any member of Blue River Group)
by way of issuing shares of Blue River to eligible
participants.

None of the eligible participants of the Group were
awarded any of Blue River’s shares under this share
award scheme during the period from 1 April 2022 to
4 November 2022.

37. MR ARERZNARZRS

BN BE-E-—F+—-AMWmA
EAERAZERERDF

(a)

B 2 BB AR AT &l
RZZE——FNA+H &1
K —EERETE (=
——FEREE]) - 5EY
e EEN REKB QA
([EMEBE )KL E#
BeRERERELAER 2
Bk ERE ZEM
BE -TTHRABEXSRBE -
EENENEBTMKERA
ARG ERE 2 ERMNHA
AT ERE - -BRAIKEA
(TEERALT]RE BB K
HE e — T — —_FREREZ
BE-E——FNLAT+HEE
BAERTFo

B-E-_—_FNNA—H&E_-%
““HFAANBHME HER
EEAERALIRE-_Z—=
FHREGSER TETER
T o

B 2 R 12 Eh AT &
BEAR—_E—FRA=AK
M—IERR D RE RS R E
MREGEKSHE (BEE
A EBEMRKE R R ZE AR
B TRABSSHHE &
ERERERE)IEL 2 ERB
I LA EE AT A% 15 B9 2 2R 3% o

B-_E-__—_4FWMWA—HB=EZ=
T F+—AWMAHE B
EAREESER2EEREL
A& 17 52 8 51 21 & 4% 4 {e B2 )7 A%

,f/'\ °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

38.

39.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts,
which include bank and other borrowings disclosed in note
29, net of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

Some of the Group's subsidiaries are required to maintain
certain financial covenant ratios as required under the
respective credit facilities arrangement with the financial
institutions. These externally imposed capital requirements
have been complied with at the end of the reporting period.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
reqgularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue
of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

38.

39.

AXAREE
AEEEELALS  ARRAEE
HTEBETREEE 1ERE
{75 T 2 5 2 PR A SRR
145 o 7 8 B 2 B BB 5 S BB 1 4
BT

AEBZERNEBBREERFE
Hermnkie MERSFEEA
B 29 E 2 IRI1T R E A E
Ho RARRHEA AEIEED (B
BEITRARHE) -

AEBzETHERARARTES
BB ZEBEERELHATA
MIE 2 —EMBRIFL P - R &
HRDETZFEIMBEMNZER
MIE °

ARRBERTEHRIENERE 1F
R Z R EFERERNKA
KEEBHERNERZ R NE
ERREEF I RERERIRNK
B BATHBUA M IBE S R E E
REBHAFEEBBELAGEE -

E@MIA
(a) 2RMITEER

2023 2022
—E-=fF g

HK$'000 HK$'000
FTE T F&ET

Financial assets EMEE
At amortised cost birg: Kici I WIN 4,036,854 3,576,323
At fair value BAFE 216,000 -
4,252,854 3,576,323

Financial liabilities ot =R
At amortised cost biog: XicIWIN 6,772,833 6,489,428
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

39. @R T A (&)
(b) EREREEREREE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group's major financial instruments include
financial assets measured at FVOCI, trade and other
debtors, amounts due from/to fellow subsidiaries,
an associate, joint ventures and joint operations/
other partners of joint operations, loans receivable,
promissory note receivable, pledged bank deposits
and restricted cash, short term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and other creditors and
accrued expenses, lease liabilities and bank and other
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. Management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and
effective manner.

Market risks

() Currency risk
Several group entities have certain foreign
currency trade and other debtors, pledged bank
deposits, short term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash, and trade and other creditors and
accrued expenses, which expose the Group to
foreign currency risk.

AEEISSBTABERA
FEEARMCZERSS S5
BE-E5 R EERE
Al R R BB A A — R
BENE ABOERALY
%GB EBE B RLRE -
RINE S R B
ERRTERREREBES -
SHBTER BAEBRE
$ B 5 RE MR 3 IE B
HEX BEREARETR
HipfE - RESMT AL ¥
BRENEEN -SSR
TARMIE 2 BB RS
A HERIR T X - &2
B E I R B I B A TR
B A 7 R T A A

™ % 2 bz

(1) E¥mEE
HEEBEEEEE TN
MAEBNUZESNEM
JEM A - B IFIRITTE
FORHRITER  RIT
EHRLEEUNE S LH
N FB R AT
SN & B B AT INE R,

LA
T
A

o

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 3§

167



168
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(1)

39. @R T A (&)
(b) EREREEEEREEK

(&)

miZER (&)

Currency risk (Continued) () EEEkRE(E)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REBRFHEHARAINE
currency denominated monetary assets and REMZE¥EEREY
monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting BEZEERBERT:
period are as follows:
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Assets EE
MOP R 109 136
RMB AR 46,068 31,348
usD e 26 26
Liabilities =R
MOP R 847 847

The Group is mainly exposed to the fluctuation
of RMB against Hong Kong dollars as Hong Kong
dollar is pegged to USD and MOP is pegged to
Hong Kong dollar. The following table details the
Group’s sensitivity to a 5% (2022: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against Hong Kong dollars.
5% (2022: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2022: 5%) change in
foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit for the
year where RMB strengthens 5% (2022: 5%)
against Hong Kong dollars. For a 5% (2022: 5%)
weakening of RMB against Hong Kong dollars,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the post-tax profit and the number below would
be negative.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risks (Continued)

(1)

(ir)

39. @R T A (&)
(b) EREREEEEREEK

(&)

miZER (&)

Currency risk (Continued) (i) EEER (&)
2023 2022
—E-=F —EF-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

RMB AR® 1,923 1,309
This is mainly attributable to the exposure on EERRBRREH
outstanding trade and other debtors, pledged AREEZUARERE
bank deposits, short term bank deposits, and iz & 5 Kk Hth f& K
bank balances and cash denominated in RMB at H-BEBRTER &
the end of the reporting period. HRSRTT I RUA R IRTT 484

S ]
Interest rate risk (ii) I E @z

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate lease liabilities
and other borrowing (see notes 28 and 29
respectively for details).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
loans receivable, pledged bank deposits, short
term bank deposits, bank balances and bank
borrowings (see notes 24, 26 and 29 respectively
for details). It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at variable-rate of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rate risk on
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group's
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on fluctuation of the best lending rate in Hong
Kong and Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

AEERESHEREBER
H R (F150 5 M
7£28%29)if A X N F B
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AEEBTRFERERKE
FEBEBRTER R
HRITIER  RITER N
RITER (FEIBF DRI
5T24 2 268%29) MAS I
ERFERE - AEBEZ
BER BERETIRZEF
EEH B A ATFENE
BB P = AR K o

AEE 2z 2R B EASF
K@\ 2 FIE N AT
ZRBEEAREER
Do NEEZRE A X
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BHRRBEBRITRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate financial instruments at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50
basis points (2022: 50 basis points) increase or
decrease in interest rates for loans receivable,
pledged bank deposits, short term bank deposits,
bank balances and bank borrowings is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest rates
had been 50 basis points (2022: 50 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's post-tax profit for the year
ended 31 March 2023 would decrease/increase
by HK$5,754,000 (2022: HK$3,941,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to

interest rates on its borrowings.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
obligations by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk of trade debtors,
contract assets, and trade balances due from a joint
venture and joint operations/other partners of joint
operations, management has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on these balances
individually and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk of other and non-trade balances due
from fellow subsidiaries, an associate, joint ventures
and joint operations/other partners of joint operations,
and promissory note receivable are managed through
an internal process. The Group actively monitors the
outstanding amount owed by each related party and
identifies any credit risks in a timely manner in order
to reduce the risk of a credit related loss. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model on the outstanding balances individually. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has a policy for assessing the impairment
on loans receivable on an individual basis under
ECL model. The assessment includes evaluation
of collectability of the loans receivable based on
management’s judgement on creditworthiness,
collateral and past collection history of each borrower
and forward-looking information. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The credit risk of pledged bank deposits and restricted
cash, short term bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because these counterparties are financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

The Group has significant concentration of credit risk
as substantial portion of its revenue is generated from
a limited number of customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 13% (2022: 7%) and 39% (2022:
35%) of the total trade debtors and contract assets
was due from the Group’s largest customer and the
five largest customers respectively. In view of their
credit standings, good payment record in the past and
long-term relationships with the Group, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
not material.

In addition, included in trade debtors of
HK$1,017,986,000 (2022: HK$1,017,986,000),
included in loans receivable of HK$177,226,000 (2022:
HK$177,226,000) and promissory note receivable of
HK$250,000,000 (2022: HK$241,335,000) expose the
Group to concentration of credit risk. The directors
of the Company continue to monitor and assess the
financial status of these counterparties.

Other than the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €@ T & (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) eRIABEEEZERBE
policies (Continued) (&)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EERRE X

AR RS (&)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment REERNRNHBEERBRET
comprises the following categories: HEEATER:

Internal Trade balances/
credit rating Description contract assets Other financial assets
ABEEFR  BR ERE8/aNEE HttmEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL (not 12m ECL
ERR and does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired) REABBHEEERE
RHEUFNENRRELREEMAHRE rHESEERR
CREEERE)
Watch list Debtor usually settles past-due amounts Lifetime ECL (not 12m ECL
BRyE after due date credit-impaired) NEABHEERRE
EHEARERINBREZBIFE rHRBEEEE
CREEERE)
Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL (not Lifetime ECL (not
A &t credit risk since initial recognition through credit-impaired) credit-impaired)
information developed internally or 2HEHEERR 2HBRBEEER
external resources (CREEERE) CREEERE)
ERNBEEEHINNEER GERRE
BIRERAREZE M
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
B credit-impaired (credit-impaired) (credit-impaired)
BEBBREELREENE rHRBEEERE THRBEEEE
(BEEERE) (BEEERE)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor Amount is written Amount is written
! is in severe financial difficulty and the off off

Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
EERBREBABARENREALEY
BERAIKEM R

HEA B R

WEA B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €@ T & (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) eRIABEEEZERBE
policies (Continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE Rk KR EN G (&)
The table below details the credit risk exposures of the TRFMNEBAETERE
Group's financial assets and contract assets, which are EEETANeREERED
subject to ECL assessment: BEEMNEERE :

Gross carrying amount

REAE
Internal
Notes credit rating  12m or lifetime ECL 2023 2022
Bz ABEETFR NEASURHEEEE “BCZF | ZTCZCF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAER THET
Financial assets at amortised cost
RE#BANEREE
Trade debtors 19 Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) (note (i)) 381,872 320,524
B oK E e HRBEEEBORERERE) ()
Watch list Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) (note (i)) 38,898 47,085
BERE HEBEEEE REEERE) (M)
Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) (note (i)) 1,046,297 1,094,707
E#B 2HEBEEEE (BESRE) (M)
Other debtors 19 Low risk 12m ECL (note (i) 653,794 609,945
A it MR vl 12{8 AR B BB (M)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) (note (ii)) 114,429 -
& PHEBEEBE CRAGERE) (M)
Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) (note (ii)) 179,723 179,752
BB PHBREEEE (BEERNE) (M)
Amounts due 21 Low risk 12m ECL (note (iv)) - 3,725
from fellow R R NEABHEESE (MiEv)
subsidiaries
ERAZKEAR
NI
Amount due from 22 Low risk 12m ECL (note (iv)) 5,820 5,820
an associate R R NEABHEESE (MiEv)
JE Y — R 1 A)
HIE
Amounts due from 22 Watch list Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) (note (i)) 5,079 -
joint ventures BRLE 2HRNEEEBORERERE) (HEE)
WAL ETR Low risk 12m ECL (note (iv)) 20,527 4,289
e NEABHEESE (FaEv))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 39. €@ T & (&)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) eRIABEEEZERBE
policies (Continued) (&)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE Rk KR EN G (&)

Gross carrying amount

REAE
Internal
Notes credit rating  12m or lifetime ECL 2023 2022
Mz ABEETFR NEASURSEEER “EC=F | ZZCZZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERL THET
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)
BRERANGREE ()
Amounts due from 23 Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) (note (i)) 890 297
joint operations/ gl 2HRHEERE (REEERE) (M)
other partners of Watch list Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) (note (i) 13,294 537
joint operations BRLE *HBEHEEER(REEERE) (W)
ERABER/ A% Low risk 12m ECL (note (iv) 151,090 217,435
FHEMBH el REABHEEEE (Mav)
HB
Loans receivable 24 Low risk 12m ECL (note (iii) 6,000 -
ERER R R 1218 AR EIE B B8 (M)
Loss Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) (note (iii) 447,855 447,855
BB 2HBEBEEEE (BEERE) (M)
Promissory note 25  Low risk 12m ECL (note (ii) 250,000 241,335
receivable igEl REABHEEEE (M)
A 218
Pledged bank 26 Low risk 12m ECL (note (v)) 59,380 45,423
deposits and il REAABBEESE (FEWv)
restricted cash
BEEBRTERR
XRHH &
Short term bank 26 Low risk 12m ECL (note (v)) 49,136 55,394
deposits (&R R 1REABBEEEE (FEWv)
HEERITER
Bank balances 26 Low risk 12m ECL (note (v)) 1,126,146 828,153
RITEH B R 12 ABHEEEE (FiEVv)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended

31 March 2023 BE=-ZE-_=F=ZA=+—HLFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Cred

it risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

39. @R T A (&)
(b) EREREEEEREEK

(&)
ey
[=REoN

&R LR ER S (8)

Gross carrying amount

REAE
Internal
Notes credit rating  12m or lifetime ECL 2023 2022
Wi ABEETR NBAARREESEEER “B-=f | ZT_-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Other item
HER
Contract assets 20 Low risk Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) (note (i)) 4,639,269 4,138,672
ANEE {5 PHRAEEERE ORBRERE) (M)
Notes: 5T -

The Group has applied the simplified approach in HKFRS
9 to recognise the loss allowance on lifetime ECL basis
for trade debtors, contract assets and trade balances due
from a joint venture and joint operations/other partners of
joint operations. The lifetime ECL for these balances are
determined individually and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings based on historical
credit loss experience adjusted by forward-looking
information. The loss allowances for not credit-impaired
trade debtors, contract assets and trade balances due
from a joint venture and joint operations/other partners
of joint operations are very minimal and closed to zero
while the loss allowances for credit-impaired trade debtors
are measured at a loss rate of 100% (2022: 100%),
except for a gross amount of HK$1,044,088,000 (2022:
HK$1,044,088,000) as detailed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRk M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #HZ

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

@)

(Continued)

Included in credit-impaired trade debtors is a gross carrying
amount of HK$1,044,088,000 (2022: HK$1,044,088,000)
which is covered by the retention right over the building
constructed under the construction contracts (the
“Building”), of which legal action has been taken in the
recovery of these balances. In November 2022, the relevant
debtor filed a claim to regain possession of the Building
and the Group has filed a defense against it. Up to the
date of this report, there is no development to this case.
Taken into consideration of a legal opinion, the directors of
the Company are of the view that the retention right over
the Building would not be affected by the claim.

The impairment assessment has taken into account the
market value of the Building under the retention right.
The Group obtained a legal opinion to confirm its claim
under the retention right over the Building and the market
value of the Building has been arrived at on the basis of
valuation carried out by an independent professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Based on the legal opinion
and the professional valuation of the Building, the loss
allowances for these balances are measured at a loss rate
of 2.5% (2022: 2.5%).

The Group uses historical past-due experience and
forward-looking information to assess the loss allowances
for other debtors and promissory note receivable. Loss
allowances for other debtors and promissory note
receivable under low risk are very minimal and close
to zero while loss allowances for other debtors under
doubtful and under loss are measured at expected loss
rates of 30% (2022: Nil) and 100% (2022: 100%),
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e I R R A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

The Group uses historical market default records and
forward-looking information to assess the loss allowances
for loans receivable. Loss allowances for loan receivable
under low risk are very minimal and close to zero. Loss
allowances for loan receivable under loss are measured
at a loss rate of 100% (2022: 100%) except for the loan
receivable with gross amount of HK$181,770,000 (2022:
HK$181,770,000) which is covered by the retention right
over the Building, of which legal action has been taken.
Impairment assessment is set out in note (i) above.

For the purpose of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses the financial information or other relevant
information of fellow subsidiaries, an associate, joint
ventures and joint operations/other partners of joint
operations to assess whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. The related companies
are considered by management to have sound financial
position and thus the loss allowances for other and non-
trade balances due from these companies are expected to
be very minimal and closed to zero.

For pledged bank deposits and restricted cash, short term
bank deposits and bank balances, as these counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, the loss allowance is
expected to be very minimal and close to zero.
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows reconciliation of impairment
allowances that have been recognised for financial

assets and contract assets.

e B RS AR M R

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#ZE=-—ZE-_=F=A=+—HILEE

£RIT A @#
(b) &RiEREEAEREE
(1&)

= & R g KO E Rl ()
TREJEHEREERED
BEERNBEREY K-

Financial
At Translation assets newly Provided Other  Written At Translation  Provided  Written At
142021 adjustments  originated ~ Transfer (reversed)  changes off  31.3.2022 adjustments  (reversed) off 31.3.2023
B-z N Wog= W=g=
Z—Fm R il ZEZf ] ZEZf
A-R ERAE eRAE 3 (BE) Et23 ME  =t-B ERgE (&HE) ME =t-8
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TAL TER TEn  TEn TEr  TEr  TEr TER TER TEx TEx  TEn
Trade debtors g5 ENSE
Lifetime ECL %?ﬁ?ﬁiﬁmﬁ%
(not credit- B(RAREE
impaired) RE) 1,664 1 - - 132 - - 1,797 55 2,004 (32) 384
Lifetime ECL 2HBHEER
(crediit- B(ERE
impaired) HE) 50,619 - - 26,102 2,010 (2,010) - 76,7121 - - (484100 28311
Other debtors EfbEUSE
Lifetime ECL 2UBHEES
(not credit- BORARE
impaired) RE) - - - - - - - - - 392 - B
Lifetime ECL PHEHRREE
(credi- B(ERE
impaired) HE) 13,863 - - 165415 474 - - | 179,752 - (29) - 11913
Amount due from B &Z&E
ultimate holding B2
company HE
Lifetime ECL RHEHEER
(credit- E(BRE
impaired) HE) 70,941 - - (70,941) - - - - - - - -
Amounts due FEWRE 2K
from fellow | PE
subsidiaries HE
Lifetime ECL SHEBEES
(not credit- BURARE
impaired) BE) 26,102 - - (26102 - - - = = = = -
Lifetime ECL PHEAEER
(credit- B(BREE
impaired) HE) 94,474 - 10957 (94,474) (10,957) - - = = - - -
Amounts due from W E AT
associates B
Lifetime ECL PHEREER
(crediit- B(EREE
impaired) HE) - - - - 13,179 - (13179) - - - - -
Loan to ultimate ~ BEAZRAR
holding company &3
Lifetime ECL 2HBHEER
(crediit- B(ERE
impaired) HE) 65,000 - - (65,000) - - - - = = = =
loantoafellow  EI—-ERZKE
subsidiary AAER
Lifetime ECL %?ﬁ?ﬁiﬁmﬁ%
(not credit- B(RAREE
impaired) RE) 4,544 - - (4544) - - - - - - - -
Lifetime ECL %gﬁﬁgﬁfgﬁﬁ
(crediit- B(ERE
impaired) HE) 137,230 - - (137,30) - - - - = = = =
Loans receivable ~ EWES
Lifetime ECL RHEAEER
(credit- E(EEE
impaired) HE) 63,855 - - 206,774 - - - | 270,629 - - - 270,629
Contractassets ~ AHEE
Lifetime ECL %Eﬁﬁgﬁfgﬁﬁ
(not credit- BORARE
impaired) W) 9,781 - - - (1,93 - - | 7885 3 5 - 189
Total @it 538,073 1 10,957 - 2,902 (2,000  (13,179) | 536,744 58 35901  (48,442) 524,261
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to
finance its operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay.
Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are classified as “on demand”.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e IS AR YA

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

39. @R T A (&)
(b) EREREEEEREEK

(&)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

mBE R (8)

Weighted
average On demand Total Total
Interest  or within 91 days to Over undiscounted  carrying
rate 90 days 1 year 1 year cash flow  amount
hE& REXY 91A AERRSE
FHME  90BNA BME EUE REAE REELR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEr  TEr  TER TR T#x
At 31 March gt g3
2023 ZE=1-H
Trade and other creditorsand 5 REMEFFEL
accrued expenses iR - 3827837 343593 414122 4,585,552 4,585,552
Amount due to a joint venture BT —FAEREFE - 874 - - 874 874
Amounts due to joint Efae%B/ 08
operations/other partners FHEBBH
of joint operations FE - 579,863 - - 579,863 579,863
Lease liabilities HERRE 3.4% 7681 22,705 17,105 47491 46,248
Bank borrowings ROTER
- floating rate — %8 52% 1,560,296 - - 1,560,296 1,560,296
5,976,551 366,298 431,227 6,774,076 6,772,833
At 31 March R-B-ZE
2022 ZE=1-H
Trade and other creditorsand ~ EZREMERFEL
accrued expenses AT - 4,446,222 340,107 401,268 5,187,597 5,187,597
Amount due to a joint venture ~ [ERf —FIA A ¥5A - 60 - - 60 60
Amounts due to joint EfaE%B/ 608
operations/other partners FHEMBH
of joint operations B - 97,544 - - 97,544 97,544
Lease liabilities HERRE 3.4% 8509 21,603 44,771 74883 71,83
Bank and other borrowings RAREMER
- fixed rate — B 5.0% 50,041 - - 50,041 50,000
- floating rate — %8 2.2% 1,082,393 - - 1,082,393 1,082,393
5,684,769 361,710 446,039 6,492,518 6,489,428

ZREENEEAREZHER
B ERAFE  BIRE
BRE R ARE R 2 MR

s
= o
>t

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rates, the undiscounted amount is derived from
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at

the end of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

are determined as follows:

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on

a recurring basis

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

The fair value of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on

discounted cash flow analysis.

(i)  Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis

At the end of the reporting period, the unlisted
equity investment designated as financial asset
measured at FVOCI was measured at fair value.
The fair values of the unlisted equity instruments
are based on Level 3 measurement (as details in
Note 3) using the valuation techniques described
below. The Group has no financial liabilities

measured at fair value.

(iii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair

values

The Group engaged independent qualified
professional valuers to estimate the fair value
of the unlisted equity securities. A reasonable
estimate of fair value is determined by using
valuation techniques appropriate to the market

and industry of each investment.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)

(iii)

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s unlisted
equity securities represents 2.8% equity interest
in Octagoonies Limited which is incorporated in
the Marshall Islands and is principally engaged
in investment holding in Hong Kong (see
note 18). The fair value of the unlisted equity
securities is HK$216,000,000 which is estimated
using the market approach. Market approach
uses price multiple determined with reference
to comparable public companies and includes
appropriate risk adjustments. The unobservable
inputs involved include average Price-to-Book
Ratio (“P/B”) of 0.69 and discount for lack of
marketability of 15.7%.

As at 31 March 2023, if the average P/B increase/
decrease by 5%, the fair value would increase/
decrease by HK$5,000,000, if the discount
for lack of marketability increase/decrease by
5%, the fair value would decrease/increase by
HK$2,000,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group's
unlisted equity securities represented 9.9% equity
interest in Jiangsu YangKou Port Development
and Investment Co., Ltd. (“Yangkou Port Co"), a
company engaged in the business of development
of port and related infrastructures. For the year
ended 31 March 2022, fair value loss of financial
assets measured at FVOCI, net of tax, amounted
to HK$86,878,000 and the financial assets
measured at FVOCI was derecognised upon the
deemed disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35).

BE_=FE=-A=+—RHLEE

39. @R T A (&)
() ERMITAZAFEFE (8)

(iii)

BEEBEE AT EMNGE
R ()
RZE-_=ZF=ZA=1+—
A AEEZILETRAR
& % 18 & M Octagoonies
Limited®)2.8% % #E © 5%
REREARE S
VX EEBRBRERE
2R (F2BHF18) -
FELETRABLHNNFE
/216,000,000 7T * 3
RIS EEITEE ™
BAER2ENELRA
RATEBEENEBREE
B IEEE MR R R o
WK 2 O] LR 8 A SR
BEIFEOWEX (MR
&) 0.69 &= HE R
BIEHITEI5.7% °

R-ZE-_=F=A=+—
B &FEmEREN/
B A5% 0 B BB A FE
1# 10 /3 45,000,000
o ARSI REBER
PraEg o,/ W A5% i
BN ER A8
2,000,0003% 7T ©

HE-_ZT_-__F=A4
=+—HLEFE FTEE
ZIEEMBATBELFERSE
BORMAEERREERE
B2 I FO0EBRER
BHERAB([FOBAQ
A1) Z29.9% ki -H =
—E-—H#=A=+—H
HFEE - ZAFEGAH
trEmkm s emEEN
B EZ A FEEES
86,878,000 T * MIZA
FEFAHEMEAKE 2
TREENGEL SR
BAREBKRIETER (M
35) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (Continued)
(iii) Valuation techniques used to determine fair

(iv)

values (Continued)

Valuation techniques used to support the
valuation is the asset-based approach which
uses the fair market value of its total assets
minus its total liabilities. In determining the fair
value of property assets of Yangkou Port Co
under the asset-based approach, the comparison
method was adopted under which comparison
based on information of recent transacted prices
of comparable land was made. Comparable
properties of similar characteristics and location
were analysed in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of capital values.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

39. @R T A (&)
() EMIAZATENE (®)

(iii)

(iv)

RIEEE A FEMNGIE
AT ()

ARz bEZAET
EREEERE (ERHE
REEREBAEBEZIAYF
miE) - REEEEWE
BEFABRRAMEEE
ZRFER  FRANATE
B i 2 ST (B 1R
ERREEZLBE B
HE MIFEE 2 &L
BYEETON  ARE
REZEBRFHLE-

EMTAZE=ZMRYF

measurement of financial instruments BEtE 28R
Unlisted
equity
instruments
kL
EZITA
HK$'000
FHET

Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries REWEE AR

(Note 33) (H¥3E33) 210,337
Fair value loss recognised in other REMEEWEERZ

comprehensive income N EEE (90,878)
Deemed disposal of subsidiaries BRIELENERR]

(Note 35) (Pt 5E35) (119,459)
At 31 March 2022 R_ZE__F=H=+—H -
Acquisition during the year F AU 241,500
Fair value loss recognised in other REMEEWEERZ

comprehensive income NEEEE (25,500)
At 31 March 2023 WZZE_=F=A=+—H 216,000
There were no transfers between the different TMEFEMS  2FE
levels of the fair value hierarchy for both years. EH R EER -

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 40. EREETHELE BB 2R
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TERANAEBARMETSEE 2
arising from financing activities, including both cash and BEZEY OEReRFERSE
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities H-AMEETHELACBERE R
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows MEBRENARRESRERI L
will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of RAEEZFERERERDEAS
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities. MmEEBAEREREZAE
Non-trade
balances of
amounts
due to joint
Non-trade  operations/
balances of other
amounts due partners  Loan from
to fellow of joint a related Lease Bank Other Interest
subsidiaries  operations company liabilities  borrowings  borrowings payable Total
EHEEER

EfRZ /REXKE

WEARZ #¥fREr  -BEE

$E56E KRGS ARMR BEAE  AA6ER ARERX EAWS @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TEL TR TR TEL TR TERL

(Note 23) (Note 28) (Note 29) (Note 29)
(Mis23) (Wis2s)  (Mzk29)  (Bish29)

At 1 April 2021 WZE--FEA-H - 59,357 70,000 84,836 1,185,187 - 13,817 1,413,197
Translation adjustments B AR - - - 121 - - - 121
Deemed acquisition of RIENEREAT

subsidiaries (Note 33) (Wi5E33) 9,990 - - 3,457 - - - 13,447
New leases entered MiHE - - - 23,086 - - - 23,086
Lease modification/termination RE#E] /& It - - - (1,285) - = - (1,285)
Disposal of subsidiaries anda  HEMBAAR -4

joint venture (Note 34) B0 % (MH34) - - (70,000) - - - (15,769) (85,769)
Deemed disposal of RELEREAT

subsidiaries (Note 35) (M&35) - - - (5,779) - (53,790) (508) (60,077)
Interest expenses FBHEZ - - - 2,925 - - 39,774 42,699
Financing cash flows BERENRE (9,990) 69 - (35,527) (102,794) 103,790 (35,762) (80,214)
At 31 March i

2022 =A=t+-8 - 59,426 - 71,834 1,082,393 50,000 1,552 1,265,205
Translation adjustments R AE - - - (17) - - = (17)
New leases entered MiRE - - - 4,453 = = = 4,453
Lease termination BELL - - - (626) - - - (626)
Interest expenses fews - - - 1,951 - - 61,129 63,080
Financing cash flows BERERE - 493,983 - (31,347) 477,903 (50,000) (61,872) 828,667
At 31 March WZEZ=F

2023 ZA=1t-H - 553,409 - 46,248 1,560,296 - 809 2,160,762
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BZE=-Z-_=F=A=1+—HALFE

41.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes for qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are separately held in funds under the control of
trustees. The cost charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss represents contributions payable to the funds
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

Where there are employees who leave the schemes prior
to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions. At the end of the reporting period,
there were no forfeited contributions which arose upon
employees leaving the schemes prior to their interests in the
Group's contributions becoming fully vested and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable by the Group
in future years.

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has joined
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “"MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at the rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme. Under the MPF Scheme,
there will not be any forfeited contribution available to
reduce the contribution payable by the Group.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to profit or loss represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at the rates
specified in the rules of the scheme.

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in retirement
benefit schemes organised by the local government
authority in the PRC. They are required to make certain
monthly contributions based on the local standard basic
salaries. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss are set out in
note 11.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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43,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
8 75 2% B &

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

AN
)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. EREIE
2023 2022
—ZE=-= —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRI B RRERE
acquisition of property, plant and M mR A BE
equipment contracted for but not EEBEEME.
provided in the consolidated e MR 2
financial statements BARRX 42 647
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 43. FREE
2023 2022
=—=E=-= —F-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&ET
Indemnities issued to financial MEEEBIRESH
institutions for bonds on construction IR 2 AR 78 T (A &
contracts of joint operations BEEHZBERE 79,344 60,616

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £ 3§

187



188

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

44, BEATXR R &R

BALANCES
(@) The Group entered into the following significant (@) FA - AEFEHETEEBEAL
transactions with its related parties during the year: FINIATERRS:
Class of related party Nature of transaction 2023 2022
BEATER XEME —2=-= T
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Fellow subsidiaries Interest income - 216
EESLN= PN M B M
Joint ventures Revenue from construction 71,324 443,800
AEDE contracts
EES KA
Sub-contracting charges 331,605 -
SEEHA
Interest income - 20
e W

(b) Details of the assignment of Voting Rights from Blue
River, disposal of subsidiaries and a joint venture to
Blue River and reassignment of Voting Rights to Blue
River are disclosed in notes 33, 34 and 35, respectively.

(c) Details of the acquisition of a leasehold land and
building from the ultimate controlling party of the
Group are disclosed in note 32.

(d) The remuneration of directors during the year is
disclosed in note 11(c).

Details of the balances with fellow subsidiaries, an
associate, joint ventures and joint operations/other partners
of joint operations at the end of the reporting period are set
out in notes 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 25 and 43.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B Z-ZE_=F=A=+—HILFE

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45, KD T AR T

COMPANY
2023 2022
—_E_=F —E-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
F& T FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B RARIKE 271,475 271,475
Financial assets measured BAFEFZAEMEZE
at FVOClI WHrzemEE 216,000 -
487,475 271,475
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary JE Y — FEl B BB 2 Bl R TE 800,701 553,996
Promissory note receivable JE W R 250,000 241,335
Short term bank deposits RHRITIFER 29,579 30,837
Bank balances IRIT4E % 1,012 1,229
1,081,292 827,397
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other creditors and accrued expenses HEfibENRIE M ERTHAX 683 1,097
Bank borrowings RITIE K 40,000 37,293
40,683 38,390
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 1,040,609 789,007
NET ASSETS EERE 1,528,084 1,060,482
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#E
Share capital A A 395,706 244,091
Reserves (Note) e (KIsE) 1,132,378 816,391
TOTAL EQUITY B 1,528,084 1,060,482
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE_Z_-_==A=1+—HLEFE

45.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

45, RN T AR T (#)

Note: Bt 5 -
Movements of reserves of the Company during the current and prior NARAFERBAFEZHEZEHN
years are as follows: T :
Retained
Capital Investment profits
Share Contributed redemption revaluation Other (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
Ex k& REER
ROBE  ERBRH%H EERE EM4RE  HtHE  (RITER) hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET Fhx FERT FET TET FET FhR
At 1 April R-B-—%
2021 NA—H - 406,727 1,812 - - 28,866 437,405
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBERZE
expense for the year B S'ZW%E - - - - - (84,214)  (84,214)
Deemed contribution from RAEER
holding company s ﬁ - - - 426,365 - 426,365
Shares issued under rights issue  IRIEHLI B TR 17 378,308 - - - - - 378,308
Transaction costs attributable  1RIE# BT
to shares issued under BHhzx5
rights issue A (200) - - - - - (200)
Deemed distribution to RAERER AR
holding company 2k - - - - (341.273) - (341273)
At 31 March i -
2022 ZA=1+-H 378,108 406,727 1,812 - 85,092 (55,348) 816,391
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEBERZE
expense for the year ke - - - - - (7,102) (7,102)
Change in fair value of BATEFALM
financial assets PENGEZER
measured at FVOC|, BEZATER
net of tax (MEBeE) - - - (25,500) - - (25,500)
Shares issued under rights issue — IRIZ A A 34T AR 17 348,714 - - - - - 348,714
Transaction costs attributable 1R IR E T
to shares issued under RiA 2R 5
rights issue AR (125) - - - - - (125)
At 31 March RZZZ=F
2023 ZA=1-H 726,697 406,727 1,812 (25,500) 85,092 (62,450) 1,132,378




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 BIZ-ZE_=F=A=+—HILLFE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT
VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/

FEMBAT BEQT ¥

TERGEER

@ ARBETEWNBRAN-Z
—T=ZFRZZE-Z_FZ=ZAH
=+ —HZFBRT:

46.

Percentage of issued
share capital/registered
capital/capital

Name of subsidiary operation capital attributable to the Group Principal activity
my /M ERORAERA/ AREEECERORES
WEARER =E 3 AMER/EX AMER /EXzENL FEEK
2023 2022
B |[ZF-F
% %
Corless Limited BVI US$2 ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
RBRAES 2ZEEBR RERR
Euro Dynasty Limited BVI US$3 ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
AERNES 3ELEBR RERR
Paul Y. (E & M) Hong Kong HK$60,000,000 ordinary 99.9999 99.9999  Provision of electrical,
Contractors Limited BB shares mechanical and
RELETIRAERAT 60,000,000/ 7T & @ ik building services
RUEERRZERS
Paul Y. Builders Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 Investment holding
Group Limited B VBT EBR REER
REREEEERAA
HK$1,000,000 non- - -
voting deferred shares
(Note (i) below)
1,000,000 7T % 15 5 1
R (T 3XMEEE())
Paul Y. Builders Limited Hong Kong HK$1,063,000,000 100 100  Building construction
RERERRRA N ordinary shares BFRE
1,063,000,0007% 7T
Paul Y. Building Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100  Building management
Management Limited &% 2B EBR and security services
RENEERRERAA NEEERRRZ R
Paul Y. Construction & Hong Kong HK$390,000,000 100 100  Building construction
Engineering Co. Limited &% ordinary shares and specialist works
REREIRERAA 390,000,0007% 7T & 3 iR BTRERZEIR
Paul Y. Construction & Singapore SGD11,500,000 ordinary 100 100  Construction
Engineering Pte. % shares BETR
Limited 11,500,000%7 A3 T
Paul Y. Construction and ~ Malaysia RM1,000,000 ordinary 100 100  Construction
Engineering Sdn. Bhd. Bk shares BEIR
1,000,000 % & & ix
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e RS IR M

For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT 46. TEMBE LT BEQT 8¢
VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued) TEFEEER (8
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at (a) ZIK AEE WJ* REIRZE
31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued) T =EEN-ZETE-_—_F=A8
—t+t—HZFHBOT: (8)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of issued
share capital/registered

registration/  registered capital/ capital/capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital attributable to the Group Principal activity
Ry gl CRORMERF/ FREEECRORE/S
WEARER =E 3 SMEX/ EE SMER EXZEAN TEEH
2023 2022
B |[ZE-F
% %
Paul Y. Construction The PRC RMB 120,000,000 - 100  Civil engineering and
(China) Limited (Note (\iii)) registered capital building construction
RERE (RE)BRARF RE (M) AKE120,000,0007 IATIRREFRE
&R
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$1,470,000,000 100 100  Civil engineering,
Company, Limited & ordinary shares building construction
REFHEBBR AT 1,470,000,0007% 7T and investment
R holding
TATE BFRERR
Bk
HK$50,000,000 non- - -
voting preferred shares
(Note (i) below)
50,000,000/ 7L £ 5 = 18
& 5T A% (XXM EE ()
Paul Y. Construction Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited BB 2BTEBRR REEZR
REZEEEFRATF
Paul Y. Construction BVI US$50,002 ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
International Limited ~ EBEZEE shares REER
50,0025 7T & A ix
Paul Y. Contracting Hong Kong HK$100 ordinary shares 100 100  Construction
Limited BB 1008 T E AR BETR
Paul Y. Curtain Wall and ~ Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100  Trading and installation
Aluminium Works BB 2B TERR of building materials
Company Limited BEMHEHRER
RERRBEIEARAT
Paul Y. Facilities Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100  Facilities management
Management Co., BB 2B TERR services
Limited REEE RS
RERMERERAA

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT
VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

(a)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/

46.

TtERE
(a)

'A.I
%/T\ A\H

TEHEAT BEAT-
EEK (®H)
ZIK ﬂigﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁ’\:7

_‘i' HZ#HBmT:

Percentage of issued
share capital/registered
capital/capital

B AS AR MY At

E-E-=ZF=AZ=+t-HLHFE

I
S

o

—E-—-F£=A
(&)

Name of subsidiary operation capital attributable to the Group Principal activity
RI/ER/ ERGRMEEEA/ ASBELEROBEA,S
WEARER EEWE aAMER/EX AMER/EXzENL FEEK
2023 2022
B |ZE--F
% %
Paul Y. Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 Provision of finance
REFBERAA B BT ERR RHEAE
Paul Y. Foundation Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100  Civil engineering and
(Macau) Limited il 25,000BF1 & &K foundation works
REME (RF) BB DA TARIERMATR
Paul Y. Foundation BVI US$1 ordinary share 100 100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited EERENEE 1ETLTBK REZR
Paul Y. Foundation Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 ordinary 100 100  Civil engineering and
Limited BB shares foundation works
REDEFBR AT 10,000,000/ 7T & & iR TARIRRBETR
Paul Y. General Hong Kong HK$960,000,000 100 100  Civil engineering and
Contractors Limited o ordinary shares building construction
REZELEFRAA 960,000,000/ 7t & @ TAIRNETRE
Paul Y. Interior Hong Kong HK$15,000,000 ordinary 100 100 Interior decoration
Contractors Limited BB shares works and services
REZMIEERAA 15,000,000/ 7T & B K ERNEEIRRRS
Paul Y. Management Hong Kong HK$1 ordmary share 100 100 Management and
(Macau) Limited B 1A TEBRK secretarial services
REEE (RFM)BRAA BB RWERS
Paul Y. Management BVI US$2,000 ordinary 100 100  Investment holding
Contracting Group EBRENES shares REZR
Limited 2,000 EER
RERZIRSEER
Paul Y. Management Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100 Management and
Limited ; 2B TERR secretarial services
REEEARRA EERWERS
Paul Y. Plant Hire Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100  Trading and letting of
RERHBEEERAA FF 2B TERR plant and machinery
BHEREEHREE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT 46. TEMBE LT BEQT 8¢
VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued) TEFEEER (8
(a) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at (a) ZIK AlEE WJ* NARZE
31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued) T EENDTE D - F =
—t+t—HZFHBOT: (8)

Place of
incorporation/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Percentage of issued
share capital/registered

registration/  registered capital/ capital/capital
Name of subsidiary operation capital attributable to the Group Principal activity
B/ Zf/ ERTRHRRE/ AREEECRITRES
WEARER =E 3 SMEX/ EE AMER /EXzENE FEEK
2023 2022
ZE-=F |ZB-—F
% %

Paul Y. Project Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 100 100  Project management
Management BB 2BRTERR services and
International Limited investment holding

REARETREEARA RHEZRHR

RERR

Paul Y. Specialist Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,000 ordinary 100 100  Construction

BB shares BREIRE
1,000 L& @K

Paul Y. - Qianhai Joint Hong Kong Note (iv) 55 55  Construction
Venture e B 2 (iv) BETR

RE - FIBHE

PY Construction (Macau) Macau MOP25,000 capital 100 100  Construction
Limited BF 25,0002 E K BETR

REZFEE(RM)

BRAT

PYE General Construction Macau MOP240,000,000 capital 100 100 Construction
International Limited /2P 240,000,000/% P9 # & 7 BETR

RELEARBERAA

Time Dynasty Limited Hong Kong HK$1 ordinary share 100 100 Storage management

R BT ERR HErER

All of the above subsidiaries are indirectly held by the
Company except Euro Dynasty Limited which is directly
held by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Group
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial

BxEuro Dynasty Limitedf &K 2

A EERFASN LA B

NGRSl RAVNCIIE ES SR I

NEBRRMISEEAREIE
FEAEBFARBEIEXK
SEFEEBRLD 2 AEH

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details MEBAA -FEERA FIH
of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the B AR Z BB S RIETT

directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

Eo



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2023 BEZE—E-_=F=A=+—RHLEE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT
VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
(a) Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The holders of the non-voting deferred shares are
not entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends
for any financial year and are, on winding up or
otherwise, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the
holders of the ordinary shares of the company.

(i)  The holders of the non-voting preferred shares are not
entitled to vote, are not entitled to any dividends unless
the net profits of the company available for dividends
exceed HK$100,000,000,000 in which case they should
be entitled to fixed non-cumulative dividends at the rate
of 5% per annum for any financial year and are, on
winding up, only entitled out of the surplus assets of the
company to a return of the capital after a total sum of
HK$10,000,000,000 has been distributed to the holders of
the ordinary shares of the company.

(iii)  The entity is a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established
in the PRC, and the Group has disposed of the interest
entirely during the year ended 31 March 2023.

(iv)  There is no issued share capital/registered capital/capital for
the subsidiary as it is an unincorporated body.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group.
The principal activities of these subsidiaries, whose
place of incorporation/registration/operation are
mainly in Hong Kong or BVI, are construction, property
development management, other business, investment
holding or inactive.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period or at any time during both
years.

46. TEMBAR  BEQT -

p
S

TEREEER (&)

(a)

ARBEEMBRAANR S
—T=EFERZZEZF=
—t+—HZFHBOT: (8)

Jo A

GES

(i) WHFERFERERSA AR
RIS TR R T B K
FEzZERE BREEEZR
BB BESAEEMER T DK
#2%7100,000,000,000,000/%
TR RAREBEEA AR E
BRHREEZBRT ERE

(i) ﬁt%?ﬂi%“%‘%%%%ﬂ&%ﬁj\
MR E NEEERRE
[S%#EZ Tﬂﬁgﬂﬂ B
#1100,000,000,000% 7t * %
HERT BEERERTE
HRFEEER—IEFE A%
ZEEHFEERE -BREA
BEZARBREDIRBE
10,000,000,0003% 7t ¥ % A

AIEBRIEEAREERGBRE
EZBAT EREEAK-

(i) LT B AR R B 2 R
vy MASESARES
Fo=F=A=+-AILEE
R A

(iv) BRZMERARIFEAE
B M B BITRA M

ik E=R = N N/NIETE . P = i
SEMEWIEBERAEMH
BRA -ZEWB AT ZKL
Sl B EE T BEEE
KABREIHS MEEER
REETE - DMEEEER-
Hh %5 HEEREEE
%o

RBERARINMEFE ZE

MERA RENEARES
EERE
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 B#Z=-ZE-_=F=fF=+—HILEE

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT
VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

(b)

(9

Particulars of the Company’s principal associate as at

31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/
registration/

46.

EEmEﬁj BENT A%

TEFEEER (8

b) AAAETEBLEAAN_-ZE
T =EEN-ZETE-_—_F=A8
=+—HZHBMT:

Percentage of registered

capital attributable to

Name of associate operation Registered capital the Group Principal activity
R/ R/ AEEE \
BENTER =E3E AMEX ZfMEAZEDL TEEH
2023 2022
ZBCZF |ZE-_Z%
% %

Zhong Yu - Paul Y. Project The PRC US$500,000 registered 40 40  Project management
Management Company H capital (Note) and consultancy
Limited 500,0003 7 & i & 7 services

ERPFRETIZER (FE) BB B RERERE
EBAERAT

The above associate is held by the Company indirectly.

Note: This company is sino-foreign equity joint venture company.

Particulars of the Company’s principal joint ventures as

at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/
registration/
operation

Name of joint venture

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/
capital

(© $ ﬂf%é%ﬁ%%
F

_+ EZ@I@T

Percentage of issued
share capital/registered

capital/capital
attributable to the Grou

Principal activity

MY/l ERORMBERE/ FEEEECSRORE/
RELEER =E 3 SMER/EX afMELR EXzEAL FTEER
2023 2022
ZEIZF |ZB--F%
% %
Paul Y. - iMax Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary shares 50 50 Construction and
BB 2B TERR consultancy service
BETR REER RS
Paul Y. - Lian Beng JV Pte. Singapore SGD300,000 ordinary 50 50  Construction
Ltd %K shares BETR
300,000 3% T & B
Paul Y. - Omas Joint Venture  Macau MOP100,000 capital 50 50  Construction
Company Limited i 100,000£ I &R BETR
RE-ASFHEERAA

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA
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For the year ended 31 March 2023 #;

46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT

VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)
Particulars of the Company'’s principal joint operations as
at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Issued and fully
paid share capital/
registered capital/

46. FEMBE AT -

- F—=

*rxz—<—=

i N

TERSEER (®)

d) XRAETEEEEBN_-Z
—=ER-_FETE-__—_#=AH
—t+t—HZFHBWOT:

Percentage of issued
share capital/registered
capital/capital

Name of joint operation operation capital attributable to the Group Principal activity
B/ &M/ BETRARREA/ FEEEEERTRE/
REXKER E 3 aMER/EX SMER/EXzEAL FEEH
2023 2022
ZE_=F |ZZ-CF
% %
Able - Paul Y. Joint Venture  Hong Kong Note 49 49 Construction
£ i BETR
Alchmex - Paul Y. Joint Hong Kong Note 45 45 Construction
Venture BB Mt BETR
B4 - REWE
Arrano - Paul Y. Joint Venture Hong Kong Note 30 30 Security service
T - REHE i i3 RE R
CRCC - Kwan Lee — Paul Y. Hong Kong Note 20 20 Civil engineering
Joint Venture £ Pt & TATR
CRCC - Paul Y. Joint Venture  Hong Kong Note 49 49  Construction
hEHEETLR - RERE B P &E BETR
NS
Laing O' Rourke - Hsin Chong Hong Kong Note 22.5 22.5  Civil engineering
~ Paul Y. Joint Venture 0 Pt &t TARIR
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46. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATE, JOINT
VENTURES AND JOINT OPERATIONS (Continued)

46. TENBLTF BEQT €
TERGEER (1)

I

(d) Particulars of the Company's principal joint operations as (d) ZIK AEESE %ﬂ‘%ﬁ’t\ —_F
at 31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows: (Continued) TR ZFE-=-F=HA
=t+—HZ#HFBWOT: (&)
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of issued
incorporation/ paid share capital/ share capital/registered
registration/  registered capital/ capital/capital
Name of joint operation operation capital attributable to the Group Principal activity
B/ &M/ BREORAARREA/ FEEEEERTRE/
REXBER E 3 aAmER,/ & SMER/EXzEAL FEEH
2023 2022
ZE-=f |ZZ-CF
% %
Paul Y. - Able Joint Venture  Hong Kong Note 70 70 Construction
RE - RIREE £ g BETR
Paul Y. - Chevalier Joint Hong Kong Note 55 - Construction
Venture BB k3 BEIR
Paul Y. - Chun Wo - CRCC  Hong Kong Note 40 40  Civil engineering
Joint Venture BB ik TARIRE
Paul Y. - CIMC - JEC Joint Hong Kong Note 40 40  Construction
Venture BB k3 BETR
Paul Y. - CRCCI Joint Venture Hong Kong Note 60 60  Civil engineering
RE - PEHEBEAA EE (i TARIR
Paul Y. - CREC Joint Venture Hong Kong Note 37 37  Civil engineering
RE-PEDEBEE e k=3 TARTE
Sinohydro - Power China Hong Kong Note 25 25  Construction
Airport - Paul Y. - N it BETR
Rock-One Joint Venture
REKE - REE S - RE -
BIEME
Note: There is no issued share capital/registered capital/capital for MEr: ARZEELEBRIFEA
the joint operations as they are unincorporated bodies. =R BB BITRAS
AMER B
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Vistra Corporate Services Centre
Wickhams Cay Il

Road Town

Tortola, VG1110

British Virgin Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
11/F, Two Sky Parc

51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2831 8338

Fax: +852 2833 1030

TRANSFER AGENT
Tricor Standard Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

WEBSITE
www.pyengineering.com

PAUL Y. ENGINEERING GROUP LIMITED RERZEEBER QA

= E R
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Paul Y. Engineering Group Limited
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11/F, Two Sky Parc, 51 Hung To Road,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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